

Republic of Uganda

Ministry of Water and Environment

Bidding Documents for the Procurement of Works

UNDER OPEN BIDDING

Subject of Procurement: Supply, Installation and Commissioning of 40 Solar Photovoltaic (PV) Energy Packages for Water Supply Schemes

- Lot 1: Supply, Installation and Commissioning of 10 Solar Photovoltaic (PV) Energy Packages for Water Supply Schemes in Kiwenda, Kikyusa, Bamunanika, Banda, Ssekanyonyi, Mayanga, Kayunga, Buyende-2, Kagulu and Kasambira
- Lot 2: Supply, Installation and Commissioning of 10 Solar Photovoltaic (PV) Energy Packages for Water Supply Schemes in Kyamukonda, Biiso, Ulepi, Inde, Kuru, Lefori, Ayiilo, Adilang, Pallabek- Kal and Olilim
- Lot 3: Supply, Installation and Commissioning of 10 Solar Photovoltaic (PV) Energy Packages for Water Supply Schemes in Kasanje, Kyamulibwa, Kakyanga, Nabigasa- Lyabugumu, Ntungu, Isingiro TC, Rubaya, Kabura, Katuna, and Nyakashaka- Rubingo,
- Lot 4: Supply, Installation and Commissioning of 10 Solar Photovoltaic (PV) Energy Packages for Water Supply Schemes in Kyanvuma, Kyere, Kamod, Mkongoro, Abim-I, Losilang-1, Karenga, Iriri, Alakas and Nakapiripirit

Procurement Reference Number: MWE/SUPLS/23-24/00007/1/2/3/4

VOLUME 1: STANDARD BIDDING DOCUMENT

Date of Issue: November 2023

PREFACE

This Bidding Document for the Procurement of Works has been prepared by Ministry of Water and Environment and is based on the Standard Bidding Document for the Procurement of Works under Open or Restricted Bidding issued by the Public Procurement and Disposal of Public Assets Authority dated September 2019.

LIST OF ACRONYMS

BDS	Bid Data Sheet
BEB	Best Evaluated Bidder
BS	Bid Security
BSD	Bid Securing Declaration
ESHS	Environmental, Social, Health and Safety
GCC	General Conditions of the Contract
ITB	Instruction to Bidders.
JV	Joint Venture
NOBEB	Notice of Best Evaluated Bidder
PDE	Procuring and Disposing Entity
PPDA	Public Procurement and Disposal of Public Assets Authority
SBD	Standard Bidding Document
SCC	Special Conditions of the Contract
SOR	Statement of Requirements.
TCS	Technical Compliance Selection

Bidding Document

Table of Contents

PART 1 - Bidding Procedures	9
Section 1: Instructions to Bidders	11
Section 2: Bid Data Sheet	29
Section 3: Evaluation Methodology and Criteria	36
Section 4: Bidding Forms	54
Section 5: Eligible Countries	93
PART 2 - Statement of Requirements	95
Section 6: Statement of Requirements	96
PART 3 - Contract1	.07
Section 7: General Conditions of Contractfor the Procurement of Works 1	.07
Section 8: Special Conditions of Contract1	.30
Section 9: Contract Forms1	.36

ABRIDGED BID NOTICE UNDER OPEN BIDDING



Republic of Uganda Ministry of Water and Environment Plot 3-7 Kabalega Crescent, Luzira P.O Box 20026 Kampala

BID NOTICE

1. Ministry of Water and Environment invites sealed bids from eligible bidders for:

No.	Procurement Reference	Subject Matter of Procurement	Bid Security
	Number		
1	MWE/WRKS/23-24/00007/1	Supply, Installation and Commissioning of 10	USD 35,000
		Solar Photovoltaic (PV) Energy Packages for	
		Water Supply Schemes in Kiwenda, Kikyusa,	
		Bamunanika, Banda, Ssekanyonyi, Mayanga,	
		Kayunga, Buyende-2, Kagulu and Kasambira	
2	MWE/WRKS/23-24/00007/2	Supply, Installation and Commissioning of 10	USD 35,000
		Solar Photovoltaic (PV) Energy Packages for	
		Water Supply Schemes in Kyamukonda, Biiso,	
		Ulepi, Inde, Kuru, Lefori, Ayiilo, Adilang,	
		Pallabek- Kal and Olilim	
3	MWE/WRKS/23-24/00007/3	Supply, Installation and Commissioning of 10	USD 35,000
		Solar Photovoltaic (PV) Energy Packages for	
		Water Supply Schemes in Kasanje,	
		Kyamulibwa, Kakyanga, Nabigasa-	
		Lyabugumu, Ntungu, Isingiro TC, Rubaya,	
		Kabura, Katuna, and Nyakashaka- Rubingo,	
4	MWE/WRKS/23-24/00007/4	Supply, Installation and Commissioning of 10	USD 35,000
		Solar Photovoltaic (PV) Energy Packages for	
		Water Supply Schemes in Kyanvuma, Kyere,	
		Kamod, Mkongoro, Abim-I, Losilang-1,	
		Karenga, Iriri, Alakas and Nakapiripirit	

- 2. The Bidding documents shall be inspected and issued at Ministry of Water and Environment Headquarters, Procurement and Disposal Unit Ground Floor, Plot 3-7 Kabalega Crescent, Luzira, Kampala.
- 3. The deadline for bid submission shall be at **11:00 a.m. Ugandan time on 17th January 2024.** Electronic bidding will not be permitted. Late Bids will be rejected. Bids will be publicly opened in the presence of the Bidders' designated representatives and anyone who chooses to attend at the address below at **11:05 a.m. Ugandan time on 17th January 2024.**
- 4. The detailed bid notice is available at the Entity's website at <u>www.mwe.go.ug</u> and at <u>www.ppda.go.ug</u>.

Permanent Secretary Ministry of Water and Environment

Page 5 of 154



Republic of Uganda Ministry of Water and Environment Plot 3-7 Kabalega Crescent Road, Luzira P.O Box 20026 Kampala

BID NOTICE UNDER OPEN BIDDING

Supply, Installation and Commissioning of 40 Solar Photovoltaic (PV) Energy Packages for Water Supply Schemes

Procurement Reference Number: MWE/SUPLS/23-24/00007/1/2/3/4

Date: 30th November 2023

- 1. The Government of the Republic of Uganda has received financing from the World Bank toward the cost of the Electricity Access Scale-Up Project (EASP), and intends to apply part of the proceeds toward payments under the Contract for Supply, Installation and Commissioning of 40 Solar Photovoltaic (PV) Energy Packages for Water Supply Schemes.
- 2. The Government of the Republic of Uganda through its Ministry of Water and Environment now invites sealed Bids from eligible Bidders for Supply, Installation and Commissioning Solar Photovoltaic (PV) Energy Packages for Water Supply Schemes in 4 lots as follows:
 - Lot 1: Supply, Installation and Commissioning of 10 Solar Photovoltaic (PV) Energy Packages for Water Supply Schemes in Kiwenda, Kikyusa, Bamunanika, Banda, Ssekanyonyi, Mayanga, Kayunga, Buyende-2, Kagulu and Kasambira
 - Lot 2: Supply, Installation and Commissioning of 10 Solar Photovoltaic (PV) Energy Packages for Water Supply Schemes in Kyamukonda, Biiso, Ulepi, Inde, Kuru, Lefori, Ayiilo, Adilang, Pallabek- Kal and Olilim
 - Lot 3: Supply, Installation and Commissioning of 10 Solar Photovoltaic (PV) Energy Packages for Water Supply Schemes in Kasanje, Kyamulibwa, Kakyanga, Nabigasa- Lyabugumu, Ntungu, Isingiro TC, Rubaya, Kabura, Katuna, and Nyakashaka- Rubingo,
 - Lot 4: Supply, Installation and Commissioning of 10 Solar Photovoltaic (PV) Energy Packages for Water Supply Schemes in Kyanvuma, Kyere, Kamod, Mkongoro, Abim-I, Losilang-1, Karenga, Iriri, Alakas and Nakapiripirit
- 3. Bidding shall be conducted in accordance with the proceedures contained in the Public Procurement and Disposal of Public Assets Act, 2003 (the Act) and the Regulations made under the Act and is open to all bidders.
- 4. Interested eligible bidders may obtain further information and inspect the bidding document at the address given below at 8(a) from 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.

- 5. The bidding document which has been prepared in the English language may be purchased by interested bidders at 8(b) upon payment of a non-refundable fee of UGX 300,000 (Three Hundred Thousand Uganda Shillings only) or its equivalent in a freely convertible currency. The method of payment will be by bank payment advice form obtained from the Uganda Revenue Authority website <u>www.ura.go.ug</u> using "other NTR" as a tax head in the form. The bidding documents in soft copy will be sent by email and the hard copy will be available for collection from Ministry of Water and Environment Headquarters, Procurement and Disposal Unit Ground Floor, Plot 3-7 Kabalega Crescent Road, Luzira, Kampala.
- 6. Bids must be delivered to the address below at 8(c) at or before 11:00 a.m. Ugandan time on 17th January 2024. All bids must be accompanied by a bid security of USD 35,000 (United States Dollars Thirty Five Thousand) or its equivalent in a freely convertible currency for each Lot. Bid securities must be valid until 26th April 2024. Late bids shall be rejected. Bids will be opened in the presence of the bidders' representatives who choose to attend at the address below at 8(d) at 11:05 a.m. Ugandan time on 17th January 2024.
- 7. There shall be a pre-bid meeting at Ministry of Water and Environment, Plot 3-7 Kabalega Crescent Road, at 11:00 a.m. on the dates indicated in the proposed schedule in this notice.

8.	Bidders should note the following:	
	(a) Documents may be inspected at:	Procurement and Disposal Unit,
		Ministry of Water and Environment
		Plot 3-7 Kabalega Crescent Road, Luzira
	(b) Documents will be issued from:	Procurement and Disposal Unit,
		Ministry of Water and Environment
		Plot 3-7 Kabalega Crescent Road, Luzira
	(c) Bids must be delivered to:	Procurement and Disposal Unit,
		Ministry of Water and Environment
		Plot 3-7 Kabalega Crescent Road, Luzira
	(d) Address of bid opening:	Procurement and Disposal Unit,
		Ministry of Water and Environment
		Plot 3-7 Kabalega Crescent Road, Luzira

9. The Planned Procurement Schedule (subject to changes) is as follows:

Activity	Date
(a) Publish bid notice	30 th November 2023
(b) Pre-bid meeting	8 th December 2023
(c) Bid closing date	17 th January 2024
(d) Bid opening date	17 th January 2024
(e) Evaluation process	Within 40 working days from bid closing date
(f) Display and communication of best	Within 5 working days from Contracts
evaluated bidder notice	Committee award
(g) Contract signature	After expiry of at least 10 working days from
	display of the best evaluated bidder notice and
	after the Solicitor General's approval

Permanent Secretary Ministry of Water and Environment

PART 1 - Bidding Procedures

Table of Clauses

A.	General	. 11
1. 2. 3. 4. 5. 6. 7. 8. 9. 10.	Scope of Bid Source of Funds Corrupt and Fraudulent Practices Eligible Bidders Qualification of the Bidder Joint Ventures, Consortia and Associations One Bid per Bidder Cost of Bidding Site Visit and Pre-Bid Meeting Reservation/Preference Schemes	11 11 12 13 13 13 13 13 14
но. В.	Bidding Document	
1. 2. 3.	Content of Bidding Document Clarification of Bidding Document Amendment of Bidding Document	15 16 16
C.	Preparation of Bids	
4. 5. 6. 7. 8. 9. 10. 11. 12.	Language of the Bid Documents Comprising the Bid Technical Documentation Bid Prices and Discounts Currencies of Bid and Payment Bid Validity Bid Security or Bid Securing Declaration Alternative Bids Format and Signing of Bid	16 17 17 17 18 18 18
D.	Submission and Opening of Bids	. 20
13. 14. 15. 16. 17.	Sealing and Marking of Bids Deadline for Submission of Bids Late Bids Withdrawal and Replacement of Bids Bid Opening	21 21 21
Е.	Evaluation of Bids	. 22
 18. 19. 20. 21. 22. 23. 	Confidentiality Evaluation of Bids Clarification and Changes to Bids Compliance and Responsiveness of Bids Nonconformities, Errors, and Omissions Stages of Evaluation: Using the Technical Compliance Selection Evaluation Me 25	22 23 23 23
24. 25. 26.	Preliminary Examination of Bids – Eligibility and Administrative Compliance Detailed Evaluation Currency and Exchange Rate	25

Part 1: Section 1 Instructions to Bidders

27.	Financial Comparison of Bids	25
28.	Margin of Preference	
40.	Determination of Best Evaluated Bid	
F.	Award of Contract	
41.	Award Procedure and Notice of Best Evaluated Bidder	
42.	PDE's Right to Accept Any Bid And to Reject Any or all Bids	
43.	Confirmation of Award	
44.	Signing and Effectiveness of Contract	
45.	Debriefing of Bidders	
46.	Performance Security	
47.	Administrative Review	

Section 1: Instructions to Bidders

A. General

1. Scope of Bid

- 1.1 The Procuring and Disposing Entity (PDE), as defined in the Bid Data Sheet (BDS), invites bids for the construction of works, as described in the BDS. The name and procurement reference number of the Contract and number of lots in this Bidding Document are provided in the BDS. The Instructions to Bidders (ITB) should be read in conjunction with the BDS.
- 1.2 The successful bidder will be expected to complete the works by the Intended Completion Date specified in the Special Conditions of Contract (SCC).
- 1.3 Throughout this bidding document:
 - (a) the "Contractor" means the provider.
 - (b) "day" means working day unless otherwise expressly stated herein and excludes the Government of Uganda public holidays and weekends.
 - (c) "day works" means varied work inputs subject to payment on a time basis for the Contractor's employees and Equipment, in addition to payments for associated Materials and Plant.
 - (d) the "Employer" means the procuring and disposing entity.
 - (e) "ESHS" means environmental, social (including sexual exploitation and abuse(SEA) and gender based violence (GBV)), health and safety.
 - (f) "in writing" means hand-written, type-written, printed or electronically made, and resulting in a permanent record.

2. Source of Funds

- 2.1 The PDE has an approved budget towards the cost of the procurement named in the BDS. The PDE intends to use these funds to place a contract for which this Bidding Document is issued.
- 2.2 Payments will be made directly by the PDE and shall be subject to the terms and conditions of the resulting contract placed by the PDE.

3. Corrupt and Fraudulent Practices

- 3.1 It is the Government of Uganda's policy to require that PDEs, as well as bidders and Contractors, to observe the highest standards of ethics during procurement and the execution of contracts. In pursuit of this policy:
 - (a) PPDA defines, for the purposes of this provision, the terms set forth below as follows:
 - (i) "corrupt practice" means the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting, directly or indirectly, of anything of value, to influence the action of a public official in the procurement process or in contract execution;

- (ii) "fraudulent practice" means as any such practices under the code of ethics of the providers and not limited to misrepresentation of facts in order to influence a procurement or disposal process or the execution of a contract to the detriment of the procuring or disposing entity, and includes collusive practices among bidders prior to or after bid submission designed to establish bid prices at artificial non-competitive levels and to deprive the PDE of the benefits of free and open competition;
- (b) The PDE will reject a recommendation for award if the Bidder recommended for award has engaged in corrupt or fraudulent practices; and
- (c) PPDA shall suspend a provider from engaging in any public procurement proceedings for a stated period of time in accordance with the PPDA Act 2003 and the Regulations made under the Act, if the provider has engaged in corrupt or fraudulent practices.
- 3.2 In pursuit of the policy defined in ITB Sub-Clause 3.1, the PDE may terminate a contract for works, or be ordered by the Public Procurement and Disposal of Public Assets Appeals Tribunal to cancel a contract, if it at any time determines that corrupt or fraudulent practices were engaged in by representatives of the PDE or of a Bidder or Contractor during the procurement or the execution of a contract.
- 3.3 In further pursuit of the policy defined in ITB Sub-Clause 3.1, the PPDA requires representatives of both the PDE and of Bidders and Contractors to adhere to therelevant codes of ethical conduct. The Code of Ethical Conduct for Bidders and Providers as provided in the bidding forms shall be signed by the bidder and submitted together with the other bidding forms.
- 3.4 Any communications between a bidder and the PDE related to matters of alleged fraud or corruption must be made in writing and addressed to the Accounting Officer of the PDE and copied to the PPDA.

4. Eligible Bidders

- 4.1 A Bidder, and all parties constituting the Bidder, shall meet the following criteria to be eligible to participate in public procurement:
 - (a) The bidder has the legal capacity to enter into a contract with the PDE;
 - (b) The bidder is not:
 - (i) Insolvent;
 - (ii) In receivership;
 - (iii) Bankrupt; or
 - (iv) Being wound up
 - (c) The bidder's business activities have not been suspended;
 - (d) The bidder is not the subject of legal proceedings for any of the circumstances in (b); and
 - (e) The bidder has fulfilled his or her obligations to pay taxes and social security contributions.
 - (f) The bidder is not a member of the Contracts Committee or an employee of the Procuring and Disposing Entity.
- 4.2 A bidder may be a physical person or artificial person, such as an entity. A combination of persons can bid if they have an agreement to form a Joint Venture (JV), Consortium or Association. Such a bid shall include a Power of Attorney from each party authorizing a representative to conduct all business for and on behalf of the party during

the bidding process, contract signature and contract execution. Each party to the JV, Consortium or Association shall be a signatory to the contract with the PDE and shall be jointly and severally liable.

- 4.3 A bidder, and all parties constituting the bidder including sub-contractors, shall have the nationality of an eligible country, in accordance with Section 5, Eligible Countries. A bidder shall be deemed to have the nationality of a country if the bidder is a citizen oris constituted, incorporated, or registered and operates in conformity with the provisions of the laws of that country. This criterion shall also apply to the determination of the nationality of proposed subcontractors for any part of the Contract including related services.
- 4.4 A bidder shall not have a conflict of interest. Any bidder found to have a conflict of interest shall be disqualified. A bidder may be considered to have a conflict of interest with one or more parties in this bidding process, if the bidder:
 - (a) Has controlling shareholding with another bidder; or
 - (b) Receives or has received any direct or indirect subsidy from another bidder; or
 - (c) Has the same authorized representative for purposes of this bidding process as another bidder; or
 - (d) Has a relationship with another bidder, directly or through common third parties, that puts the bidder in a position to have access to information about or influence the bid of another bidder, or influence the decisions of the PDE regarding this bidding process; or
 - (e) Submits more than one bid in this bidding process, except for alternative bids permitted under ITB 19. However, this does not limit the participation of subcontractors in more than one bid, or as Bidders and subcontractors simultaneously; or
 - (f) Is associated, or has been associated in the past, directly or indirectly, with the consultant or any other entity that has prepared the design, specifications, and other documents for the Project or is being proposed as Project Manager for the Contract. A bidder that has been engaged by the PDE to provide consulting services for the preparation or supervision of the works, and any of its affiliates, shall not be eligible to bid.
- 4.5 A bidder that is suspended by the PPDA shall not be eligible to participate in the bidding process.
- 4.6 Government-owned enterprises shall be eligible only if they can establish that they are legally and financially autonomous and operate under commercial law.
- 4.7 Bidders shall provide such evidence of their continued eligibility satisfactory to the PDE, as the PDE shall reasonably request.
- 4.8 To establish eligibility in accordance with ITB 4, a bidder shall complete the eligibility declarations in the Bid Submission Sheet, included in Section 4, Bidding Forms and submit the documents required in Section 3, Evaluation Methodology and Criteria.
- 4.9 A bidder whose circumstances in relation to eligibility change during a procurement process or during the implementation of a contract, shall immediately inform the PDE.
- 4.10 All materials, equipment and services to be used in the performance of the contract shall have as their country of origin an eligible country in accordance with Section 5, Eligible Countries.

5. Qualification of the Bidder

- 5.1 To establish its qualifications to perform the Contract, the bidder shall complete and submit:
 - (a) The Qualification Form provided in Section 4, Bidding Forms; and
 - (b) The information and documents stated in Section 3, Evaluation Methodology and Criteria.
- 5.2 The qualifications of the best evaluated bidder will be assessed as part of a postqualification in accordance with ITB 40.

6. Joint Ventures, Consortia and Associations

- 6.1 Bids submitted by a JV, Consortium or Association shall include a copy of the Joint Venture, Consortium or Association Agreement signed by all parties to the Joint Venture, Consortium or Association Agreement.
- 6.2 In addition to the requirements under ITB 15.1, bids submitted by a joint venture, consortium or association of two or more firms as partners shall comply with the following requirements, unless otherwise stated in the BDS:
 - (a) The bid shall include all the information listed in Section 3, Evaluation Methodology and Criteria for each partner;
 - (b) The bid shall be signed so as to be legally binding on all partners;
 - (c) All partners shall be jointly and severally liable for the implementation of the Contract in accordance with the Contract terms;
 - (d) One of the partners will be nominated as being in charge and receive instructions for and on behalf of any and all partners; and
 - (e) The implementation of the entire Contract shall be by the Joint Venture, consortium or association.

7. One Bid per Bidder

Each bidder shall submit only one bid, either individually or as a partner in a joint venture, consortium or association. A bidder who submits or participates in more than one bid (other than as a subcontractor or in cases of alternatives that have been permitted or requested) shall cause all the bids with the bidder's participation to be rejected.

8. Cost of Bidding

The bidder shall bear all costs associated with the preparation and submission of his bid, and the PDE shall not be responsible or liable for those costs, regardless of the conduct or outcome of the bidding process.

9. Site Visit and Pre-Bid Meeting

- 9.1 The bidder, at the bidder's own responsibility and risk, is encouraged to visit and examine the site of works and its surroundings and obtain all information that may be necessary for preparing the bid and entering into a contract for construction of the works. The costs of visiting the site shall be at the bidder's own expense.
- 9.2 The bidder and any of its authorized personnel or agents shall be granted permission by the PDE to enter upon its premises and lands for the purpose of such visit, but only

upon the express condition that the bidder, its personnel, and agents will release and indemnify the PDE and its personnel and agents from and against all liability in respect thereof, and will be responsible for death or personal injury, loss of or damage to property, and any other loss, damage, costs, and expenses incurred as a result of the inspection.

- 9.3 If so indicated in the BDS, the PDE will hold a pre-bid meeting or site visit at the time, date and location specified in the BDS to clarify issues and to answer questions on any matter that may be raised at that stage.
- 9.4 Bidders may submit any questions in writing to the Entity prior to the date of the meeting and may also orally raise questions at the meeting.
- 9.5 Minutes of the pre-bid meeting, if any was held, including the text of the questions asked by bidders, without identifying the source, and the responses given, together withany responses prepared after the meeting, will be transmitted promptly to all bidders who have acquired the Bidding Documents. Any modification to the Bidding Documents that may become necessary as a result of the pre-bid meeting shall be made by the PDE exclusively through the issue of an Addendum pursuant to ITB 12 and not through the minutes of the pre-bid meeting. Unless otherwise indicated in the BDS, non-attendance at the site visit shall not cause disqualification of a Bidder.

10. Reservation/Preference Schemes

- 10.1 Unless otherwise specified in the BDS, reservation and/or preference schemes shall apply. Where the reservation and /or preference schemes applies, its application and detail shall be specified in Section 3, Evaluation Methodology and Criteria.
- 10.2 For the purpose of using the reservation schemes, bids will be classified in one of the categories specified under the Guideline on Reservation Schemes to promote Local Content and for preference schemes the PPDA Act, 2003 shall be applied.

B. Bidding Document

11. Content of Bidding Document

11.1 The Bidding Document consists of Parts 1, 2, and 3, which includes all the Sections indicated below, and should be read in conjunction with any addenda issued in accordance with ITB Clause 13.

PART 1 Bidding Procedures

- Section 1. Instructions to Bidders (ITB)
- Section 2. Bid Data Sheet (BDS)
- Section 3. Evaluation Methodology and Criteria
- Section 4. Bidding Forms
- Section 5. Eligible Countries

PART 2 Statement of Requirements

• Section 6. Statement of Requirements

PART 3 Contract

- Section 7. General Conditions of Contract (GCC)
- Section 8. Special Conditions of Contract (SCC)
- Section 9. Contract Forms
- 11.2 Unless obtained directly from the Employer, the Employer is not responsible for the completeness of the Bidding Documents, responses to requests for clarification, the minutes of the pre-bid meeting (if any), or Addenda to the Bidding Documents.

11.3 The bidder is expected to examine all instructions, forms, terms, and specifications in the Bidding Document and to furnish with its bid all information and documentation required by the Bidding Documents.

12. Clarification of Bidding Document

A bidder requiring any clarification of the Bidding Document shall contact the PDE in writing at the PDE's address indicated in the BDS. The PDE will respond in writing to any request for clarification, provided that such request is received no later than the date indicated in the BDS. The PDE shall forward copies of its response to all bidders who have acquired the Bidding Document directly from it, including a description of the inquiry but without identifying its source. Should the PDE deem it necessary to amend the Bidding Document as a result of a clarification, it shall do so following the procedure under ITB 13 and ITB 24.2.

13. Amendment of Bidding Document

- 13.1 At any time prior to the deadline for submission of bids, the PDE may amend the Bidding Document by issuing an addendum.
- 13.2 Any addendum issued shall be part of the Bidding Document and shall be communicated in writing to all who have obtained the Bidding Document directly from the PDE.
- 13.3 To give bidders reasonable time in which to take an addendum into account in preparing their bids, the PDE shall extend the deadline for submission of bids by a reasonable period in the event that less than one third of the bidding period remains after the issue date of the addendum. The PDE may, at its discretion, extend the deadline for the submission of bids, where more than one third of the bidding period remains after the date of issue of the addendum.

C. Preparation of Bids

14. Language of the Bid

- 14.1 The bid shall be in writing.
- 14.2 The bid, as well as all correspondence and documents relating to the bid exchanged between the bidder and the PDE, shall be written in English.
- 14.3 Supporting documents and printed literature that are part of the bid may be in another language provided they are accompanied by an accurate translation by a competent institution of the relevant passages to English. In which case, for purposes of interpretation of the bid, such translation shall govern.

15. Documents Comprising the Bid

- 15.1 The bid submitted by the bidder shall comprise the following:
 - (a) The Bid Submission Sheet, in accordance with ITB 15.2;
 - (b) A Bid Security or a Bid Securing Declaration in accordance with ITB 20;
 - (c) Written confirmation authorising the signatory of the bid to commit the bidder, in accordance with ITB 22;
 - (d) Documentary evidence in accordance with ITB 4.8 establishing the bidder's eligibility to bid;
 - (e) A priced Activity Schedule or Bill of Quantities in accordance with ITB 16 and 17;

- (f) The Qualification Form and Documents in accordance with ITB 5;
- (g) Technical documentation (description of the proposed work method and schedule, including drawings and charts, as necessary) in accordance with ITB 16;
- (h) The Code of Ethical Conduct for Bidders and Providers in accordance with ITB 3.3; and
- (i) Any other document(s) required in the BDS.
- 15.2 The Bidder shall submit the Bid Submission Sheet using the form provided in Section 4, Bidding Forms. This form must be completed without any alterations to its format, and no substitutes shall be accepted. All blank spaces shall be filled in with the information requested.

16. Technical Documentation

16 The bidder shall furnish technical documentation including a statement of work methods, equipment, personnel, schedule and any other information as stipulated in Section 4, Bidding Forms, in sufficient detail to demonstrate the adequacy of the bidder's proposal to meet the work's requirements and the completion time.

17. Bid Prices and Discounts

- 17.1 The prices and discounts quoted by the bidder in the Bid Submission Sheet and in the Priced Activity Schedules or Bills of Quantities submitted by the bidder shall conform to the requirements specified below.
- 17.2 The bidder shall fill in rates and prices for all items of the works described in the Bill of Quantities. If a Price Schedule shows items listed but not priced, their prices shall be assumed to be included in the prices of other items. Items not listed in the Price Schedule shall be assumed not to be included in the bid, and provided that the bid is substantially responsive, the corresponding adjustment shall be applied in accordance with ITB 32.3.
- 17.3 The price to be quoted in the Bid Submission Sheet shall be the total price of the bid, excluding any discounts offered. In the event that taxes are not exempt, the price must include any applicable taxes.
- 17.4 The bidder shall quote any discounts in the Bid Submission Sheet.
- 17.5 The total bid price shall be for the whole works based on the priced Activity Schedule or Bill of Quantities submitted by the bidder.
- 17.6 The lump sum price quoted by the bidder shall be subject to adjustment during the performance of the Contract if provided for in the SCC and the provisions of Clause 47 of the GCC.

18. Currencies of Bid and Payment

- 18.1 Bid prices for works and related services originating in and outside Uganda shall be quoted in Uganda Shillings unless authorised by a competent authority.
- 18.2 If authorized by the competent authority the Bidder shall utilise the rate of exchange specified in the BDS to express its offer. The source, date and type of exchange rate shall be indicated in ITB 36.
- 18.3 If authorized by the competent authority, bidders shall indicate details of their expected foreign currency requirements in the Bid. Foreign currency requirements shall be indicated as a percentage of the bid price (excluding provisional sums) and shall be

payable at the option of the bidder in up to three foreign currencies, unless otherwise stated in the BDS.

18.4 If authorized by the competent authority, bidders may be required by the PDE to clarify their foreign currency requirements and to substantiate that the amounts included in the lump sum and in the SCC are reasonable and responsive to ITB 18.3.

19. Bid Validity

- 19.1 Bids shall remain valid until the date specified in the BDS. A bid valid for a shorter period shall be rejected by the PDE as non-compliant while a bid valid for a longer period than the date specified in the BDS shall not be rejected but shall only be valid until the date in the BDS.
- 19.2 The PDE shall make its best effort to complete the procurement process within the duration of the validity period specified in the BDS. A PDE must ensure the validity of bids, bid securities and bid securing declarations throughout the procurement process until contract signature.
- 19.3 In exceptional circumstances, prior to the expiration of the bid validity period, the PDE may request Bidders to extend the period of validity of their bids. The request and the responses shall be made in writing. If a Bid Security or a Bid Securing Declaration is requested in accordance with ITB Clause 20, it shall also be extended for a period corresponding to the extension of the bid validity. A bidder may refuse to extend its bid validity period without forfeiting its Bid Security or Bid Securing Declaration. A bidder who extends the validity periods of its bid and bid security or bid securing declaration shall not be required or permitted to modify its bid.

20. Bid Security or Bid Securing Declaration

- 20.1 The bidder shall furnish as part of its bid either a Bid Security or a Bid Securing Declaration as specified in the BDS in original form and, in the case of a Bid Security, in the amount and currency specified in the BDS.
- 20.2 If a bid security is specified pursuant to ITB 20,1, the bid security shall be a demand guarantee in the amount specified in the BDS and denominated in Uganda Shillings or a freely convertible currency, and shall:
 - (a) Be issued by a reputable financial institution selected by the bidder from an eligible country. If the institution issuing the security is located outside Uganda, it shall be enforceable through a financial institution located in Uganda.
 - (b) Be in the form of the bid security included in section 4, bidding forms;
 - (c) Be discharged by the financial institution immediately upon written demand by the PDE in case the conditions stated in the bid security are invoked;
 - (d) Be included in the bid and submitted in its original form copies shall not be accepted.
 - 20.3 The Bid Security or Bid Securing Declaration shall be submitted using the appropriate form included in Section 4, Bidding Forms and shall be valid until the date specified in the BDS.
- 20.4 Any bid not accompanied by appropriate Bid Security or Bid Securing Declaration, shall be rejected by the PDE as non-compliant.
- 20.5 The Bid Security or Bid Securing Declaration of all bidders shall be returned as

promptly as possible once the successful bidder has signed the contract and provided the required Performance Security and ESHS Performance Security where applicable.

- 20.6 The Bid Security or Bid-Securing Declaration of a JV, Consortium or Association must be issued in the names of all their members or partners.
- 20.7 The Bid Security may be forfeited or the conditions of the Bid Securing Declaration executed in the following circumstances:
 - (a) If a bidder withdraws its bid during the period of bid validity specified by the Bidder in the Bid Submission Sheet, or during any extension thereto;
 - (b) If a bidder fails to accept the correction of its bid price pursuant to ITB Sub-Clause 32.5; or
 - (c) If the successful bidder fails to:
 - (i) Sign the Contract in accordance with ITB 45;
 - (ii) Furnish a Performance Security and if required in the BDS, the Environmental, Social, Health and Safety (ESHS) Performance Security in accordance with ITB 46.2.

21. Alternative Bids

- 21.1 Bidders shall submit offers that comply with the requirements of the bidding documents, including the basic technical design as indicated in the drawings and specifications. Alternative bids shall not be considered unless they are permitted in the BDS.
- 21.2 Where permitted, alternative bids do not need to conform precisely to the Statement of Requirements (SORs), but must-
 - (a) Meet the objectives and/or performance requirements prescribed in the SORS;
 - (b) Be substantially within any delivery or completion schedule, budget or other performance parameters stated in the solicitation document;
 - (c) Provide all information necessary for a complete evaluation of the alternative by the PDE, including design calculations, technical specifications, breakdown of prices, proposed construction methods and other relevant details; and
 - (d) Clearly state the benefits of the alternative bid over any solution which conforms precisely to the SORs, in terms of technical performance, price, operating costs or any other benefit.
- 21.3 A bidder may submit both a main bid which conforms precisely to the SORs and an alternative bid.
- 21.4 Where a bidder submits more than one bid, each bid shall be submitted as a completely separate bid and shall conform to the instructions for preparation and submission of bids in its own right, without any reliance on any other bid. In particular, each bid shall be separately signed, authorised, sealed, labelled and submitted in accordance with the instructions for submission of bids and shall be accompanied by a separate BS or BSD, if so required. Such bids shall be labelled "Main Bid" and "Alternative Bid".
- 21.5 The evaluation of alternative bids shall use the same methodology, criteria and weights as the evaluation of main bids, except that the detailed technical evaluation shall take into account only the objectives and/or performance requirements prescribed in SORs.

22. Format and Signing of Bid

- 22.1 The bidder shall prepare one original of the documents comprising the bid as described in ITB Clause 14 and clearly mark it "ORIGINAL." In addition, the Bidder shall submit copies of the Bid, in the number specified in the BDS, and clearly mark each of them "COPY." In the event of any discrepancy between the original and the copies, the original shall prevail.
- 22.2 The original and all copies of the bid shall be signed by the bidder in the event that he or she is a physical person personally submitting the bid and in any other event by a person duly authorised to sign on behalf of the bidder. This authorisation shall consist of a Power of Attorney which if signed in Uganda shall be registered with the competent authority and if signed outside Uganda, shall be notarized. The Power of Attorney shall be submitted in the bid. The name and position held by each person signing the authorisation must be typed or printed below the signature. All pages of the bid, except for un-amended printed literature, shall be signed or initialled by the person authorized to sign the bid.
- 22.3 The bid shall contain no alterations or additions, except those to comply with instructions issued by the PDE, or as necessary to correct errors made by the Bidder, in which case such corrections shall be initialed by the person or persons signing the Bid.
- 22.4 In the case of bids submitted by a JV, Consortium or Association, each member or partner shall nominate a representative through a power of attorney to conduct all business on its behalf during the bid preparation, bidding process and contract executionin case of award of the contract. Each representative duly nominated through the power of attorney shall commit each respective member or partner by executing a JV, Consortium or Association agreement providing; that the parties shall jointly submit a bid, naming the lead member or partner and authorizing the representative of the lead member or partner who was granted power of attorney to sign the bid.
- 22.5 Any inter-lineation, erasures, or overwriting shall be valid only if they are signed or initialed by the person signing the Bid.

D. Submission and Opening of Bids

23. Sealing and Marking of Bids

- 23.1 The bidder shall enclose the original and each copy of the bid, in separate sealed envelopes or packages, duly marking the envelopes as "ORIGINAL" and "COPY." These envelopes or packages containing the original and the copies shall then be enclosed in one single plain envelope or package securely sealed in such a manner that opening and resealing cannot be achieved undetected and shall be submitted as specified in the BDS.
- 23.2 The inner and outer envelopes shall:
 - (a) Bear the name and address of the Bidder;
 - (b) Be addressed to the PDE in accordance with ITB 23.1;
 - (c) Bear the Procurement Reference number of this bidding process; and
 - (d) Bear a warning not to open before the time and date for bid opening, in accordance with ITB 23.1.
- 23.3 If all envelopes are not sealed and marked as required, the PDE will assume no responsibility for the misplacement or premature opening of the bid.

24. Deadline for Submission of Bids

- 24.1 Bids must be received by the PDE at the address and no later than the date and time indicated in the BDS. When so specified in the BDS, bidders shall have the option of submitting their Bids electronically. Bidders submitting bids electronically shall follow the electronic bid submission procedures specified in the BDS.
- 24.2 The PDE may, at its discretion, extend the deadline for the submission of bids by amending the Bidding Documents in accordance with ITB 13, in which case all rights and obligations of the PDE and bidders previously subject to the deadline shall thereafter be subject to the deadline as extended.

25. Late Bids

The PDE shall not consider any bid that arrives after the deadline for submission of bids, in accordance with ITB 24. Any bid received by the PDE after the deadline for submission of bids shall be declared late, rejected, and returned unopened to the bidder.

26. Withdrawal and Replacement of Bids

- 26.1 A bidder may withdraw or replace its bid after it has been submitted at any time before the deadline for submission of bids by sending a written notice, duly signed by an authorised representative, which shall include a copy of the authorisation in accordance with ITB 24.2. Any corresponding replacement of the bid must accompany the respective written notice. All notices must be:
 - (a) Submitted in accordance with ITB 23 and 24 (except that withdrawals notices do not require copies), and in addition, the respective envelopes shall be clearly marked "Withdrawal," or "REPLACEMENT," and
 - (b) Received by the Procuring and Disposing Entity prior to the deadline prescribed for submission of bids, in accordance with ITB Clause 24.
- 26.2 Bids requested to be withdrawn in accordance with ITB Sub-Clause 24.1 shall be returned unopened to the Bidder.
- 26.3 No bid may be withdrawn or replaced in the interval between the deadline for submission of bids and the expiration of the period of bid validity specified by the Bidder in the Bid Submission Sheet or any extension thereof.
- 26.4 Bids may only be modified by withdrawal of the original bid and submission of a replacement bid in accordance with ITB Sub-Clause 26.1. Modifications submitted in any other way shall not be taken into account in the evaluation of bids.
- 26.5 Bidders may only offer discounts to, or otherwise modify the prices of their bids, by withdrawing and replacing their bid in accordance with this clause, or by including the discount in the original bid submission in accordance with ITB 17.

27. Bid Opening

- 27.1 The PDE shall conduct the bid opening in the presence of bidders' designated representatives who choose to attend, and at the address, date and time specified in the BDS. Any specific electronic bid opening procedures required if electronic Bidding is permitted in accordance with ITB 24.1 shall be as specified in the BDS.
- 27.2 First, envelopes marked "WITHDRAWAL" shall be opened and read out and theenvelope with the corresponding bid shall not be opened, but returned to the Bidder. No bid withdrawal shall be permitted unless the corresponding withdrawal notice contains a

valid authorisation to request the withdrawal and is read out at the bid opening.

- 27.3 All other envelopes including those marked "REPLACEMENT" shall be opened and the relevant details read out. Replacement bids shall be recorded as such on the record of the bid opening.
- 27.4 Only envelopes or packages that are opened and read out at the bid opening shall be evaluated.
- 27.5 All other envelopes shall be opened one at a time, reading out: the name of the bidder; the bid price, per lot where applicable, including any discounts; the presence of a Bid Security or Bid Securing Declaration; and any other details as the Procuring and Disposing Entity may consider appropriate. No bid shall be rejected at the bid opening except for late bids, in accordance with ITB 25
- 27.6 The PDE shall prepare a record of the bid opening that shall include, as a minimum: the name of the bidder and whether there is a withdrawal and/or replacement; the total bid price or the bid price per lot if applicable, including any discounts; the presence or absence of a Bid Security or Bid Securing Declaration, and whether a Power of Attorney was submitted. The bidders' representatives who are present shall be requested to sign the record. The omission of a bidder's signature on the record shall not invalidate the contents and effect of the record. A copy of the record shall upon request be distributed to bidders and displayed on the PDE's Notice Board within one working day from the date of the bid opening for a minimum of seven (7) working days.
- 27.7 The original bids shall be kept in the custody of the Accounting Officer and where there is a discrepancy at evaluation of the bids, reference shall be made to the originals in the custody of the Accounting Officer.

E. Evaluation of Bids

28. Confidentiality

- 28.1 Information relating to the examination, evaluation, comparison, and post-qualification of bids, and recommendation of contract award, shall not be disclosed to bidders or any other persons not officially concerned with such process until information detailing the Best Evaluated Bidder (BEB) is communicated to all Bidders.
- 28.2 Any attempt by a Bidder to influence the PDE in the examination, evaluation, comparison, and post-qualification of the bids or contract award decisions may result in the rejection of its bid.
- 28.3 Notwithstanding ITB 28.2, from the time of bid opening to the time of Contract award, if any Bidder wishes to contact the PDE on any matter related to the bidding process, it should do so in writing

29. Evaluation of Bids

- 29.1 The PDE shall use the criteria and methodologies listed in Section 3, Evaluation Methodology and Criteria. No other evaluation criteria or methodology shall be permitted. By applying the set criteria and methodology, the PDE shall determine the Best Evaluated Bid.
- 29.2 If this bidding document allows bidders to quote separate prices for different lots, the methodology to determine the Best Evaluated Bid for a lot shall be as specified in Section 3, Evaluation Methodology and Criteria.

30. Clarification and Changes to Bids

- 30.1 To assist in the examination, evaluation, comparison and post-qualification of the bids, the Procuring and Disposing Entity may, at its discretion, ask any bidder for a clarification of its Bid, including breakdowns of unit rates or prices. Any clarification submitted by a bidder that is not in response to a request by the PDE shall not be considered. The PDE's request for clarification and the Bidder's response shall be in writing and copied to all bidders for information purposes. No change in the prices or substance of the bid shall be sought, offered, or permitted, except to confirm the correction of arithmetic errors discovered by the PDE in the evaluation of the bids, in accordance with ITB 32.
- 30.2 If a bidder does not provide clarifications of its Bid by the date and time set in the PDE's request for clarification, its Bid may be rejected.

31. Compliance and Responsiveness of Bids

- 31.1 The PDE's determination of a bid's compliance and responsiveness is to be based only on the contents of the bid itself with the exception of findings recorded in the Evaluation Report after a due diligence or post qualification.
- 31.2 A substantially compliant and responsive bid is one that conforms to all the terms, conditions, and specifications of the Bidding Document without material deviation, reservation, or omission. A material deviation, reservation, or omission is one that:
 - (a) Affects in any substantial way the scope, quality, or performance of the Works specified in the Contract; or
 - (b) Limits in any substantial way, inconsistent with the Bidding Document, the PDE's rights or the Bidder's obligations under the Contract; or
 - (c) If rectified would unfairly affect the competitive position of other Bidders presenting substantially compliant and responsive bids.
 - (d) Impacts the key factors of a procurement including cost, risk, time and quality and causes -
 - (i) Unacceptable time schedules, where it is stated in the bidding document that time is of the essence;
 - (ii) Unacceptable alternative technical details, such as design, materials, workmanship, specifications, standards or methodologies; or unacceptable counter-bids with respect to key contract terms and conditions, such as payment terms, price adjustment, liquidated damages, sub-contracting or warranty.
- 31.3 If a bid is not substantially compliant and responsive to the Bidding Document, it shall be rejected by the PDE and may not subsequently be made compliant and responsive by the Bidder by correction of the material deviation, reservation, or omission.

32. Nonconformities, Errors, and Omissions

- 32.1 Provided that a bid is substantially compliant and responsive, the PDE may waive any non-conformity or omission in the bid that does not constitute a material deviation.
- 32.2 Provided that a bid is substantially compliant and responsive, the PDE may request that the bidder submit the necessary information or documentation, within a reasonable period of time, to rectify nonmaterial nonconformities or omissions in the bid related to documentation requirements. Such omission shall not be related to any aspect of the price of the bid. Failure of the didder to comply with the request may result in the

rejection of its bid.

- 32.3 Provided that a bid is substantially compliant and responsive, the PDE shall rectify nonmaterial nonconformities or omissions. To this effect, the bid price shall be adjusted, for comparison purposes only, to reflect the price of the missing or non-conforming item or component. The cost of any missing items will be added to the bid price using the highest price from other bids submitted.
- 32.4 Provided that the bid is substantially compliant and responsive, the PDE shall correct arithmetic errors on the following basis:
 - (a) If there is a discrepancy between the unit price and the total price that is obtained by multiplying the unit price and quantity, the unit price shall prevail and the total price shall be corrected, unless in the opinion of the PDE there is an obvious misplacement of the decimal point in the unit price, in which case the total price as quoted shall govern and the unit price shall be corrected;
 - (b) If there is an error in a total corresponding to the addition or subtraction of subtotals, the subtotals shall prevail and the total shall be corrected; and
 - (c) If there is a discrepancy between words and figures, the amount in words shall prevail, unless the amount expressed in words is related to an arithmetic error, in which case the amount in figures shall prevail subject to (a) and (b) above.
- 32.5 If a bidder does not accept the correction of errors, the bid shall be rejected and the BS may be forfeited or conditions in the BSD executed.

33. Stages of Evaluation: Using the Technical Compliance Selection Evaluation Method

The evaluation of a bid for the procurement of works using the technical compliance evaluation method shall be conducted under the following stages:

34. Preliminary Examination of Bids – Eligibility and Administrative Compliance

- 34.1 The PDE shall examine the legal documentation to establish the eligibility of the bidders and to verify the validity and authenticity of the documents submitted by the bidder.
- 34.2 If after the examination of eligibility, the PDE determines that the bid is not compliant, it shall reject the bid with the exception of rectification of omissions in accordance with ITB 32.2.
- 34.3 The PDE shall confirm that the following administrative compliance documents and information have been provided in the bid. If any of these documents or information is missing or contrary to the requirements in the bidding document, the bid shall be rejected.
 - (a) The Bid Submission Sheet duly signed by the authorized representative of the bidder, including:
 - i. A brief description of the works and related services offered;
 - ii. The total price of the bid; and
 - iii. The appropriate duration of the bid validity;
 - (b) The Price Schedule;
 - (c) A Power of Attorney in accordance with ITB 22.2; and
 - (d) An authentic Bid Security or Bid Securing Declaration, whichever is applicable, in the appropriate form and amount.

Page 24 of 154

34.4 Eligibility and administrative compliance shall be determined on a pass or fail basis and a bid which is not eligible or administratively compliant shall be rejected at the preliminary stage of evaluation

35. Detailed Evaluation

- 35.1 The PDE shall examine the technical aspects of the Bid submitted in accordance with ITB 16, in particular, to confirm that all requirements of Section 6, SORs have been met without any material deviation, reservation or omission.
- 35.2 The determination shall be based upon an examination of the documentary evidence of the Bidder's qualifications submitted by the Bidder, pursuant to ITB Clause 5, to clarifications in accordance with ITB Clause 30 and the qualification criteria indicated in Section 3, Evaluation Methodology and Criteria.
- 35.3 If, after the examination of the terms, conditions and requirements, the PDE determines that the bid is not substantially responsive in accordance with ITB 31, it shall reject the bid.

36. Currency and Exchange Rate

- 36.1 The currency that shall be used for evaluation purposes for all bids shall be Uganda Shillings unless otherwise authorized by a competent authority.
- 36.2 The exchange rate shall be the prevailing Bank of Uganda exchange rate at the date of bid submission deadline.

37. Financial Comparison of Bids

- 37.1 The PDE will evaluate and compare only the bids determined to be substantially responsive following detailed evaluation in accordance with ITB 37.3.
- 37.2 To financially evaluate a bid, the PDE shall only use the criteria and methodologies defined in this clause and in Section 3, Evaluation Methodology and Criteria. No other criteria or methodology shall be permitted.
- 37.3 To financially compare bids, the PDE shall:
 - (a) Correct any arithmetic errors in accordance with ITB 30.1;
 - (b) Apply any discounts offered in accordance with ITB 17;
 - (c) Make adjustments for any deviation that is not a material deviation in accordance with ITB 32;
 - (d) Convert all bids to a single currency in accordance with ITB 18;
 - (e) Apply any margin of preference, in accordance with ITB 38;
 - (f) Determine the total evaluated price of each bid.
- 37.4 The PDE shall consider prices that appear to:
 - (a) Be unbalanced;
 - (b) Show a misunderstanding of the requirements; or
 - (c) Be intended to front load earnings.
- 37.5 The PDE reserves the right to accept or reject any variation, deviation, or alternative offer. Variations, deviations, and alternative offers and other factors which are in excessof the requirements of the bidding documents or otherwise result in unsolicited benefits for the PDE will not be taken into account in bid evaluation, unless otherwise specified in Section 3, Evaluation Methodology and Criteria.
- 37.6 The estimated effect of any price adjustment conditions under Clause 47 of the GCC,

during the period of implementation of the Contract, will not be taken into account in bid evaluation, unless otherwise indicated in Section 3, Evaluation Methodology and Criteria.

38. Margin of Preference

- 38.1 Unless otherwise specified in the BDS, a margin of preference shall apply. Where a Margin of Preference applies, its application and detail shall be specified in Section 3, Evaluation Methodology and Criteria.
- 38.2 For the purpose of granting a margin of domestic preference, bids will be classified in one of three groups, as follows:
 - (a) Group A: Bids from contractors incorporated or registered in Uganda with more than fifty percent of the bidder's shareholding owned by Ugandan citizens or by the Government or a procuring and disposing entity of Uganda;
 - (b) Group B: Bids from joint ventures, consortium or associations registered in Uganda and including a contractor qualifying under the conditions in paragraph (a) which holds more than fifty percent beneficiary interest in the joint venture, consortium or association; and
 - (c) Group C: All other bids which do not qualify for preference under paragraphs (a) or (b).
- 38.3 Bidders claiming eligibility for a Margin of Preference must complete the declarations in the bid submission sheet and shall provide the following documentary evidence of their eligibility:
 - (a) National Identity Card or copies of key passport pages to establish the nationality of the bidder or shareholder;
 - (b) The relevant company forms or its equivalent indicating the shareholding percentages.

39. Post-qualification Evaluation

- 39.1 The PDE shall determine to its satisfaction whether the Bidder that is selected as having submitted the best evaluated bid is qualified to perform the Contract satisfactorily.
- 39.2 An affirmative determination shall be a prerequisite for award of the Contract to the Bidder. A negative determination shall result in disqualification of the bid, in which event the PDE shall proceed to the next best evaluated bid to make a similar determination of that Bidder's capabilities to perform satisfactorily.
- 39.3 Post-qualification will be conducted in accordance to the PPDA Act, 2003.

40. Determination of Best Evaluated Bid

The best evaluated bid shall be the lowest priced bid which is eligible, administratively and technically compliant to the requirements specified in the bidding document.

F. Award of Contract

41. Award Procedure and Notice of Best Evaluated Bidder

- 41.1 An award decision by the Contracts Committee is not a contract. The bidder with the best evaluated bid shall be awarded the contract following an adjudication by theContracts Committee.
- 41.2 The PDE shall issue a Notice of Best Evaluated Bidder (NOBEB) within five (5) working days after the decision of the Contracts Committee to award a contract, deliver a copy of the notice to all bidders who participated in the bidding process, place such Notice on its notice board for display for ten (10) working days and publish it on the website of the Authority. The computation of the ten (10) working days shall commence from the next day following the display of the notice.
- 41.3 No contract shall be signed within the period of ten (10) working days after the date of display of the best evaluated bidder notice.
- 41.4 Negotiations will only be held in exceptional circumstances as provided for under the PPDA Act 2003.

42. PDE's Right to Accept Any Bid And to Reject Any or all Bids

The PDE reserves the right to accept or reject any bid and to cancel the bidding process at any time prior to contract award, without thereby incurring any liability.

43. Confirmation of Award

An award shall be confirmed by a written contract signed by both the bidder and the PDE.

44. Signing and Effectiveness of Contract

- 44.1 On expiry of the ten (10) working day period after display of the best evaluated bidder notice and upon approval by the Attorney General where applicable, the PDE shall promptly sign a contract with the successful Bidder.
- 44.2 Failure by the successful bidder to promptly sign the contract shall constitute sufficient ground for annulment of the contract award decision and forfeiture of the Bid Security or execution of the Bid Securing Declaration. In that event, the PDE may award the Contract to the next best ranked bidder whose bid was evaluated at the financial comparison stage.
- 44.3 Effectiveness of the contract shall be subject to submission of a satisfactory performance security where applicable and any other conditions specified in the Contract.
- 44.4 A contract shall not be entered into by an Accounting Officer with a bidder during the period of administrative review as provided for under the PPDA Act, 2003.

45. Debriefing of Bidders

45.1 The bidder shall be provided with information on the reasons for the failure of its bid in the notice of best evaluated bidder.

46. Performance Security

46.1 Within twenty-one (21) calendar days after signing of the contract, the successful bidder shall where applicable, furnish to the PDE a Performance Security and, if required in the BDS, the Environmental and Social (ES) Performance Security in the amountstipulated in the SCC and in the form of an on demand Bank Guarantee as stipulated in Section 9, denominated in the type and proportions of the currencies of the Contract.

Page 27 of 154

The Performance Security shall be issued by a Bank located in Uganda or a foreign Bank through correspondence with a Bank located in Uganda.

46.2 Failure of the successful bidder to submit the above-mentioned Performance Security and, if required in the BDS, the Environmental and Social (ES) Performance Security, shall constitute sufficient ground for annulment of the contract award decision. In this case, or where the successful bidder fails to sign the contract as stated in ITB Clause 44.2, the successful Bidder's Bid Security shall be forfeited or the conditions of the Bid Securing Declaration shall be executed.. In that event, the PDE may award the contract to the next best ranked bidder whose bid was evaluated at the financial comparison stage.

47. Administrative Review

- 47.1 Bidders may seek an Administrative Review for any omission or breach by the PDE in accordance with the Public Procurement and Disposal of Public Assets Act, 2003, any regulations or guidelines made under the Act.
- 47.2 The PDE shall promptly provide a bidder who seeks administrative review with:
 - (a) A summary of the evaluation process
 - (b) A comparison of the tenders, proposals, or quotations including the evaluation criteria used, and
 - (c) The reasons for rejecting the concerned bids.
 - (d) The details of the applicable administrative review fees and the account to which the fees are to be paid

Instructions to **Bidders** Data relevant to the ITB Reference The Procuring and Disposing Entity is: -**ITB 1.1 Ministry of Water and Environment ITB 1.1** The works consist of: Supply, Installation and Commissioning of 40 Solar Photovoltaic (PV) Energy Packages for Water Supply Schemes The Procurement Reference Number of the Contract is: **ITB 1.1** MWE/SUPLS/23-24/00007/1/2/3/4 **ITB 1.1** The number and identification of lots comprising this Bidding Document is: Four (4); Lot 1, Lot 2, Lot 3 and Lot 4 The minimum and maximum number of lots a bidder may bid for is: One (1) and Two (2) respectively. The PDE shall be holding a pre-bid meeting. **ITB 9.3** It shall take place at: Location: Ministry of Water and Environment, Plot 3-7 Kabalega Crescent Road, Luzira 8th December 2023 Date: Time: 11:00 a.m. **ITB 9.5** Site visit shall not be a mandatory requirement. For clarification purposes only, the Procuring and Disposing Entity's address **ITB 12.1** is: Head, Procurement and Disposal Unit Attention: Street Address: Plot 3-7 Kabalega Crescent Road, Luzira **Procurement and Disposal Unit, Ground Floor** Floor: City: Kampala P.O Box No: 20026 Country: Uganda Telephone: +256 417 889 400 Electronic mail address: john.katerega@mwe.go.ug with copies to kateregga9@gmail.com, allan.mugabi@gmail.com and peter.nvakana@gmail.com The Procuring and Disposing Entity will respond to any request for **ITB 12.1** clarification provided that such request is received no later than 14 days before submission deadline. The bidder shall submit with its bid the following additional documents: ITB 15.1(i)

Section 2: Bid Data Sheet

Instructions to Bidders Reference	Data relevant to the ITB
	 i. Technical Data sheets and Manufacturer's brochures for solar modules, water pumps, water-pumping inverters. ii. Type-Test and Approval certificates from an international recognised test laboratory and ISO certificates for periodic quality control for factory manufacturing solar-PV modules, water pumps and water pumping-inverters. iii. Manufacturer's Authorisation in the format provided for the following key equipment for inverters, water pumps and solar modules. iv. Warranty and Guarantee policy of the manufacturer for inverters, water pumps and solar modules. v. Code of Conduct for Contractor's Personnel (ES) The Bidder shall submit its Code of Conduct that will apply to Contractor's Personnel employed for the execution of Installation Services at the Site to ensure compliance with the Contract. The Bidder shall use for this purpose the Code of Conduct form provided in Section IV. No substantial modifications shall be made to this form, except that the Bidder may introduce additional requirements, including as necessary to take into account specific Contract issues/risks. vi. The Bidder shall submit Management Strategies and Implementation Plans (MSIP) to manage the key Environmental, Social, Health and Safety (ESHS) risks including OHS as referred in sub-section 4 under section VI Employers requirement in the Bidding document and Volume 3 (ESMP). NOTE: For bidders submitting bids for both lots, a separate bid shall be submitted for each Lot.

Instructions to Bidders Reference	Data relevant to the ITB		
ITB 18.2	The Authority for specifying rates of exchange shall be the Bank of Uganda .		
ITB 18.3	Foreign currency requirements. Shall be payable in different foreign currencies		
ITB 19.1	The Bid shall be valid until: One Hundred Twenty (120) days from the date of bid submission , i.e., 29 th March 2024		
ITB 19.3	The prices quoted by the Bidder shall not be subject to adjustment during the performance of the Contract.		
ITB 20.1	A Bid Security shall be required.		
ITB 20.2	The amount and currency of the Bid Security shall be;		
	i. Lot 1: USD 35,000.00 (United States Dollars Thirty-Five thousand only) or its equivalent in a freely convertible currency.		
	 ii. Lot 2: USD 35,000.00 (United States Dollars Thirty-Five thousand only) or its equivalent in a freely convertible currency. 		
	iii. Lot 3: USD 35,000.00 (United States Dollars Thirty-Five thousand on or its equivalent in a freely convertible currency.		
	iv. Lot 4: USD 35,000.00 (United States Dollars Thirty-Five thousand only)		
	Should the issuing bank of the unconditional bank guarantee be located outside Uganda, it shall have a correspondent Bank in the Republic of Uganda to make it enforceable.		
	Note: Bid Security is required for each lot as per amounts indicated against each lot. Bidders have the option of submitting one Bid Security for all lots (for the combined total amount of all lots) for which Bids have been submitted, however if the amount of Bid Security is less than the total required amount, the Employer will determine for which lot or lots the Bid Security amount shall be applied.		
ITB 20.3	The Bid Security shall be valid until: Twenty Eight (28) days beyond the bid validity date, i.e., 26 th April 2024		
ITB 21.1	Alternative Bids shall not be considered.		

ITB 22.1	In addition to the original of the Bid, the number of copies required is: Three (3)			
ITB 22.2	The written confirmation of authorization to sign on behalf of the Bidder shall be:			
	A Registered Power of Attorney if drawn and signed in Uganda; or a notarized Power of Attorney if drawn and signed outside Uganda.			
ITB 23.1	For bid submission purposes only, the Procuring and Disposing Entity's address is:			
	Attention:Head, Procurement and Disposal UnitStreet Address:Plot 3-7 Kabalega Crescent Road, LuziraFloor:Procurement and Disposal Unit, Ground FloorCity:KampalaP.O Box No:20026Country:Uganda			
ITB 24.1	The deadline for Bid submission is: Date: 17 th January 2024 Time: 11.00 a.m. Ugandan Time			
	Bidders shall not have the option of submitting their Bids electronically.			

Part 1: Section 2 Bid Data Sheet

Instructions to Bidders Reference	Data relevant to the ITB	
ITB 27.1	The Bid opening shall take place at:	
	Street Address: Plot 3-7 Kabalega Crescent, Luzira	
	Floor: Procurement and Disposal Unit - Ground Floor	
	City: Kampala	
	Country: Uganda	
	Date: 17 th January 2024	
	Time: 11:05 a.m. Ugandan time	
ITB 32.3	The adjustments shall be determined using the following criteria, from amongst those set out in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria:	
	(a) Deviation in Time for Completion: Yes;	
	 Time to complete the Plant and Installation Services from the effective date specified in Article 3 of the Contract Agreement for determining time for completion of precommissioning activities is: 450 days. No credit will be given for earlier completion. 	
	(b) Life cycle costs: the projected operating and maintenance costs during the life of the Facilities Yes;	
	 The operating and maintenance costs factors for calculation of the life cycle cost are: (i) Number of years for life cycle should be minimum 25 years. (ii) Maintenance costs for major plant & equipment (Solar modules, Inverter and Pumps), during the period of operation (25years), to be specified by the Bidder. Present Value cost for O&M shall be calculated as indicated below; O&M Cost PV = FV ÷ (1+r)ⁿ 	
	 Where FV is the future O&M value, PV is the present value (current investment cost of plant) r is the discount rate n is the number of periods (iii) The future O&M value shall only apply for water pumps for which a replacement will be done. The solar modules design life should be 25 years, water pump shall be 8years whereas the controller shall be 15years Page 33 of 154 	

Part 1: Section 2 Bid Data Sheet

rt 1: Section 2	Bid Data Shee	t
	(iv) Rate, in percent, to be used to discount to present value, annual future costs calculated under (ii) and (iii) above for period specified in (i) shall be 15%	
	Present Value cost of the Bid O&M for a scheme designed for 25 years will be at a 15% discount rate. The price of recommended spare parts quoted in Price Schedule No. 6 shall not be considered for evaluation.	
	(c) Functional Gua	arantees of the Facilities Yes;
	Functional Guarantee	Minimum (as appropriate) Requirement
	A. Productio	n Capacity
	1. Solar- PV array	Fill-Factor: higher than 0.77, Power (plus voltage and current) output of each solar module and the entire array at maximum power point is equal or higher than nameplate value by 5%. Tolerance for temperature de-rating to be +5% and -2%.
	2.Power Inverter	Peak Efficiency above 95% (Power output/Power input). Output Voltage shall be 240V (single phase) and 415V three-phase). Tolerance is 5% during low power supply conditions.
	3.Water Pump	Deliver 100% of the rated water pumping requirements (m3/hour or m3/day) at maximum power conditions. Pump is expected to start pumping at 50% of maximum power requirement, and subsequently work in variable speed or frequency with variations for power input of 50%, 60%, 70%, 80%, 90% with maximum results at 100% power supply (at solar insolation of 900-1000W/m2).
	B. Raw Mate	erials and Utilities Consumption
	1. Solar modules	Shall be guaranteed for 25-years with 10% de- rating for the first 10-years, and 20% de-rating within 20 years. The efficiency of solar-PV cells shall be minimum 14% and solar modules total efficiency of minimum 13%.

Part 1: Section 2 Bid Data Sheet

	loss/Voltage Drop	Power losses or Voltage drop across all nodes/junctions in the entire electrical system shall not exceed 1% of the power/voltage input value of that node/junction.
	For the purposes of evaluation, for each percentage point that the functional guarantee of the proposed Plant and Installation Services is below the norm specified in the Specification and in the above table, but above the minimum acceptable levels also specified therein, an adjustment of three percent (3%) of the value of the specific component will be added to the tender price. If the drop below the norm or the excess above the minimum acceptable levels is less than one percent, the adjustment will be prorated accordingly.	
ITB 38.1	A margin of preference shall not apply.	
ITB 38.3	The Bidder shall submit with its bid the following documents to evidence that they qualify for a margin of preference: N/A	

Section 3: Evaluation Methodology and Criteria

Procurement Reference Number: MWE/SUPLS/23-24/00007/1/2/3/4

A. Evaluation Methodology

1. Methodology Used

The evaluation methodology to be used for the evaluation of bids received shall be the Technical Compliance Selection (TCS) methodology.

2. Summary of Methodology

- 2.1 The evaluation shall be conducted in four sequential stages
 - (a) A preliminary examination to determine the eligibility of bidders and the administrative compliance of bids received;
 - (b) A detailed evaluation to determine the technical responsiveness of the eligible and compliant bids;
 - (c) A financial comparison to compare costs of the eligible, compliant, responsive bids received and determine the best evaluated bid; and
 - (d) Post qualification to confirm whether the best evaluated bidder has the capacity and resources to effectively execute the procurement
- 2.2 Failure of a bid at any stage of the evaluation shall prevent further consideration at the next stage of evaluation. Substantial responsiveness shall be considered a pass at the detailed evaluation stage.

B. Preliminary Examination Criteria

3. Eligibility Criteria

- 3.1 The eligibility requirements shall be determined in accordance with ITB Clause 4; and
- 3.2 The documentation required to provide evidence of eligibility shall be:-
 - (a) A certificate of registration issued by the Authority for bidders currently registered with the Authority or a copy of the bidder's trading licence or equivalent and a copy of the bidder's certificate of registration or equivalent for bidders not currently registered with the Authority;
 - (b) A statement in the bid submission sheet that the bidder meets the eligibility criteria stated in ITB 4.1 and 4.4;
 - (c) A declaration in the bid submission sheet of nationality of the bidder;
 - (d) A declaration in the bid submission sheet that the bidder is not under suspension by the authority;
 - (e) Fulfilment of obligations to pay taxes and social security contributions in Uganda where applicable.
- 3.3 For Joint Venture or Consortiums or Associations;
 - a) A registered Power of Attorney from each member or partner if drawn and signed in Uganda; or a notarized Power of Attorney if drawn and signed outside Uganda, nominating a representative to conduct all business on its behalf during the bid preparation, bidding process and contract execution in

case of award of the contract.

- b) The documentation in Section 3.2 for each member or partner and a copy of the Joint Venture / Consortium / Association Agreement which is legallybinding on all partners or members stating that:
 - (i) The partners or members shall jointly submit a bid;
 - (ii) One of the parties will be nominated as lead member or partner to act for and on behalf of all members or partners;
 - (iii) The authorized representative of the lead member or partner who was granted power of attorney shall sign the bid;
 - (iv) In the event that the bid is successful, the contract shall be executed in the name of the Joint Venture (JV), Consortium or Association and each member or partner shall sign the contract agreement; and
 - (v) All partners shall be jointly and severally liable for the implementation of the contract in accordance with the contract terms.

4. Administrative Compliance Criteria

The evaluation of Administrative Compliance criteria shall be conducted in accordance with ITB Clause 34.3.

C. Detailed Evaluation Criteria

5. Assessment of Responsiveness

The assessment of responsiveness will consider the following criteria:

Evaluation of the Bidder's Technical Proposal will include an assessment of the Bidder's work methods, scheduling, material sourcing, environment, health and safety (EHS) policy in sufficient detail and fully in accordance with the requirements stipulated in Works Requirements. Bidder's technical capacity to mobilize key equipment and personnel for the contract consistent with its proposal shall be assessed as well.

The proposed major plant and equipment data sheets shall be assessed in accordance to the provided employer's requirements and functional guarantees.

Bidders established to have been noncompliant to employer's requirements shall be disqualified.

Manufacturer's Authorization

In the case of a Bidder who offers to supply and install major items of supply under the contract that the Bidder did not manufacture or otherwise produce, the Bidder shall provide the manufacturer's authorization, using the form provided in Section IV, showing that the Bidder has been duly authorized by the manufacturer or producer of the related plant and equipment or component to supply and install that item in the Employer's country. The Bidder is responsible for ensuring that the manufacturer or producer or producer complies with the requirements of ITB 4 and 5 and meets the minimum criteria listed above for that item.

Economic Evaluation

The following factors and methods will apply:

- (a) **Time Schedule;** Time to complete the Plant and Installation Services from the effective date specified in Article 3 of the Contract Agreement for determining time for completion of pre-commissioning activities is: 12 months. No credit will be given for earlier completion
- **NOTE:** After Completion of Facilities, including commissioning, there will be 3 months for monitoring of the functionality of the systems; after which successful operation shall lead to Operational Acceptance, complete takeover of facilities by the Employer and commencement of the 24 months Defects Liability Period.

(b) Life Cycle Costs

Since the operating and maintenance costs of the Facilities being procured form a major part of the **life cycle cost** of the Facilities, these costs will be evaluated according to the principles given hereafter, including the cost of spare parts for the initial period of operation stated below and based on prices furnished by each Bidder in Price Schedule Nos. 1 and 2, as well as on past experience of the Employer or other employers similarly placed. Such costs shall be added to the Bid price for evaluation.

<u>Option 1</u>: The operating and maintenance costs factors for calculation of the life cycle cost are:

- (i) number of years for life cycle: *Twenty Five (25) Years*
- (ii) Operation and maintenance costs, for major plant & equipment (Solar modules, Inverter and Pumps), during the period of operation (25 years), to be specified by the Bidder. Present Value cost for O&M shall be calculated as indicated below;

O&M Cost $(PV) = PV \div (1+r)^{n}$;

Where

- FV is the future O&M value,
- PV is the present value (current investment cost of plant)
- r is the discount rate
- n is the number of periods

The future O&M value shall only apply for water pumps for which a replacement will be done. The solar modules design life should be 25 years; water pump shall be 8 years whereas the controller shall be 15 years

(iii) Discount rate: 15% to be used to discount to present value all annual future costs calculated under (ii) above for the period specified in (i).

(c) Functional Guarantees of the Facilities

Functional Guarantees shall be as required in the technical specifications e.g., system performance, efficiency, water yield per hour, volume of water pumped per day (m^3/day) , averaged for 30-calender days during continuous operation of the system, evaluated for a period of 3-months from the date of commissioning.

Page 38 of 154

Minimum requirement for the above functional guarantees shall be 90% of expected water pumping capacity. *Failure of bidders to provide required functional guarantees for major plant & equipment shall amount to rejection of the bid.*

The minimum requirements stated in the Specification for functional guarantees required in the Specification are:

Functional Guarantee	Minimum (as appropriate) Requirement
A. Production Capaci	tv
1. Solar-PV array	Fill-Factor: higher than 0.77, Power (plus voltage and current) output of each solar module and the entire array at maximum power point is equal or higher than nameplate value by 5%. Tolerance for temperature derating to be +5% and -2%.
2.Power Inverter	Peak Efficiency above 95% (Power output/Power input). Output Voltage shall be 240V (single phase) and 415V three-phase). Tolerance is 5% during low power supply conditions.
3.Water Pump	Deliver 100% of the rated water pumping requirements $(m^3/hour \text{ or } m^3/day)$ at maximum power conditions. Pump is expected to start pumping at 50% of maximum power requirement, and subsequently work in variable speed or frequency with variations for power input of 50%, 60%, 70%, 80%, 90% with maximum results at 100% power supply (at solar insolation of 900-1000W/m ²)
B. Raw Mater	ials and Utilities Consumption
1. Solar modules	Shall be guaranteed for 25-years with 10% de-rating for the first 10-years, and 20% de-rating within 20 years. The efficiency of solar-PV cells shall be minimum 14% and solar modules total efficiency of minimum 13%.
2.Power loss/Voltage Drop	Power losses or Voltage drop across all nodes/junctions in the entire electrical system shall not exceed 1% of the power/voltage input value of that node/junction.

For the purposes of evaluation, for each percentage point that the functional guarantee of the proposed Plant and Installation Services is below the norm specified in the Specification and in the above table, but above the minimum acceptable levels also specified therein, an adjustment of <u>three percent (3%)</u> will be added to the Bid price. If the drop below the norm or the excess above the minimum acceptable levels is less than one percent, the adjustment will be prorated accordingly.

Page 39 of 154

6. Mobilization

Evaluation of the responsiveness of the bid to the technical requirements will include an assessment of the bidder's capacity to mobilize key equipment and personnel for the contract consistent with its proposal regarding work methods, scheduling, and material sourcing in sufficient detail and fully in accordance with the requirements stipulated in Section 6 (Statement of Requirements).

6.1 Personnel and Equipment

A. Equipment

The The Bidder must demonstrate that it will have access to the key Contractor's equipment listed hereafter:

No.	Equipment Type and Characteristics	Μ	inimum Nu	mber requ	ired
		Lot 1	Lot 2	Lot 3	Lot 4
1	Tipper truck of 14 ton capacity	2	2	2	2
2	Pickup truck of 1 ton capacity	2	2	2	2
3	Concrete mixers (at least 1.5m ³ capacity)	2	2	2	2
4	Poker vibrator 12 to 25 mm diameter	2	2	2	2
5	Plate compactor, 700Kg	2	2	2	2
6	Pipe pressure testing equipment	2	2	2	2
7	Air compressor with rock breakers	2	2	2	2
8	Survey Equipment (Total station)	2	2	2	2
9	Mobile welding set 350 amps	2	2	2	2
10	Mobile electric generator, 10 kVA	2	2	2	2
11	Electronic Water Flow Meter	2	2	2	2
12	Array Testers	2	2	2	2

The Bidder shall provide further details of proposed items of equipment using the relevant Form in Section IV.

B. Personnel

The bidder must demonstrate that it will have the personnel for the key positions that meet the following requirements:

No.	Position	Lot 1	Lot 2	Lot 3	Lot 4	Total Work Experience (years)	Similar Works Experience (years)	Academic / Education Qualifications
1	Construction Manager	1No.	1No.	1No.	1No.	10	5	Minimum Engineering Degree in Electrical/Energy/Mechanical/Water, 5 years specific experience in solar PV water pumping systems with three (3) projects of similar nature, size and must be a registered engineer with UIPE/ERB
2	Technical Supervisor	2No.	2No.	2No.	2No.	<u>5</u>	5	Minimum Diploma in Electrical/ Civil /Mechanical Engineering specific experience in solar PV, electrical installation, power inverters and water pumping systems with 3 projects of similar nature and size.
3	Field Technicians	15No.	15No.	15No.	15No.	<u>3</u>	3	Minimum Advanced Certificate (Craft-Grade III) in Electrical/ Civil /Mechanical Engineering and 3 years' general experience and specific experience in solar PV, electrical installation, power inverters and water pumping systems with 2 projects of similar nature.
4	Environment officer	1No.	1No.	1No.	1No	<u>5</u>	2	Minimum qualification in Bachelor of Environmental Science degree or other related degree from a recognized university, with a minimum of five years' experience in undertaking at least two similar assignments in relation to ESMP implementation and monitoring
5	Occupational, Health and Safety Officer	1No	1No	1No	1No	<u>5</u>	2	Minimum of Diploma in Occupational Health and Safety, minimum of five years' experience in undertaking at least two similar assignments
6	Sociologist	1No	1No	1No	1No	<u>5</u>	2	Minimum of Bachelor's degree in sociology or other related field of Social Sciences from a recognized University/institution, minimum of five years' experience in undertaking at least two similar assignments in relation to ESMP implementation and monitoring.

- A bidder submitting for more than one Lot **MUST** submit different personnel for each Lot.
- > In case of Joint Venture, the JV proportion **MUST** be reflected in the percentage of staff belonging to each of the JV members.
- For any position, equivalent academic/education qualifications in a related field/discipline will be acceptable.
- All the key-personnel listed below shall be fluent in the English language, both written and spoken.
- > The Bidder shall demonstrate that the personnel for key positions meet the following minimum requirements:

The Bidder shall provide details of the Contractor's Representative and other key personnel and such other key personnel that the Bidder considers appropriate to perform the Contract, together with their academic qualifications and work experience. The Bidder shall complete the relevant Forms in Section IV, Bidding Forms.

Page 42 of 154

6.2 Qualification

Factor	Historical Contract Non-Per					
		C	riteria			
Sub-Factor			Bi	dder		Documentation
	Requirement	~ .	Joint Ventur	re, Consortium o	or Association	Required
	requirement	Single Entity	All partners combined	Each partner	At least one partner	
6.2.1 History of non- performing contracts	Non-performance of a contract did not occur within the last five (5) years prior to the deadline for application submission, based on all information on fully settled disputes or litigation.	Must meet requirement by itself or as partner to past or existing JV	N / A	Must meet requirement by itself or as partner to past or existing JV	N / A	Form 5
6.2.2 Pending Litigation	All pending litigation shall in total not represent more than ten percent (10%) of the Bidder's net worth and shall be treated as resolved against the Bidder.	Must meet requirement by itself or as partner to past or existing JV	N / A	Must meet requirement by itself or as partner to past or existing JV	N / A	Form 5A

Page 43 of 154

Factor	Historical Contract Non-Pe	rformance				
		C	riteria			
Sub-Factor			Bi	dder		Documentation
	Requirement		Joint Ventur	re, Consortium a	or Association	Required
	Requirement	Single Entity	All partners combined	Each partner	At least one partner	
6.2.3 Declaration: Environmental, Social, Health, and Safety (ESHS) past performance	Declare any civil work contracts that have been suspended or terminated and/or performance security called by an employer for reasons related to the non- compliance of any environmental, or social, or health or safety requirements or safeguard in the past five years ¹ .	Must makethe declaration. Where there are Specialized Sub- contractor/s, the Specialized Sub- contractor/s must also make the declaration.	N/A	Must make the declaration. Where there are Specialized Sub- contractor/s, the Specialized Sub- contractor/s must also make the declaration.	N/A	Form 5B ESHS Performance Declaration

 $^{^{1}}$ The Employer may use this information to seek further information or clarifications in carrying out its due diligence.

Factor	Financial Situation and Perforn	nance				
			Bi	dder		
Sub-Factor	Requirement	G: 1	Joint	Venture, Conso Association	rtium or	Documentation Required
		Single Entity	All partners combined	Each partner	At least one partner	
6.2.4 Historical Financial Performance	 Submission of audited balance sheets or if not required by the law of the Bidder's Country, other financial statements acceptable to the Employer, for the last three (3) years to demonstrate the current soundness of the Bidders financial position and its prospective long term profitability. Current ratio ≥ 1.0 Profitability with a minimum net profit margin of 10% 	Must meet requirement	N / A	Must meet requirement	N / A	Form 6 and audited financial statements
6.2.5 Average Annual Turnover	Minimum average annual turnover in works-installation of; Lot 1: United States Dollars Three million, five hundred thousand (USD3,500,000) or its equivalent in a convertible currency calculated as total certified payments received for contracts in progress or completed, within the last three	Must meet requirement	Must meet requirement	Must meet sixty percent (60%) of the requirement	Must meet sixty percent (60%) of the requirement	Form 7 and audited financial statements

Bidding Document for the Procurement of Works under Open or Restricted Bidding, September 2019

	r	

Page 46 of 154

Factor	Financial Situation and Perforn	nance				
			Bi	dder		
Sub-Factor	Requirement	Chu al a	Joint V	Venture, Consol Association	rtium or	Documentation Required
		Single Entity	All partners combined	Each partner	At least one partner	
Resources	 access to, or availability of, financial resources such as liquid assets, unencumbered real assets, lines of credit, and other financial means, other than any contractual advance payments to meet: (i) the following cash-flow requirement: Lot 1: United States Dollars Seven Hundred thousand (USD 700,000) or its equivalent in a convertible currency Lot 2: United States Dollars Seven Hundred thousand (USD 700,000) or its equivalent in a convertible currency Lot 3: United States Dollars Seven Hundred thousand (USD 700,000) or its equivalent in a convertible currency Lot 3: United States Dollars Seven Hundred thousand (USD 700,000) or its equivalent in a 	requirement	requirement	Must meet sixty percent (60%) of the requirement	Must meet Eighty percent (80%) of the requirement	credit
	convertible currency Lot 4: United States Dollars Seven Hundred thousand (USD 700,000) or its equivalent in a convertible currency and					

(ii) the overall of			
requirements fo	r this contract		
and its current of	commitments.		
Lot 1: United S	tates Dollars		
Four Hundred t	nousand (USD		
400,000) or its	equivalent in a		
convertible curr	ency		
Lot 2: United S	tates Dollars		
Four Hundred t	housand (USD		
400,000) or its	equivalent in a		
convertible curr			
	tates Dollars Four		
Hundred thousa	nd (USD		
400,000) or its			
convertible curr			
United States D	•		
Hundred thousa			
400,000) or its			
convertible curr			
	j		

Page 48 of 154

Factor	Experience					
		Crit	eria			
Sub-Factor			Bidd r	le		Documentatio
Sub-ractor	Requirement		Joint Ve	enture, Conso orAssociatio		nRequired
		Single Entity	All partners combined	Each partner	At least one partner	
6.2.7 General Experience	Experience in Water and Energy contracts in the role of contractor, subcontractor, or management contractor for at least the last eight (8) years starting 1 st January 2016.	Must meet requirement	N / A	Must meet requirement	N / A	Form 9 and Certificates of Completion or Substantial Completion
6.2.8 Specific Experience	 Participation as contractor, joint venture member¹, management contractor, or subcontractor, in at least two (2) contracts within the last eight (8) years, each with a value of at least 1) Lot-1: US\$ 1,000,000 (One million) 2) Lot-2: US\$ 1,000,000 (One million) 3) Lot-3: US\$ 1,000,000 (One million) 4) Lot-4: US\$ 1,000,000 (One million) 	Must meet requirement	Must meet requirements for all characteristics	N / A	Must meet requirement for one characteristic	Form 10 and Certificates of Completion or Substantial Completion

¹ For contracts under which the Bidder participated as a joint venture member or sub-contractor, only the Bidder's share, by value, shall be considered to meet this requirement

Page 50 of 154

Factor	Experience					
			Bio	lder		
Sub-Factor	Requirement	Single Entity		ture, Consor Association	rtium or	Documentation Required
		Single Entry	All partners combined	Each partner	At least one partner	Kequireu
6.2.9 Specific Experience	 (b) For the above or other contracts executed during the period stipulated in 4.2(a) above, a minimum experience in the following key activities: i) Installation of 5 standalone Solar PV arrays (5-90kWp), ii) Installation of Submersible 3-phase AC water pump(3-55kW) including accessories iii) Installation of AC 3-phase pump controller 5 in number (3.7-55kW) with dry run protection iv) Installation of alarm systems in number with detection based mechanical vibrations, lightening system v) Training of Water user committees in O&M for solar water pumping systems installed vi) Construction of sanitation facilities, pump house, guard house, chain-link fence. vii) Plumbing works Working concurrently in different remotely located rural sites. 	Must meet requirements	Must meet requirements	N/A	Must meet requirements	Form 10 and copies of the contracts providing the scope of the works

Bidder's shall also provide information and documentation of:-

- (a) Authority to seek references from the bidder's bankers; and
- (b) Proposals for subcontracting components of the works amounting to more than 10 percent of the Contract Price.

NOTE:

Subcontractors' experience and resources will not be taken into account in determining the bidder's compliance with the evaluation criteria.

D. Financial Comparison Criteria

7. Costs to be included in the Bid Price

- 7.1 The financial comparison shall be conducted in accordance with ITB Clause 37.The following costs shall be included in the bid price:
 - (a) the total price given in the Activity Schedule/Bills of Quantities;
 - (b) Day work.
- 7.2 The following costs shall be excluded from the bid price:
 - (a) provisional sums;
 - (b) the provision for contingencies in the Activity Schedule/ Bills of Quantities.

8. Margin of Preference

- 8.1 For margin of preference for the purpose of bid comparison, the following procedures will apply:
- 8.2 The PDE will first review the bids that have reached financial comparison to confirm the appropriateness of the classification, and to identify the bid group classification of each based upon bidders' declarations in the Bid Submission Sheet and supporting evidence on ownership/shareholding of the bidders in accordance with ITB 38.2.
- 8.3 The PDE will then add the following margins to the evaluated bid price of the bid(s) which do not qualify for preference, in accordance with paragraph 8.2 above, for the purpose of further comparison only:
 - A. For bids classified in Groups A and C:

A preference of seven (7) percent shall be added to the evaluated price of the bids in Group C

B. For bids classified in Groups B and C:

A preference of four (4) percent shall be added to the evaluated price of the bids in Group C

8.4 The lowest-evaluated bid shall be determined using the adjusted bid prices including added margins.

9. Determination of Best Evaluated Bid or Bids

9.1 Post qualification evaluation will be carried out on the lowest evaluated bidder as specified below: -

Legal Requirements – Due diligence shall be done to verify ownership of the company and its registration with appropriate body in the country of principal business.

- (i) Technical Requirements–Due diligence shall be done to:
 - (a) Verify and validate the bidder's performance on previous indicated private and public contracts in the bidder's submission.
 - (b) Verify and validate current commitments and litigation record of the bidder.
- (ii) Financial Requirements Due diligence shall be done to verify and ascertain the bidder's financial contracting capacity and bank commitment to provide a credit line to the bidder.
- 9.2 A bidder not meeting any of the above criteria shall be rejected.
- 9.3 The bid with the lowest evaluated price, from among those which are eligible, compliant and substantially responsive and have passed the post-qualification shall be the best evaluated bid. If this Bidding Document includes more than one lot, the best evaluated bid shall be determined separately for each lot.
- 9.4 Notwithstanding paragraph 9.1, if the Bidding Document allows bidders to quote different prices for single lots and for the award to a single bidder of multiple lots, the Procuring and Disposing Entity shall conduct a further financial comparison to apply any conditional discounts. The bid or bids offering the lowest priced combination of all the lots shall be the best evaluated bid or bids.

Additional Evaluation Criteria

In addition to the evaluation criteria listed in Section 3, the following criteria may apply for the Procuring and Disposing Entities:

10 Multiple Contracts

If permitted under additional criteria, will be evaluated as follows:

10.1 Award Criteria for Multiple Contracts: Lots

> Bidders have the option to Bid for any one or more lots. Bids will be evaluated lotwise, taking into account discounts offered, if any, after considering all possible combinations of lots, the contract(s) will be awarded to the Bidder or Bidders offering the lowest evaluated cost to the Procuring and Disposing Entity for combined lots, subject to the selected Bidder(s) meeting the required qualification criteria for lot or combination of lots as the case may be.

12 Alternative Bids for Works

If permitted under ITB 21, alternative bids will be evaluated as follows: An alternative bid shall be evaluated using the methodology and criteria used to evaluate the main bid to which the alternative bid relates.

Section 4: Bidding Forms

Table of Forms

Bid Submission Sheet
Code of Ethical Conduct in Business for Bidders and Providers
Form of Bid Security (Bank Guarantee) 60
Form of Bid-Securing Declaration
Technical Documentation
Site Organization
Method Statement
Mobilization Schedule
Construction Schedule
Code of Conduct for Contractor's Personnel Form
Forms for Key Personnel 72
Form – 1: Proposed Personnel
Form – 2: CV of Proposed Personnel
Forms for Equipment
FORM 375
Qualification Forms
Form 477
Bidder Information Sheet 77
Form 4 A78
Party to JV / Consortium / Association Information Sheet
Form 5
Historical Contract Non-Performance79
Form 5A
Pending Litigation
FORM 5 B
Environmental, Social, Health and Safety Performance Declaration
Form 6
Current Contract Commitments / Works in Progress
FORM 6
Financial Situation
Form 7
Average Annual Turnover
Form 8
Financial Resources
FORM 9

Page 54 of 154

Experience	38
Form 10	39
Specific Experience	39

[This Bid Submission Sheet should be on the letterhead of the Bidder and should be signed by a person with the proper authority to sign documents that are binding on the Bidder]

Bid Submission Sheet

Date: [insert date (as day, month and year) of Bid Submission] Procurement Reference No: [insert Procurement Reference number]

To: [insert complete name of Procuring and Disposing Entity]

We, the undersigned, declare that:

- (a) We have examined and have no reservations to the Bidding Document, including Addenda No.: *[insert the number and issue date of each Addenda]*;
- (b) We offer to execute in conformity with the Bidding Document and in accordance with the completion schedule specified in the Statement of Requirements and the terms and conditions of the Bidding Document, the following works *[insert a brief description of the Works]*;
- (c) The total price of our bid, excluding any discounts offered in item (d) below, is
- (d) The discounts offered and the methodologies for their application are:

Unconditional discounts. If our bid is accepted, the following discounts shall apply. [Specify in detail each discount offered (eg amount/percentage) and the specific item of the Statement of Requirements to which it applies.]

Methodology of application of the unconditional discounts. The unconditional discounts shall be applied using the following method: [Specify precisely the method that shall be used to apply the discounts];

Cross discounts. If our bids for more than one lot are accepted, the following discounts shall apply. [Specify precisely each discount offered (eg amount/percentage) and the conditions for its application.]

Methodology of application of the cross discounts. The cross discounts shall be applied using the following method: [Specify in detail the method that shall be used to apply the discounts];

- (e) Our bid shall be valid until the date specified in ITB Sub-Clause 19.1 and it shall remain binding upon us and may be accepted at any time before that date;
- (f) If our bid is accepted, we commit to obtain a Performance Security in accordance with the Bidding Document in the amount of *[insert amount in words and figures of the Performance Security]* for the due performance of the Contract;
- (g) We, including any subcontractors for any part of the contract resulting from this procurement process, are eligible to participate in public procurement in accordance with ITB Clause 4.1;
- (h) We, including any subcontractors for any part of the contract, have nationals from eligible countries [insert the nationality of the Bidder, including that of all parties that comprise the Bidder, if the Bidder is a joint venture, consortium or association, and the nationality of each subcontractor];
- (i) We are eligible for a Margin of Preference in accordance with ITB Clause 38 and are eligible for inclusion in *[insert Group A or Group B as appropriate]* and enclose documentary evidence of our eligibility;

[or]

We are not eligible for a Margin of Preference in accordance with ITB Clause 38;

- (j) We have signed and undertake to abide by the Code of Ethical Conduct for Bidders and Providers during the procurement process and the execution of any resulting contract;
- (k) We accept the appointment of *[name proposed in Bid Data Sheet]* as the Adjudicator. *[or]*

We do not accept the appointment of *[name proposed in Bidding Data]* as the Adjudicator, and propose instead that *[name]* be appointed as Adjudicator, whose daily fees and biographical data are attached.

- (1) We are not participating, as bidders, in more than one bid in this bidding process, other than alternative bids in accordance with the Bidding Document;
- (m) We, including any subcontractors, do not have any conflict of interest as stated in ITB 4.4 and are not associated, nor have been associated in the past, directly or indirectly, with the consultant or any other entity that has prepared the design, specifications, and other documents for the Project or that is being proposed as Project Manager for the Contract;
- (n) We, including any subcontractors for any part of the contract, have not been suspended by the Public Procurement and Disposal of Public Assets Authority in Uganda from participating in public procurement;
- (o) We understand that you are not bound to accept the lowest bid or any other bid that you may receive.

Signed: [signature of person whose name is shown below]

Name: [insert complete name of person signing the bid]

In the capacity of [insert designation of person signing the bid]

Duly authorised to sign the bid for and on behalf of: [insert complete name of Bidder/Joint Venture]

Dated on ______ day of ______, ___ [insert date of signing]

Code of Ethical Conduct in Business for Bidders and Providers

(Under Section 93 (2) of the Public Procurement and Disposal of Public Assets Act, 2003)

1. Ethical Principles

Bidders and providers shall at all times-

- (a) Maintain integrity and independence in their professional judgement and conduct;
- (b) Comply with both the letter and the spirit of-
 - (i) The laws of Uganda; and
 - (ii) Any executed contract.
- (c) Avoid associations with businesses and organisations which are in conflict with this code.

2. Standards

Bidders and providers shall-

- (a) Strive to provide works, services and supplies of high quality and accept full responsibility for all works, services or supplies provided;
- (b) Comply with the professional standards of their industry or of any professional body of which they are members.

3. Conflict of Interest

Bidders and providers shall not accept contracts which would constitute a conflict of interest with, any prior or current contract with any procuring and disposing entity. Bidders and providers shall disclose to all concerned parties those conflicts of interest that cannot reasonably be avoided or escaped.

4. Confidentiality and Accuracy of Information

- (a) Information given by bidders and providers in the course of procurement processes or the performance of contracts shall be true, fair and not designed to mislead.
- (b) Providers shall respect the confidentiality of information received in the course of performance of a contract and shall not use such information for personal gain.

5. Gifts and Hospitality

Bidders and providers shall not offer gifts or hospitality directly or indirectly, to staff of a Procuring and Disposing Entity that might be viewed by others as having an influence on a procurement decision of the Entity.

6. Inducements

- (a) Bidders and providers shall not offer or give anything of value to influence the action of a public official in the procurement process or in contract execution.
- (b) Bidders and providers shall not ask a public official to do anything which is inconsistent with the Act, Regulations, Guidelines or the Code of Ethical Conduct in Business.

7. Fraudulent Practices

Bidders and providers shall not-

- (a) Collude with other businesses and organisations with the intention of depriving a Procuring and Disposing Entity of the benefits of free and open competition;
- (b) Enter into business arrangements that might prevent the effective operation of fair competition;
- (c) Engage in deceptive financial practices, such as bribery, double billing or other improper financial practices;
- (d) Misrepresent facts in order to influence a procurement process or the execution of a contract to the detriment of the Procuring and Disposing Entity; or utter false documents;
- (e) Unlawfully obtain information relating to a procurement process in order to influence the process or execution of a contract to the detriment of the PDE;

(f) Withholding information from the PDE during contract execution to the detriment of the PDE.

I agree to comply with the above code of ethical conduct in business.

AUTHORISED SIGNATORY

NAME OF BIDDER²

² If the bidder is a JV, Consortium or Association, state the name of the JV, Consortium or Association

[This Bid Security should be on the letterhead of the issuing Financial Institution and should be signed by a person with the proper authority to sign the Bid Security. It should be included by the Bidder in its bid, if so indicated in the BDS]

Form of Bid Security (Bank Guarantee)

Date: [insert date (as day, month and year) of Bid Submission] Procurement Reference No.: [insert Procurement Reference number] To: [insert complete name of Procuring and Disposing Entity]

Whereas, [insert complete name of Bidder/Joint Venture/Consortium/Association] (hereinafter called "the Bidder") has submitted its bid dated [insert date (as day, month and year) of bid submission] for Procurement Reference number [insert Procurement Reference number] for the construction of [insert brief description of the Works].

KNOW ALL PEOPLE by these presents that We [insert complete name of institution issuing the Bid Security] of [insert city of domicile and country of nationality] having our registered office at [insert full address of the issuing institution] (hereinafter called "the Guarantor") are bound unto [insert complete name of Procuring and Disposing Entity] (hereinafter called "the Procuring and Disposing Entity") in the sum of [specify in words and figures the amount and currency of the Bid Security] for which the Guarantor binds itself, its successors or assignees to make payment to the Procuring and Disposing Entity.

Sealed with the Common Seal of the said Guarantor this [insert day in numbers] day of [insert month], [insert year].

THE CONDITIONS of this obligation are:

- (1) If the bidder withdraws its bid during the period of bid validity specified in the bid submission sheet or as provided in ITB Sub-Clause 19.3 or refuses to accept the correction of its bid price pursuant to ITB Clause 32.5; or
- (2) If the bidder having been notified of the acceptance of its bid by the Procuring and Disposing Entity during the period of bid validity fails or refuses to:
 - (a) Sign the Contract in accordance with the ITB Clause 44.2, if required; or
 - (b) Furnish the Performance Security, in accordance with the ITB Clause 46.2, and, if required, the Environmental and Social (ES) Performance Security, in accordance with the Instructions to Bidders ("ITB").

We undertake to pay to the Procuring and Disposing Entity up to the above amount upon receipt of its first written demand, without the Procuring and Disposing Entity's having to substantiate its demand, provided that in its demand the Procuring and Disposing Entity states that the amount claimed by it is due to it, owing to the occurrence of one or more of the above conditions, specifying the occurred conditions.

This security shall remain in force up to and including *[insert date, (day, month and year) in accordance with ITB Clause 19.1 or 19.3]* and any demand in respect thereof should be received by the Guarantor no later than the above date.

This guarantee is subject to the Uniform Rules for Demand Guarantees, ICC Publication No. 758, except that sub – article 20 (a) is hereby excluded.

Signed: [insert signature of person whose name is shown below]

Name: [insert complete name of person signing the Bid Security]

In the capacity of [insert designation of person signing the Bid Security]

Page 60 of 154

Duly authorised to sign the Bid Security for and on behalf of: [insert complete name of Financial Institution]

Dated on ______ day of ______ (month), _____ (year) [insert date of signing]

Form of Bid-Securing Declaration

Date: [insert date (as day, month and year)] Subject of procurement and Ref number.: [insert reference number of procurement process]

To: [insert complete name of Procuring and Disposing Entity]

I/We*, the undersigned, declare as follows:

I/We* understand that, according to the conditions of the Bidding Document, bids must be supported by a Bid Securing Declaration valid until the date indicated in the Bid Data Sheet (BDS).

I/We* accept that I/we* may be suspended by the Authority from being eligible for bidding in any public procurement or disposal process if we are in breach of our obligations under the conditions in the bidding document, because we:

- (a) Have withdrawn our bid during the period of bid validity specified by us in the bid Submission Sheet or as provided in ITB Sub-Clause 19.3 or have refused to accept the correction of our bid price pursuant to ITB Clause 32.5; or
- (b) Having been notified of the acceptance of our bid by the PDE during the period of bid validity, (i) fail or refuse to sign the Contract, if required, or (ii) fail or refuse to furnish the Performance Security, in accordance with the ITB 46.2 or and, if required, the Environmental and Social (ES) Performance Security.

I/We* understand this Bid Securing Declaration shall cease to be valid if I am/we are* not the successful bidder, upon the earlier of:

- (i) The expiry of the notice of best evaluated bidder without any pending administrative review application; or
- (ii) Twenty eight days after the expiration of the validity of my/our* bid.

Signed: [insert signature of person whose name is shown below] In the capacity of [insert designation of person signing the Bid Securing Declaration]

Name: [insert complete name of person signing the Bid Securing Declaration]

Duly authorized to sign the bid for and on behalf of: [insert complete name of Bidder]

Dated on ______ day of ______ (month), _____ (year) [insert date of signing] Corporate Seal (where appropriate)

[Note: In case of a Joint Venture, Consortium or Association the Bid Securing Declaration must be in the name of all partners that submit the bid and signed by the representative duly authorized by the partners.]

*Please delete as appropriate

Page 62 of 154

Technical Documentation

- 1. Site Organization
- 2. Method Statement
- 3. Mobilization Schedule
- 4. Construction Schedule
- 5. Environmental and Social Management Plan
- 6. Code of Conduct for Contractor's Personnel

Site Organization

Provide a detailed description/illustration of the proposed site organization in terms of personnel, offices, materials storage, workshops etc.

Method Statement

Provide a detailed description of the proposed method statement to execute the works

Mobilization Schedule

Provide a detailed description/illustration of the proposed mobilization schedule for materials, equipment, labour etc. including sources.

Construction Schedule

Provide a detailed description/illustration of the proposed construction schedule.

Code of Conduct for Contractor's Personnel Form

Note to the Bidder:

The minimum content of the Code of Conduct Form as set out by the Employer shall not be substantially modified. However, the Bidder may add requirements as appropriate, including to take into account Contract-specific issues/risks.

The Bidder shall initial and submit the Code of Conduct Form as part of its bid.

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR CONTRACTOR'S PERSONNEL

We, [enter name of Bidder], undertake that once we are awarded the contract for[enter description of the works] to be carried out at [enter the site and other locations where the works will be carried out] shall implement measures to address environmental and social risks related to the works, including the risks of sexual exploitation and assault and gender-based violence.

This Code of Conduct is part of our measures to deal with environmental and social risks related to the works. It applies to all our staff, labourers and other employees at the Works Site or other places where the works would be carried out. It also applies to the personnel of each subcontractor and any other personnel assisting us in the execution of the Works. All such persons are referred to as "Contractor's Personnel" and are subject to this Code of Conduct.

This Code of Conduct identifies the behavior that we require from all Contractor's Personnel.

Our workplace is an environment where unsafe, offensive, abusive or violent behavior will not be tolerated and where all persons should feel comfortable raising issues or concerns without fear of retaliation.

REQUIRED CONDUCT

Contractor's Personnel shall:

- 1. Carry out his/her duties competently and diligently;
- 2. Comply with this Code of Conduct and all applicable laws, regulations and other requirements, including requirements to protect the health, safety and well-being of other Contractor's Personnel and any other person;
- 3. Maintain a safe working environment including by:
 - a. Ensuring that workplaces, machinery, equipment and processes under each person's control are safe and without risk to health;
 - b. Wearing required personal protective equipment;
 - c. Using appropriate measures relating to chemical, physical and biological substances and agents; and
 - d. Following applicable emergency operating procedures.

Page 68 of 154

- 4. Report work situations that he/she believes are not safe or healthy and remove himself/herself from a work situation which he/she reasonably believes presents an imminent and serious danger to his/her life or health;
- 5. Treat other people with respect, and not discriminate against specific groups such as women, people with disabilities, migrant workers or children;
- 6. Not engage in any form of sexual harassment including unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and other unwanted verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature with other Contractor's or Employer's Personnel;
- 7. Not engage in Sexual Exploitation, which means any actual or attempted abuse of position of vulnerability, differential power or trust, for sexual purposes, including, but not limited to, profiting monetarily, socially or politically from the sexual exploitation of another.
- 8. Not engage in Sexual Assault, which means sexual activity with another person who does not consent. It is a violation of bodily integrity and sexual autonomy and is broader than narrower conceptions of "rape", especially because (a) it may be committed by other means than force or violence, and (b) it does not necessarily entail penetration.
- 9. Not engage in any form of sexual activity with individuals under the age of 18, except in case of pre-existing marriage;
- 10. Complete relevant training courses that will be provided related to the environmental and social aspects of the contract, including on health and safety matters, and Sexual Exploitation and Assault (SEA);
- 11. Report violations of this Code of Conduct; and
- 12. Not retaliate against any person who reports violations of this Code of Conduct, whether to us or the Employer, or who makes use of the [Project Grievance [Redress] Mechanism].

RAISING CONCERNS

If any person observes behavior that he/she believes may represent a violation of this Code of Conduct, or that otherwise concerns him/her, he/she should raise the issue promptly. This can be done in either of the following ways:

- Contact [enter name of the Contractor's Social Expert with relevant experience in handling gender-based violence, or if such person is not required under the Contract, another individual designated by the Contractor to handle these matters] in writing at thisaddress] or by telephone at [.....] or in person at [.....]; or
- 2. Call [.....] to reach the Contractor's hotline (*if any*) and leave amessage.

The person's identity will be kept confidential, unless reporting of allegations is mandated by the law. Anonymous complaints or allegations may also be submitted and will be given all due and appropriate consideration. We take seriously all reports of possible misconduct and will investigate and take appropriate action. We will provide warm referrals to service providers that may help support the person who experienced the alleged incident, as appropriate.

There will be no retaliation against any person who raises a concern in good faith about any behavior prohibited by this Code of Conduct. Such retaliation would be a violation of this Code of Conduct.

CONSEQUENCES OF VIOLATING THE CODE OF CONDUCT

Any violation of this Code of Conduct by Contractor's Personnel may result in serious consequences, up to and including termination and possible referral to legal authorities.

FOR CONTRACTOR'S PERSONNEL:

Name of Contractor's Personnel: [insert name]

Signature: _____

Date: (day month year):

Countersignature of authorized representative of the Contractor:

Signature:

Date: (day month year): _____

Environmental and Social Management Plan

- a) The Bidder shall submit comprehensive and concise Environment Social Health and Safety Management Plan as required by ITB 15.1 (i) of the Bid Data Sheet. This plan shall describe in detail the actions and management processes etc. that will be implemented by the Contractor, and its subcontractors.
- b) In developing these strategies and plans, the Bidder shall have regard to the ESHS provisions of the contract including those as may be more fully described in theStatement of Requirements in Section 6.

Forms for Key Personnel

Form – 1: Proposed Personnel

Bidders should provide the names of suitably qualified personnel to meet the specified requirements for each of the positions listed in Section 3: Evaluation Methodology and Criteria. The data on their experience should be supplied using the Form below for each candidate.

1.	Title of position
	Name
	Duration of commitment for this position
2.	Title of position
	Name
	Duration of commitment for this position
3.	Title of position
	Name
	Duration of commitment for this position
4.	Title of position:
	Name
	Duration of commitment for this position
5.	Title of position:
	Name
	Duration of commitment for this position
6.	Title of position:
	Name
	Duration of commitment for this position
etc.	Title of position
	Name
	Duration of commitment for this position

Form – 2: CV of Proposed Personnel

The bidder shall provide all the information requested below.

Name	Date of birth			
Professional qualifications	I			
Academic qualifications				
Name of Employer				
Address of Employer				
Telephone	Contact (manager / personnel officer)			
Fax	E-mail			
Job title	Years with present Employer			
	Professional qualificationsAcademic qualificationsName of EmployerAddress of EmployerTelephoneFax			

Summarize professional experience in reverse chronological order. Indicate particular technical and managerial experience relevant to the project.

From	То	Project	Role	Duration in Involvement	Relevance Experience
[Date, Month and Year]	[Date, Month and Year]	[main project details]	[role and responsibilities on the project]	[time in role i.e. Months and Years]	[describe the experience relevant to this position]

Part 1: Section 4 Bidding Forms Declaration

I, the undersigned *[insert name of "Key Personnel"]*, certify that to the best of my knowledge and belief, the information in reference to my data contained in the Forms for Key Personnel correctly describes myself, my qualifications and my experience.

I confirm that I am available as certified in the following table and throughout the expected time schedule for this position as provided in the bid:

Commitment			Details
Commitment contract:	to	duration	[insert period (start and end dates) for which this Contractor's Key Personnel is available to work on this contract]

I understand that any misrepresentation or omission in this Form may:

- 1. Be taken into consideration during bid evaluation;
- 2. Result in my disqualification from participating in the procurement process.

Name of Key Personnel: [insert name]

Signature: _____

Date: (day, month, year):

Countersignature of authorized representative of the Bidder:

Signature:

Date: (day month year):

Forms for Equipment

The bidder shall provide adequate information to demonstrate clearly that it has the capability to meet the requirements for the key equipment listed in Section 3: Evaluation Methodology and Criteria. A separate Form shall be prepared for each item of equipment listed, or for alternative equipment proposed by the bidder. The bidder shall provide all the information requested below, to the extent possible:

FORM 3			
Type of Equi	pment		
Equipment Information	Name of manufacturer	Model and power rating	
	Capacity	Year of manufacture	
Current Status	Current location	I	
Details of current commitments			
Source	Indicate source of the equipment Owned Rented Leased Specially manufactured		
	(Attach evidence of ownership, lease or hire in the form of registration boo agreements or memoranda or purchaser order)		

The following information shall be provided only for equipment not owned by the Bidder.

FORM 3A

Owner	Name of owner					
	Address of owner					
	Telephone Contact name and title					
	Telex					
Agreements	Details of rental / lease / manufacture agreements specific to the project. (Attach evidence of lease or hire in the form of registration books, agreements or memoranda or purchaser order)					

Qualification Forms

To establish its qualifications to perform the contract in accordance with Section 3: Evaluation Methodology and Criteria. The Bidder shall provide the information requested in the corresponding Information Sheets included hereunder:

Form 4

Bidder Information Sheet

Date:

Procurement Reference Number:

1. Bidder's Name ¹ :
2. In case of JV / Consortium / Association, state name of each party in Form 4A
3. Bidder's Country of Registration / Incorporation ² :
4. Bidder's Year of Registration / Incorporation ³ :
5. Bidder's Address in Country of Registration / Incorporation ⁴ :
6. Bidder's Authorized Representative Information
Name:
Address:
Telephone/Fax numbers:
Email Address:
7. Attached are copies of original documents of:
□ Certificate of Incorporation or Registration of firm named in 1, above.
□ In case of JV / Consortium / Association, the JV / Consortium / Association Agreement
☐ In case of government owned entity from the Procuring and Disposing Entity's country, documents establishing legal and financial autonomy and compliance with the principles of

commercial law.

¹In case of JV / Consortium / Association, Fill in Form 4A

 $^{^2 \}mbox{In case of JV}$ / Consortium / Association, Fill in Form 4A

³In case of JV / Consortium / Association, Fill in Form 4A

⁴In case of JV / Consortium / Association, Fill in Form 4A

Form 4 A

Party to JV / Consortium / Association Information Sheet

Date:

Procurement Reference Number:

1. Legal Name of party to JV / Consortium / Association:

2. Country of Registration of party to JV / Consortium / Association:

3. Year of Registration of party to JV / Consortium / Association:

4. Legal Address in Country of Registration for party to JV / Consortium / Association :

6. Authorized Representative Information for party to JV / Consortium / Association Name:

Address:

Telephone/Fax numbers:

Email Address:

7. Attached are copies of original documents of:

- 1 Certificate of Incorporation or Registration of firm named in 1, above.
- In case of government owned entity from the Purchaser's country, documents establishing legal and financial autonomy and compliance with the principles of commercial law.

Form 5

Historical Contract Non-Performance

 Bidder's Name:
 Date:

JV/ Consortium / Association Partner Names:

Procurement Reference No.:

	Non-Performing Contracts in accordance with the Technical Criteria					
Sub-	Contract non-performance did not occur during the stipulated period, in accordance with Sub-Factor 6.2.1 of Section III.					
	tract non-perfor l of Section III.	mance during the stipulated period, in accordance with	h Sub-Factor			
0.2.1	r or section m.					
Year	Outcome as		Total Contract			
	Percent of Contract Identification Amount					
	Total Assets Contract Identification:					
	Name of Employer:					
	Address of Employer:					
	Matter in dispute:					

Form 5A

Pending Litigation

	Pending Litigation, in accordance with Section III					
Ŷ	Υ No pending litigation in accordance with Sub-Factor 6.2.2 of Section III					
Ŷ	Pending litigation in accordance with Sub-Factor 6.2.2 of Section III, as indicated below					
Year Outcome as Percent of Total Assets Contract Identification Total Contract Amou						
			Contract Identification: Name of Employer: Address of Employer: Matter in dispute:			
			Contract Identification: Name of Employer: Address of Employer: Matter in dispute:			
			Contract Identification: Name of Employer: Address of Employer: Matter in dispute:			

FORM 5 B

Environmental, Social, Health and Safety Performance Declaration

□ No suspension or termination of contract: An employer has not suspended or terminated a contract and/or called the performance security for a contract for reasons related to Environmental, Social, Health, or Safety (ESHS) performance since the date specified in Section III, Qualification Criteria, and Requirements, Sub-Factor 6.2.3.				
has em per	s/have been su ployer(s) for r formance since	uspension or termination of contract: The follow spended or terminated and/or Performance Security easons related to Environmental, Social, Health, or ce the date specified in Section III, Qualification p-Factor 6.2.3. Details are described below:	y called by an Safety (ESHS)	
Year	Suspended or terminated portion of contract	Contract Identification	Total Contract Amount (value currency, exchange rate and UGX equivalent)	
[insert year]	[insert amount and percentage]	Contract Identification: [indicate complete contract name/ number, and any other identification] Name of Employer: [insert full name] Address of Employer: [insert street/city/country] Reason(s) for suspension or termination: [indicate main reason(s)]		
[insert year]	[insert amount and percentage]	Contract Identification: [indicate complete contract name/ number, and any other identification] Name of Employer: [insert full name] Address of Employer: [insert street/city/country] Reason(s) for suspension or termination: [indicate main reason(s)]		
		[list all applicable contracts]		

Year	Contract Identification	Total Contract Amount (current value, currency, exchange rate and UGX equivalent)
-	Contract Identification: [indicate complete contract name/ number, and any other identification]	[insert amount]
	Name of Employer: [insert full name]	
	Address of Employer: [insert street/city/country]	
	Reason(s) for calling of performance security: [indicate main reason(s)]	

Form 6

Current Contract Commitments / Works in Progress

[The following table shall be filled in for the Bidder, each member of a Joint Venture / Consortium /Association]

Bidder's Name: [insert full name]

Date: [insert day, month, year]

Joint Venture / Consortium / Association Member's Name: [insert full name]

Proc. Reference No: [insert Reference Number]

[Bidders and each partner to a JV/ Consortium / Association should provide information on their current commitments on all contracts that have been awarded, or for which a letter of intent or acceptance has been received, or for contracts approaching completion, but for which an unqualified, full completion certificate has yet to be issued.]

Name of contract	Employer, contact address/tel/fax	Value of outstanding work	Estimated completion date	Average monthly invoicing over last six months
				(UGX/month)
1.				
2.				
3.				
4.				
5.				
etc.				

FORM 6

Financial Situation

Historical Financial Performance

Bidder's Name:	Date:	
JV/ Consortium / Association Partner Legal Name:		
Procurement Reference No.:		

To be completed by the Bidder and, if JV/ Consortium / Association, by each partner

Financial information in UGX equivalent	Historic information for previous() years (UGX equivalent in 000s)						
	Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year	Year n	Avg.	Avg. Ratio
Information fro	m Balance	Sheet					
Total Assets (TA)							
Total Liabilities (TL)							
Net Worth (NW)							
Current Assets (CA)							
Current Liabilities (CL)							
Information fro	m Income	Statement					
Total Revenue (TR)							
Profits Before Taxes (PBT)							

Page 84 of 154

- Image: Attached are copies of financial statements (balance sheets, including all related notes, andincome statements) for the years required above complying with the following conditions:
 - Must reflect the financial situation of the Bidder or partner to a JV, and not sister or parent companies
 - Historic financial statements must be audited by a certified accountant
 - Historic financial statements must be complete, including all notes to the financial statements
 - Historic financial statements must correspond to accounting periods already completed and audited (no statements for partial periods shall be requested or accepted)

Form 7

Average Annual Turnover

Bidder's Name:	Date:	
JV/ Consortium / Association Partner Name:		_
Procurement Reference No.:		

	Annual turnover data (construction only)			
Year	Amount and Currency	UGX equivalent		
*Average				
Annual				
Construction				
Turnover				

*Average annual turnover calculated as total certified payments received for work in progress or completed over the number of years specified in Section III, Sub-Factor 6.2.5, divided by that same number of years.

Form 8

Financial Resources

Specify proposed sources of financing, such as liquid assets, unencumbered real assets, lines of credit, and other financial means, net of current commitments, available to meet the total construction cash flow demands of the subject contract or contracts as indicated in Section 3: Evaluation Methodology and Criteria.

Source of financing	Amount (UGX equivalent)
1.	
2.	
3.	
4.	

FORM 9

Experience

General Experience

Bidder's Name:	Date:	
JV/ Consortium / Association Partner Name:		
Procurement Reference No.:		

Starting Month / Year	Ending Month / Year	Years*	Contract Identification	Role of Bidder
			Contract name: Brief Description of the Works performed by the Bidder: Name of Employer: Address:	
			Contract name: Brief Description of the Works performed by the Bidder: Name of Employer: Address:	
			Contract name: Brief Description of the Works performed by the Bidder: Name of Employer: Address:	
			Contract name: Brief Description of the Works performed by the Bidder: Name of Employer: Address:	
			Contract name: Brief Description of the Works performed by the Bidder: Name of Employer: Address:	
			Contract name: Brief Description of the Works performed by the Bidder: Name of Employer: Address:	

*List calendar year for years with contracts with at least nine (9) months activity per year starting with the earliest year

Form 10

Specific Experience

Bidder's Name:	_ Date:	
JV/ Consortium / Association Partner Name:		
Procurement Reference No.:		

Similar Contract Number:		Information	
Contract Identification			
Award date Completion date			
Role in Contract	Contractor	□ Management Contractor	U Subcontractor
Total contract amount			UGX
If partner in a JV or subcontractor, specify participation of total contract amount	%		UGX
Employer's Name:			
Address:			
Telephone/fax number: E-mail:			

Form 10 A (cont.)

Specific Experience (cont.)

Bidder's Name:	Date:	
JV/ Consortium / Association Partner Name:		
Procurement Reference No.:		

Similar Contract No. <i>[insert specific number]</i> of <i>[insert total number of contracts]</i> required	Information
Description of the similarity in accordance with Sub-Factor 6.2.8a) of Section 3: Evaluation Methodology and Criteria.:	
Amount	
Physical size	
Complexity	
Methods/Technology	
Physical Production Rate	

Form 10 A (b)

Specific Experience in Key Activities

Bidder's Name:______ JV/ Consortium / Association Partner Name: _____

Date:

Procurement Reference No.: _____

		Information	
Contract Identification			
Award date			
Completion date			
Role in Contract	Contractor	□ Management Contractor	Subcontractor
Total contract amount			
If partner in a JV / Consortium / Association, specify participation of total contract amount	%		
Employer's Name:			
Address:			
Telephone/fax number:			
E-mail:			

Form 10 (b) (cont.)

Specific Experience in Key Activities (cont.)

 Bidder's Name:
 Date:

JV/ Consortium / Association Partner Name:

Procurement Reference No.:

	Information
Description of the key activities in accordance with Sub-Factor 6.2.9 b) of Section III:	

We, the undersigned, declare that the information contained in and attached to these forms is true and accurate as of the date of bid submission:

Signed: [signature of person whose name and capacity are shown below] Name: [insert complete name of authorized person signing the Qualification Form] Duly authorised to sign the Qualification Form for and on behalf of: [insert complete name of Bidder or name of Joint Venture/ Consortium / Association]

Dated on _____ day of _____, ___ [insert day / month / year of signing]

Section 5: Eligible Countries

Procurement Reference Number:

All countries are eligible except countries subject to the following provisions.

A country shall not be eligible if:

- (a) As a matter of law or official regulation, the Government of Uganda prohibits commercial relations with that country, provided that the Government of Uganda is satisfied that such exclusion does not preclude effective competition for the provision of supplies or related services required; or
- (b) By an act of compliance with a decision of the United Nations Security Council taken under Chapter VII of the Charter of the United Nations, the Government of Uganda prohibits any import of Supplies from that country or any payments to persons or entities in that country.

Part 1: Section 5 Eligible Countries Manufacturer's Authorization

	Date:		
	Procurement Reference number No.:		
To: WHEREAS			
We, who are official manufacturat, do hereby authorize purpose of which is to provide the following goods, mar and to subsequently negotiate and sign the Contract.	to submit a Bid the		
We hereby extend our full guarantee and warranty in acc Conditions, with respect to the goods offered by the abo Signed:	ve firm.		
Name: Title:			
Duly authorized to sign this Authorization on behalf of:			
Dated on day of,			

PART 2 - Statement of Requirements Section 6: Statement of Requirements

Contents

Scope of Works	96
Technical Specifications	
Environmental, Social, Health and Safety Requirements	
Drawings	
Activity Schedule/ Bills of Quantities	101
Activity Schedule	
Bill of Quantities	
Completion Schedule	
Supplementary Information	104

Scope of Works

1. Scope of Supply Plant and Installation Services by Contractor

1.1 Scope of Technical Specifications

1.1.1 Site Preparatory Works

The works will entail mobilization and site preparatory works at the 40 different locations, namely Abim-I, Adilang, Alakas, Ayiilo, Bamunanika, Banda, Biiso, Buyende-2, Inde, Iriri, Isingiro TC, Kabura, Kagulu, Kakyanga, Kamod, Karenga, Kasambira, Kasanje, Katuna, Kayunga, Kikyusa, Kiwenda, Kuru, Kyamukonda, Kyamulibwa, Kyanvuma, Kyere, Lefori, Losilang-1, Mayanga, Mkongoro, Nakapiripirit, Ntungu, Nabigasa- Lyabugumu, Nyakashaka- Rubingo, Olilim, Pallabek-Kal, Rubaya, Ssekanyonyi and Ulepi.

The preparatory works will include general site clearance of the area for installation of the Solar PV arrays and supporting accessories. Hoarding off of the construction area, and setting up camp. All preconstruction activities, acquisition of necessary approvals will need to be done.

1.1.2 Civil works

The Civil works to be undertaken will include;

a) Excavations, Levelling, Buildings and Fencing

Excavations, levelling, construction of a stand-alone and secure pump houses and fences is part of the scope of work for the water supply schemes. A 2-roomed building will accommodate separately, (a) the Water pump power controller, (b) the pump attendant and control system of the auxiliary lighting and alarm component. The roof of the pump house will accommodate the PV module powering the auxiliary lighting & alarm system.

The entire solar arrays and pump house will be securely placed in two fences. The Inner fence, secured with an alarm system, shall house the solar array. The outer fence shall house the pump house, with a barbed wire installed on top.

b) Plumbing

Plumbing from the pump to the borehole head shall be within the scope of works. Additional works associated with extending pipe works from pumping point up to an appropriate point, as approved by the Project Manager, for mains connection to the reservoir shall be included within the scope of works.

1.1.3 Supply, delivery and installation

Supply, delivery and installation of individual energy packages for powering water-pumping schemes shall be within the scope of works. All such equipment that are essential for the proper functioning of the system shall be, as required by this specification, supplied, delivered and installed by the contractor.

1.1.4 Additional equipment to be supplied, installed or stored as required

All additional equipment to be supplied shall be as required by this specification and the scope of supply shall take into account:

- Specified quantity of spares as listed herein
- Additional spares as recommended by supplier or manufacturer.

1.1.5 Electrical works

Electrical works shall include installation of solar array, controller and water pump plus all accessories for necessary interconnections and system control. The installation of an auxiliary lighting system and an Alarm system shall be included within the scope of works.

Designs, Drawings and bills for the following works shall be submitted to the Project manager/Engineer for approval:

- Clearance, levelling of site, and Concrete bases for supporting the Array
- Mounting structure and set-out of the solar array
- Fencing of the site [as described above]
- The pump house and the associated plumbing works inside the pump house.

2. Environmental Social Management Plan (ESMP)

The Environmental Screening Reports and the ESMP is bound separately as Volume 5.

The Contractor should submit a comprehensive Environmental & Social Management Plan (ESMP). Evaluation of the Bidder's Environmental & Social Management Plan will include:

An assessment of the Bidder's capacity to comprehend Environmental & Social Impacts that may arise before, during and after execution of the project bidders understanding of the relevant Environmental & Social requirements (Policies, Laws, Regulations, Guidelines) of the Republic of Uganda and the World Bank's Environmental and Social Safeguard Policies demonstrated analysis of the risks, and the measures the bidder proposes to mitigate the impacts

Technical Specifications

Check VOLUME 4 for detailed Technical Specifications

Environmental, Social, Health and Safety Requirements

Check VOLUME 5 for detailed ESMP

Drawings

Check VOLUME 3 for Drawings

Page 100 of 154

Activity Schedule/ Bills of Quantities

Check VOLUME 2 for detailed Bills of Quantities

Activity Schedule

Date: [insert date (as day, month and year) of Bid Submission] Procurement Reference No.:[insert Procurement Reference number]

Name of Bidder: [Insert the name of the Bidder/Joint Venture/Consortium/Association]

Item number	Activity Description	Amount in Ug. Sh

Signed: [signature of person whose name and capacity are shown below]

Name: [insert complete name of person signing the bid]

In the capacity of [insert legal capacity of person signing the bid]

Duly authorised to sign the bid for and on behalf of: [insert complete name of Bidder/Joint Venture/Consortium/Association]

Dated on ______ day of ______, ___ [insert date of signing]

Bill of Quantities

Date: [insert date (as day, month and year) of Bid Submission] Procurement Reference No.:[insert Procurement Reference number]

Name of Bidder: [Insert the name of the Bidder/Joint Venture/Consortium/Association]

Item number	Description of Works	Unit	Quantity	Rate	Amount
		Grand Total:			

Signed: [signature of person whose name and capacity are shown below] Name: [insert complete name of person signing the bid] In the capacity of [insert legal capacity of person signing the bid] Duly authorised to sign the bid for and on behalf of: [insert complete name of Bidder/Joint Venture/Consortium/Association] Dated on _____ day of _____, [insert date of signing]

Completion Schedule

Supplementary Information

1 2 3 4	System Kayunga Kiwenda	Kayunga	(DD ; 0.000N,0.000E) 0.701464, 32.902963	Lot
2 3			0 701464 32 902963	
3	Kiwenda		0.701707, 32.702703	
		Wakiso	0.550366, 32.622125	-
Δ	Bamunanika	Nakaseke	0.687407, 32.608694	-
•	Banda	Mityana	0.252978, 31.892894	
5	Ssekanyonyi	Mityana	0.500968, 32.137848	1
6	Kikyusa	Luweero	0.836714, 32.644096	
7	Buyende 2	Buyende	1.147104, 33.161303	-
8	Kagulu	Buyende	1.249117, 33.305396	-
9	Kasambira	Kamuli	0.791746, 33.144554	-
10	Mayanga	Kamuli	0.792246, 33.154554	-
11	Palabek-Kal	Lamwo	3.435864, 32.582590	
12	Olilim	Otuke	2.398450, 33.494027	-
23	Adilang	Agago	2.741050, 33.478330	-
14	Ayiilo	Adjumani	3.377058, 31.781103	-
15	Lefori	Моуо	3.584897, 31.585478	2
16	Kuru	Yumbe	3.441214, 31.181214	
17	Inde	Madi-Okollo	2.883100, 31.213680	-
18	Ulepi	Madi-Okollo	2.873100, 31.113680	-
19	Biiso	Buliisa	1.760601, 31.418475	-
20	Kyamukonda	Nakasongola	1.418976, 32.197288	-
21	Kasanje	Wakiso	-0.262999, 31.768020	
22	Kakyanga	Kyotera	-0.566500, 31.420912	
23	Kyamulibwa	Kalungu	-0.07840, 31.751962	3
24	Nabigasa	Rakai	-0.561500, 31.490912	3
25	Ntungu	Isingiro	-0.809489, 30.699314	
26	Isingiro T/C	Isingiro	-0.822177, 30.801479	1

NAME AND GPS LOCATION OF SYSTEMS

Bidding Document for the Procurement of Works under Open or Restricted Bidding, September 2019

S/n	Name of	District	GPS Location of Town	Contract
	System		(DD; 0.000N,0.000E)	Lot
27	Rubaya	Kabale	-1.418193, 29.952155	
28	Kabura	Rukungiri	-1.242562, 30.029038	_
29	Katuna	Kabale	-1.419004, 30.009603	_
30	Nyakashaka	Buhweju	-0.411835, 30.319731	_
31	Kyanvuma	Luuka	0.759267, 33.273325	
32	Kyere	Serere	1.479268, 33.606845	_
33	Kamod	Serere	1.566361, 33.365970	
34	Mkongoro	Kumi	1.326252, 33.888050	
35	Abim-1	Abim	2.701794, 33.657352	4
36	Losilang-1	Kotido	3.059554, 34.134615	- +
37	Karenga	Karenga	3.567629, 33.695215	
38	Iriri	Napak	2.120703, 34.225544	
39	Alakas	Napak	1.851353, 35.001278	
40	Nakapiripirit	Nakapiripirit	1.850083, 34.721000	

Part 2: Section 6 Statement of Requirements

PART 3 - Contract Section 7: General Conditions of Contract for the Procurement of Works

Table of Clauses

А.	General109
1.	Definitions109
2.	Contract Documents
3.	Interpretation111
4.	Language
5.	Joint Venture, Consortium or Association
6.	Eligibility
7.	Notices
8.	Governing Law113
9.	Scope of the Works
10.	Project Manager's Decisions
11.	Delegation
12.	Subcontracting
13.	Other Contractors
14.	Contractor's Personnel
15.	PDE's and Contractor's Risks114
16.	PDE's Risks114
17.	Contractor's Risks
18.	Insurance
19.	Site Investigation Reports115
20.	Queries About the Special Conditions of Contract
21.	Contractor to Construct the Works
22.	Works to be Completed by the Intended Completion Date
23.	Approval by the Project Manager115
24.	Safety and Safety Procedures116
25.	Discoveries116
26.	Possession of the Site116
27.	Access to the Site
28.	Contractor's Equipment116
29.	Protection of the Environment116
30.	Prohibition of Harmful Child Labour117
31.	Health and Safety117
32.	Instructions, Inspection and Audits117
33.	Disputes117
34.	Procedure for Settling Disputes118
35.	Replacement of Adjudicator118
B.	Time Control 118
36.	Program118
37.	Extension of the Intended Completion Date
38.	Acceleration
39.	Delays Ordered by the Project Manager

Page 107 of 154

Part 3: Section 7. General Conditions of Contract

40. 41.	Management Meetings	
C.	Quality Control 12	20
42. 43. 44. 45.	Identifying Defects120Tests120Correction of Defects120Uncorrected Defects120	
D.	Cost Control	20
46. 47. 48. 49.	Bill of Quantities or Activity Schedule120Changes in the Bill of Quantities or Activity Schedule120Variations121Payments for Variations121	
5 0.		
 51. 52. 53. 54. 55. 56. 57. 58. 59. 60. 61. 62. 	Payment Certificates122Issue of Interim Payment Certificates123Payments123Compensation Events123Tax124Currencies124Price Adjustment125Retention126Liquidated Damages126Bonus126Advance Payment126Performance Security and ES Performance Security127Day works127	
63. E.	Cost of Repairs	7
 64. 65. 66. 67. 68. 69. 70. 	Completion.128Taking Over128Final Account128Operating and Maintenance Manuals128Termination.128Payment upon Termination.129Release from Performance129	

A. General

1. Definitions

- 1.1 The following words and expressions shall have the meanings hereby assigned to them:
 - (a) "Activity Schedule" means the priced and completed Activity Schedule, forming part of the Bid, which provides a breakdown of the Contract Price by work elements for a Lump Sum Contract.
 - (b) "Adjudicator" is the person appointed jointly by the Procuring and Disposing Entity and the Contractor to resolve disputes in the first instance.
 - (c) "Admeasurement Contract" means a Contract under which the Works are executed on the basis of agreed rates and prices in a Bill of Quantities and payment is made for the quantity of work actually executed.
 - (d) "Bill of Quantities" means the priced and completed Bill of Quantities forming part of the Bid, which provides the agreed rates and prices for payment for an Admeasurement Contract.
 - (e) "Compensation Events" are those defined in Clause 44 hereunder.
 - (f) "Completion Date" is the date of completion of the Works as certified by the Project Manager.
 - (g) "Contract" is the agreement between the Procuring and Disposing Entity and the Contractor to execute, complete, and maintain the Works.
 - (h) "Contractor" is a person or corporate body whose Bid to carry out the Works has been accepted by the Procuring and Disposing Entity and is named as such in the Agreement, and means Provider as defined in the Public Procurement and Disposal of Public Assets Act, 2003.
 - (i) "Contractor's Bid" is the bid submitted to the Procuring and Disposing Entity by the Contractor who signed the contract for the works .
 - (j) "Contract Price" is the price stated in the Agreement and thereafter as adjusted in accordance with the provisions of the Contract.
 - (k) "Days" are working days; "months" are calendar months.
 - (1) "Dayworks" are varied work inputs subject to payment on a time basis for the Contractor's employees and Equipment, in addition to payments for associated Materials and Plant.
 - (m) "Defect" is any part of the Works not completed in accordance with the Contract.
 - (n) "Defects Liability Certificate" is the certificate issued by the Project Manager upon correction of defects by the Contractor.
 - (o) "Defects Liability Period" is the period calculated from the Completion Date, during which the Contractor must rectify defects.
 - (p) "Drawings" include calculations and other information provided or approved by the Project Manager for the execution of the Contract.
 - (q) "Procuring and Disposing Entity" is the party named in the Agreement, who employs the Contractor to carry out the Works and means Procuring and Disposing

Entity as defined in the Public Procurement and Disposal of Public Assets Act, 2003.

- (r) "Equipment" is the Contractor's machinery and vehicles brought temporarily to the Site to construct the Works.
- (s) "written" or "in writing" means type-written, printed or electronically made, and resulting in a permanent record
- (t) "GCC" means the General Conditions of Contract.
- (u) "Initial Contract Price" is the Contract Price listed in the Agreement.
- (v) "Intended Completion Date" is the date on which it is intended that the Contractor shall complete the Works.
- (w) "Lump Sum Contract" means a Contract under which the Works are executed for an all inclusive fixed total amount, as defined in the Activity Schedule.
- (x) "Materials" are all supplies, including consumables, used by the Contractor for incorporation in the Works.
- (y) "Plant" is any integral part of the Works that shall have a mechanical, electrical, chemical, or biological function.
- (z) "Project Manager" is the person named in the SCC (or any other competent person appointed by the Procuring and Disposing Entity and notified to the Contractor, to act as a representative of the Contract Manager) who is responsible for supervising the execution of the Works and administering the Contract. The
- (za) "Contract Manager" is the person appointed by the Accounting Officer from the user department or another Procuring and Disposing Entity to manage the contract.
- (aa) "Provisional Sum" means a sum included in the Contract and so designated in the Bill of Quantities or Activity Schedule for the provision of supplies, works or services or for contingencies to be expended for the execution of the Works in whole or part at the direction of the Project Manager.
- (bb)"SCC" means the Special Conditions of Contract.
- (cc) "Site" is the area defined as such in the SCC.
- (dd)"Site Investigation Reports" are those that were included in the bidding documents and are factual and interpretative reports about the surface and subsurface conditions at the Site.
- (ee) "Specification" means the Specification of the Works included in the Contract and any modification or addition made or approved by the Project Manager.
- (ff) "Start Date" is the latest date by when the Contractor shall commence execution of the Works and is specified in the SCC.
- (gg) A "Subcontractor" is a person or corporate body who has a Contract with the Contractor to carry out a part of the work in the Contract, which includes work on the Site.
- (hh)"Temporary Works" are works designed, constructed, installed, and removed by the Contractor that are needed for construction or installation of the Works.

- (ii) "Variation" is an instruction given by the Project Manager which varies the Works.
- (jj) "Works" are what the Contract requires the Contractor to construct, install, and turn over to the PDE, as defined in the SCC.
- (kk) "ESHS" means environmental, social (including sexual exploitation and abuse (SEA) and gender based violence (GBV)), health and safety.

2. Contract Documents

- 2.1 The documents forming the Contract shall be interpreted in the following order of priority:
 - (a) Agreement,
 - (b) Contractor's Bid,
 - (c) Special Conditions of Contract,
 - (d) General Conditions of Contract,
 - (e) Scope of Works,
 - (f) Drawings,
 - (g) Bill of Quantities or Activity Schedule, as appropriate; and
 - (h) any other document listed in the SCC as forming part of the Contract.
- 2.2 Subject to the order of precedence set forth in Sub-Clause 2.1, all documents forming the Contract (and all parts thereof) are intended to be correlative, complementary, and mutually explanatory

3. Interpretation

- 3.1 If the context so requires it, singular means plural and vice versa
- 3.2 Contract

The Contract constitutes the whole agreement between the PDE and the Provider and supersedes all communications, negotiations and agreements (written or oral) of parties with respect thereto made prior to the date of Contract.

3.3 Amendment

No amendment or other variation of the Contract shall be valid unless it is in writing, is dated, expressly refers to the Contract, and is signed by a duly authorised representative of each party thereto.

- 3.4 Non-waiver
 - (a) Subject to GCC Sub-Clause 32.4(b) below, no relaxation, forbearance, delay, or indulgence by either party in enforcing any of the terms and conditions of the Contract or the granting of time by either party to the other shall prejudice, affect, orrestrict the rights of that party under the Contract, neither shall any waiver by either party of any breach of Contract operate as waiver of any subsequent or continuing breach of Contract.
 - (b) Any waiver of a party's rights, powers, or remedies under the Contract must be in writing, dated, and signed by an authorised representative of the party granting such waiver, and must specify the right and the extent to which it is being waived.
- 3.5 Severability

If any provision or condition of the Contract is prohibited or rendered invalid or

unenforceable, such prohibition, invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provisions and conditions of the Contract

- 3.6 These General Conditions of Contract shall apply in their entirety, except where alternative options are specified for different types of contract. Where alternative options are specified:
 - (a) Option 1 shall apply to Admeasurement Contracts; and
 - (b) Option 2 shall apply to Lump Sum Contracts.
- 3.7 For purposes of interpreting these Conditions of Contract, the type of contract is as specified in the SCC.
- 3.8 If sectional completion is specified in the SCC, references in the Conditions of Contract to the Works, the Completion Date, and the Intended Completion Date apply to any Section of the Works (other than references to the Completion Date and Intended Completion Date for the whole of the Works).

4. Language

- 4.1 The Contract as well as all correspondence and documents relating to the Contract exchanged by the Provider and the PDE, shall be written in English. Supporting documents and printed literature that are part of the Contract may be in another language provided they are accompanied by an accurate translation of the relevant passages in the language specified, in which case, for purposes of interpretation of the Contract, this translation shall govern.
- 4.2 The Provider shall bear all costs of translation to the governing language and all risks of the accuracy of such translation.

5. Joint Venture, Consortium or Association

Unless otherwise specified in the SCC, if the Provider is a JV, consortium, or association, all of the parties shall be jointly and severally liable to the PDE for the fulfilment of the provisions of the Contract and shall designate one party to act as a leader with authority to bind the JV, consortium, or association. The composition or the constitution of the JV, consortium, or association shall not be altered without the prior consent of the PDE.

6. Eligibility

6.1 The provider and its subcontractors shall have the nationality of an eligible country. A provider or subcontractor shall be deemed to have the nationality of a country if it is a citizen or constituted, incorporated, or registered, and operates in conformity with the provisions of the laws of that country.

7. Notices

- 7.1 Any notice given by one party to the other pursuant to the Contract shall be in writing to the address specified in the SCC. The term "in writing" means communicated in written form (e.g. by mail, e-mail, fax, including if specified in the BDS, distributed or received through the electronic-procurement system used by the PDE) with proof of receipt.
- 7.2 A notice shall be effective when delivered or on the notice's effective date, whichever is later.

8. Governing Law

The Contract shall be governed by and interpreted in accordance with the laws of Uganda.

9. Scope of the Works

9.1 The works and related services to be provided shall be as specified in the SORs and other provisions of the contract

10. Project Manager's Decisions

- 10.1 Except where otherwise specifically stated, the Project Manager will decide contractual matters between the PDE and the Contractor in the role representing the PDE.
- 10.2 The Project Manager will obtain the PDE's approval for any of the decisions specified in the SCC.

11. Delegation

11.1 The Project Manager may delegate any of his duties and responsibilities to other people, except to the Adjudicator, after notifying the Contractor in writing, and may cancel any delegation after notifying the Contractor.

12. Subcontracting

- 12.1 Unless otherwise specified in the SCC, the Contractor may subcontract with the approval of the Project Manager, but may not assign the Contract without the approval of the PDE in writing. Subcontracting shall not alter the Contractor's obligations.
- 12.2 Any further conditions relating to subcontracting shall be as specified in the SCC.

13. Other Contractors

13.1 The Contractor shall cooperate and share the Site with other contractors, public authorities, utilities, and the PDE between the dates given in the Schedule of Other Contractors, if such Schedule is specified in the SCC. The Contractor shall also provide facilities and services for them as described in the Schedule. The PDE may modify the Schedule of Other Contractors, and shall notify the Contractor of any such modification.

14. Contractor's Personnel

- 14.1 If the Schedule of Key Personnel is specified in the SCC, the Contractor shall employ the key personnel named in the Schedule, or other personnel approved by the Project Manager, to carry out the functions stated in the Schedule. The Project Manager will approve any proposed replacement of key personnel only if their relevant qualifications and abilities are substantially equal to or better than those of the personnel listed in the Schedule.
- 14.2 The Project Manager may require the Contractor to remove (or cause to be removed) any person employed on the Site or Works, including the Contractor's Representative if applicable, who:
 - (a) Persists in any misconduct or lack of care,
 - (b) Carries out duties incompetently or negligently,
 - (c) Fails to conform with any provisions of the Contract,

- (d) Persists in any conduct which is prejudicial to safety, health, or the protection of the environment, or
- (e) Based on reasonable evidence, is determined to have engaged in Fraud and Corruption during the execution of the Works.
- (f) Undertakes behaviour which breaches the Code of Conduct (ESHS) (e.g. spreading communicable diseases, sexual harassment, gender based violence (GBV), sexual exploitation or abuse, illicit activity or crime)."
- 14.3 The Contractor shall ensure that the person leaves the Site within seven days and has no further connection with the work in the Contract. If appropriate, the Contractor shall then appoint (or cause to be appointed) a suitable replacement person.

15. PDE's and Contractor's Risks

15.1 The Procuring and Disposing Entity carries the risks which the Contract states are Procuring and Disposing Entity's risks, and the Contractor carries the risks which the Contract states are Contractor's risks.

16. PDE's Risks

- 16.1 From the Start Date until the Defects Correction Certificate has been issued, the following are PDE's risks:
 - (a) The risk of personal injury, death, or loss of or damage to property (excluding the Works, Plant, Materials, and Equipment), which are due to:
 - (i) Use or occupation of the Site by the Works or for the purpose of the Works, which is the unavoidable result of the Works; or
 - (ii) Negligence, breach of statutory duty, or interference with any legal right by the PDE or by any person employed by or contracted to him except the Contractor.
 - (b) The risk of damage to the Works, Plant, Materials, and Equipment to the extent that it is due to a fault of the PDE or in the PDE's design, or due to war or radioactive contamination directly affecting the country where the Works are to be executed.
- 16.2 From the Completion Date until the Defects Correction Certificate has been issued, the risk of loss of or damage to the Works, Plant, and Materials is an Procuring and Disposing Entity's risk except loss or damage due to:
 - (a) A defect which existed on the Completion Date;
 - (b) An event occurring before the Completion Date, which was not itself an PDE's risk; or
 - (c) The activities of the Contractor on the Site after the Completion Date.

17. Contractor's Risks

17.1 From the Starting Date until the Defects Correction Certificate has been issued, the risks of personal injury, death, and loss of or damage to property (including, without limitation, the Works, Plant, Materials, and Equipment) which are not the Procuring andDisposing Entity's risks are the Contractor's risks.

18. Insurance

- 18.1 The Contractor shall provide, in the joint names of the PDE and the Contractor, insurance cover from the Start Date to the end of the Defects Liability Period, in the amounts and deductibles stated in the SCC for the following events which are due to theContractor's risks:
 - (a) Loss of or damage to the Works, Plant, and Materials;
 - (b) Loss of or damage to Equipment;
 - (c) Loss of or damage to property (except the Works, Plant, Materials, and Equipment) in connection with the Contract; and
 - (d) personal injury or death.
- 18.2 Policies and certificates for insurance shall be delivered by the Contractor to the Project Manager for the Project Manager's approval before the Start Date. All such insurance shall provide for compensation to be payable in the types and proportions of currencies required to rectify the loss or damage incurred.
- 18.3 If the Contractor does not provide any of the policies and certificates required, the PDE may effect the insurance which the Contractor should have provided and recover the premiums the PDE has paid from payments otherwise due to the Contractor or, if no payment is due, the payment of the premiums shall be a debt due.
- 18.4 Alterations to the terms of an insurance shall not be made without the approval of the Project Manager.
- 18.5 Both parties shall comply with any conditions of the insurance policies.

19. Site Investigation Reports

19.1 The Contractor, in preparing the Bid, shall rely on any Site Investigation Reports referred to in the SCC, supplemented by any information available to the Bidder.

20. Queries About the Special Conditions of Contract

20.1 The Project Manager will clarify queries on the SCC.

21. Contractor to Construct the Works

21.1 The Contractor shall construct and install the Works in accordance with the Specifications and Drawings.

22. Works to be Completed by the Intended Completion Date

22.1 The Contractor may commence execution of the Works on the Start Date and shall carry out the Works in accordance with the Program submitted by the Contractor, as updated with the approval of the Project Manager, and complete them by the Intended Completion Date specified in the SCC.

23. Approval by the Project Manager

- 23.1 All Drawings prepared by the Contractor for the execution of the temporary or permanent Works, are subject to prior approval by the Project Manager before use.
- 23.2 The Contractor shall be responsible for design of Temporary Works and shall submit

Specifications and Drawings showing the proposed Temporary Works to the Project Manager. The Project Manager shall approve such Specification and Drawing if they comply with the Specifications and Drawings in the Statement of Requirements.

- 23.4 The Project Manager's approval shall not alter the Contractor's responsibility for design of the Temporary Works.
- 23.5 The Contractor shall obtain approval of third parties to the design of the Temporary Works, where required.

24. Safety and Safety Procedures

- 24.1 The Contractor shall be responsible for the safety of all activities on the Site.
- 24.2 The Contractor shall ensure the safety procedures:
 - (a) comply with all applicable safety regulations,
 - (b) take care for the safety of all persons entitled to be on the Site,
 - (c) use reasonable efforts to keep the Site and Works clear of unnecessary obstruction so as to avoid danger to these persons,
 - (d) provide fencing, lighting, guarding and watching of the Works until completion and taking over, and
 - (e) provide any Temporary Works (including roadways, footways, guards and fences) which may be necessary, because of the execution of the Works, for the use and protection of the public and of owners and occupiers of adjacent land.

25. Discoveries

25.1 Anything of historical or other interest or of significant value unexpectedly discovered on the site shall be the property of the PDE. The Contractor shall notify the Project Manager of such discoveries and carry out the Project Manager's instructions for dealing with them.

26. Possession of the Site

26.1 The PDE shall give possession of all parts of the site to the Contractor. If possession of a part is not given by the date stated in the SCC, the PDE will be deemed to have delayed the start of the relevant activities, and this will be a Compensation Event.

27. Access to the Site

27.1 The Contractor shall allow the Project Manager and any person authorised by the Project Manager access to the Site and to any place where work in connection with the Contract is being carried out or is intended to be carried out.

28. Contractor's Equipment

28.1 The Contractor shall be responsible for all Contractor's Equipment. When brought on to the Site, Contractor's Equipment shall be deemed to be exclusively intended for the execution of the Works. The Contractor shall not remove from the Site any major items of Contractor's Equipment without the consent of the Project Manager. However, consent shall not be required for vehicles transporting Goods or Contractor's Personnel off Site.

29. Protection of the Environment

29.1 The Contractor shall take all reasonable steps to protect the environment (both on and off

the Site) and to limit damage and nuisance to people and property resulting frompollution, noise and other results of his operations. The Contractor shall ensure that emissions, surface discharges and effluent from the Contractor's activities shall not exceed the values stated in the Specification or prescribed by applicable Laws.

30. Prohibition of Harmful Child Labour

30.1 The Contractor shall not employ children in a manner that is economically exploitative, or is likely to be hazardous, or to interfere with, the child's education, or to be harmfulto the child's health or physical, mental, spiritual, moral, or social development. Children below the age of 18 years shall not be employed in dangerous work.

31. Health and Safety

- 31.1 The Contractor shall at all times take all reasonable precautions to maintain the health and safety of the Contractor's Personnel. The Contractor shall appoint an accidentprevention officer at the Site, responsible for maintaining safety and protection against accidents. The Contractor shall maintain records and make reports concerning health, safety and welfare of persons, and damage to property, as the Project Manager may reasonably require.
- 31.2 The Contractor shall conduct HIV-AIDS awareness programmes to reduce the risk of the transfer of the HIV virus between and among the Contractor's Personnel and the local community, to promote early diagnosis and to assist affected individuals. The Contractor shall throughout the contract: (i) conduct Information, Education and Communication (IEC) campaigns, at least every six month, addressed to all the Site staff and labourers (including all the Contractor's employees, all Subcontractors and any other Contractor's or PDE's personnel employees, and all truck drivers and crew making deliveries to Site for construction activities) and to the immediate local communities, concerning the risks, dangers and impact, and appropriate avoidance behaviour with respect to Sexually Transmitted Diseases (STD) or Sexually Transmitted Infections (STI) in general and HIV/AIDS.

32. Instructions, Inspection and Audits

- 32.1 The Contractor shall carry out all instructions of the Project Manager which comply with the applicable laws where the Site is located.
- 32.2 The Contractor shall at all reasonable times allow personnel from PDE to have full access to all parts of the Site and to all places from which natural Materials are being obtained, and during production, manufacture and construction (at the Site and elsewhere), to examine, inspect, measure and test the materials and workmanship, and to check the progress of manufacture of Plant and production and manufacture of Materials.
- 32.3 The Contractor shall permit the Government of Uganda personnel to inspect the Contractor's accounts and records relating to the performance of the Contract and to have them audited by auditors appointed by the Government, if so required by the Government.

33. Disputes

33.1 If the Contractor believes that a decision taken by the Project Manager was either outside the authority given to the Project Manager by the Contract or that the decision was wrongly taken, the decision shall be referred to any Adjudicator appointed under the contract within 14 days of the notification of the Project Manager's decision.

34. Procedure for Settling Disputes

- 34.1 Unless otherwise specified in the SCC, the procedure for disputes shall be as specified in GCC 34.2 to 34.4.
- 34.2 Any Adjudicator appointed under the contract shall give a decision in writing within 28 days of receipt of a notification of a dispute, providing that he is in receipt of all the information required to give a decision.
- 34.3 Any Adjudicator appointed under the contract shall be paid by the hour at the rate specified in the SCC, together with reimbursable expenses of the types specified in the SCC, and the cost shall be divided equally between the PDE and the Contractor, whatever decision is reached by the Adjudicator. Either party may refer a decision of the Adjudicator to an Arbitrator within 28 days of the Adjudicator's written decision. If neither party refers the dispute to arbitration within the above 28 days, the Adjudicator's decision will be final and binding.
- 34.4 Any arbitration shall be conducted in accordance with the Arbitration and Conciliation Act 2000 or such other formal mechanism specified in the SCC, and in the place shown in the SCC.

35. Replacement of Adjudicator

35.1 Should the Adjudicator resign or die, or should the PDE and the Contractor agree that the Adjudicator is not functioning in accordance with the provisions of the Contract, a new Adjudicator will be jointly appointed by the PDE and the Contractor. In case of disagreement between the PDE and the Contractor, within 30 days, the Adjudicator shall be designated by the Appointing Authority designated in the SCC at the request of either party, within 14 days of receipt of such request.

B. Time Control

36. Program

- 36.1 Within the time stated in the SCC, the Contractor shall submit to the Project Manager for approval a Program showing the general methods, arrangements, order, and timing for all the activities in the Works.
- 36.2 An update of the Program shall be a program showing the actual progress achieved on each activity and the effect of the progress achieved on the timing of the remaining work, including any changes to the sequence of the activities.
- 36.3 The Contractor shall submit to the Project Manager for approval an updated Program at intervals no longer than the period stated in the SCC. If the Contractor does not submit an updated Program within this period, the Project Manager may withhold the amount stated in the SCC from the next payment certificate and continue to withhold this amount until the next payment after the date on which the overdue Program has been submitted.
- 36.4 The Project Manager's approval of the Program shall not alter the Contractor's obligations. The Contractor may revise the Program and submit it to the Project Manager again at any time. A revised Program shall show the effect of Variations and Compensation Events.

37. Extension of the Intended Completion Date

- 37.1 The Project Manager shall extend the Intended Completion Date if a Compensation Event occurs or a Variation is issued which makes it impossible for Completion to be achieved by the Intended Completion Date without the Contractor taking steps to accelerate the remaining work, which would cause the Contractor to incur additional cost.
- 37.2 The Project Manager shall decide whether and by how much to extend the Intended Completion Date within 21 days of the Contractor asking the Project Manager for a decision upon the effect of a Compensation Event or Variation and submitting full supporting information. If the Contractor has failed to give early warning of a delay or has failed to cooperate in dealing with a delay, the delay by this failure shall not be considered in assessing the new Intended Completion Date.

38. Acceleration

- 38.1 When the PDE wants the Contractor to finish before the Intended Completion Date, the Project Manager will obtain priced proposals for achieving the necessary acceleration from the Contractor. If the PDE accepts these proposals, the Intended Completion Date will be adjusted accordingly and confirmed by both the PDE and the Contractor.
- 38.2 If the Contractor's priced proposals for an acceleration are accepted by the PDE, they are incorporated in the Contract Price and treated as a Variation.

39. Delays Ordered by the Project Manager

39.1 The Project Manager may instruct the Contractor to delay the start or progress of any activity within the Works.

40. Management Meetings

- 40.1 Either the Project Manager or the Contractor may require the other to attend a management meeting. The business of a management meeting shall be to review the plans for remaining work and to deal with matters raised in accordance with the early warning procedure detailed in GCC 41.
- 40.2 The Project Manager shall record the business of management meetings and provide copies of the record to those attending the meeting and to the PDE. The responsibility of the parties for actions to be taken shall be decided by the Project Manager either at the management meeting or after the management meeting and stated in writing to all who attended the meeting.

41. Early Warning

- 41.1 The Contractor shall warn the Project Manager at the earliest opportunity of specific likely future events or circumstances that may adversely affect the quality of the work, increase the Contract Price or delay the execution of the Works. The Project Manager may require the Contractor to provide an estimate of the expected effect of the future event or circumstance on the Contract Price and Completion Date. The estimate shall be provided by the Contractor as soon as reasonably possible.
- 41.2 The Contractor shall cooperate with the Project Manager in making and considering proposals for how the effect of such an event or circumstance can be avoided or reduced by anyone involved in the work and in carrying out any resulting instruction of the

Project Manager.

C. Quality Control

42. Identifying Defects

42.1 The Project Manager shall check the Contractor's work and notify the Contractor of any Defects that are found. Such checking shall not affect the Contractor's responsibilities. The Project Manager may instruct the Contractor to search for a Defect and to uncover and test any work that the Project Manager considers may have a Defect.

43. Tests

43.1 If the Project Manager instructs the Contractor to carry out a test not specified in the Specification to check whether any work has a Defect and the test shows that it does, the Contractor shall pay for the test and any samples. If there is no Defect, the test shall be a Compensation Event.

44. Correction of Defects

- 44.1 The Project Manager shall give notice to the Contractor of any Defects before the end of the Defects Liability Period, specified in the SCC. The Defects Liability Period shall be extended for as long as Defects remain to be corrected.
- 44.2 Every time notice of a Defect is given, the Contractor shall correct the notified Defect within the length of time specified by the Project Manager's notice.

45. Uncorrected Defects

45.1 If the Contractor has not corrected a Defect within the time specified in the Project Manager's notice, the Project Manager will assess the cost of having the Defect corrected, and the Contractor will pay this amount.

D. Cost Control

46. Bill of Quantities or Activity Schedule

Option 1: Admeasurement Contracts - Bill of Quantities

- 46.1 The Bill of Quantities shall contain items for the construction, installation, testing, and commissioning work to be done by the Contractor.
- 46.2 The Bill of Quantities is used to calculate the Contract Price. The Contractor is paid for the quantity of the work done at the rate in the Bill of Quantities for each item.

Option 2: Lump Sum Contracts – Activity Schedule

- 46.3 The Contractor shall provide updated Activity Schedules within 14 days of being instructed to by the Project Manager. The activities on the Activity Schedule shall be coordinated with the activities on the Program.
- 46.4 The Contractor shall show delivery of Materials to the Site separately on the Activity Schedule if payment for Materials on Site shall be made separately.

47. Changes in the Bill of Quantities or Activity Schedule

Option 1: Admeasurement Contracts – Changes in the Bill of Quantities

- 47.1 If the final quantity of the work done differs from the quantity in the Bill of Quantities for the particular item by more than 25 percent, provided the change exceeds one percent (1%) of the Initial Contract Price, the Project Manager shall adjust the rate to allow for the change.
- 47.2 The Project Manager shall not adjust rates from changes in quantities if thereby the Initial Contract Price is exceeded by more than 15 percent, except with the prior approval of the PDE.
- 47.3 If requested by the Project Manager, the Contractor shall provide the Project Manager with a detailed cost breakdown of any rate in the Bill of Quantities.

Option 2: Lump Sum Contracts – Changes in the Activity Schedule

47.4 The Activity Schedule shall be amended by the Contractor to accommodate changes of Program or method of working made at the Contractor's own discretion. Prices in the Activity Schedule shall not be altered when the Contractor makes such changes to the Activity Schedule.

48. Variations

Option 1: Admeasurement Contracts – Variations

48.1 All Variations shall be included in updated Programs produced by the Contractor.

Option 2: Lump Sum Contracts – Variations

48.2 All Variations shall be included in updated Programs and Activity Schedules produced by the Contractor.

49. Payments for Variations

Option 1: Admeasurement Contracts – Payment for Variations

- 49.1 The Contractor shall provide the Project Manager with a quotation for carrying out the Variation when requested to do so by the Project Manager. The Project Manager shall assess the quotation, which shall be given within seven days of the request or within any longer period stated by the Project Manager and before the Variation is ordered.
- 49.2 If the work in the Variation corresponds with an item description in the Bill of Quantities and if, in the opinion of the Project Manager, the quantity of work above the limit stated in Sub-Clause 46.1 or the timing of its execution do not cause the cost per unit of quantity to change, the rate in the Bill of Quantities shall be used to calculate the value of the Variation. If the cost per unit of quantity changes, or if the nature or timing of the work in the Variation does not correspond with items in the Bill of Quantities, the quotation by the Contractor shall be in the form of new rates for the relevant items of work.
- 49.3 If the Contractor's quotation is unreasonable, the Project Manager may order the Variation and make a change to the Contract Price, which shall be based on the Project Manager's own forecast of the effects of the Variation on the Contractor's costs.
- 49.4 If the Project Manager decides that the urgency of varying the work would prevent a quotation being given and considered without delaying the work, no quotation shall be given and the Variation shall be treated as a Compensation Event.
- 49.5 The Contractor shall not be entitled to additional payment for costs that could have been avoided by giving early warning.

Option 2: Lump Sum Contracts – Payment for Variations

49.6 The Contractor shall provide the Project Manager with a quotation for carrying out the

Variation when requested to do so by the Project Manager. The Project Manager shall assess the quotation, which shall be given within seven days of the request or within any longer period stated by the Project Manager and before the Variation is ordered.

- 49.7 If the Contractor's quotation is unreasonable, the Project Manager may order the Variation and make a change to the Contract Price, which shall be based on the Project Manager's own forecast of the effects of the Variation on the Contractor's costs.
- 49.8 If the Project Manager decides that the urgency of varying the work would prevent a quotation being given and considered without delaying the work, no quotation shall be given and the Variation shall be treated as a Compensation Event.
- 49.9 The Contractor shall not be entitled to additional payment for costs that could have been avoided by giving early warning.

50. Payment Certificates

- 50.1 The Contractor shall submit to the Project Manager statements of the estimated value of the work executed less the cumulative amount certified previously. Unless otherwise specified in the SCC, such statements shall be submitted monthly.
- 50.2 The Project Manager shall check the Contractor's statement and certify the amount to be paid to the Contractor.
- 50.3 The value of work executed shall be determined by the Project Manager.
- 50.4 The value of work executed shall comprise the value of:
 - (a) The quantities of the items in the Bill of Quantities completed for Admeasurement Contracts; or
 - (b) Completed (fully or partially) activities in the Activity Schedule for Lump Sum contract activities.
- 50.5 The value of work executed shall include the valuation of Variations and Compensation Events.
- 50.6 The Project Manager may exclude any item certified in a previous certificate or reduce the proportion of any item previously certified in any certificate in the light of later information.

51. Issue of Interim Payment Certificates

51.1 No amount will be certified or paid until the PDE has received and approved the Performance Security and, if applicable, the ES Performance Security. Thereafter, the Project Manager shall, within 28 days after receiving a Statement and supporting documents, deliver to the PDE and to the Contractor an Interim Payment Certificate which shall state the amount which the Project Manager fairly determines to be due, with all supporting particulars for any reduction or withholding made by the Project Manager on the Statement if any.

An Interim Payment Certificate shall be withheld for any of the following reasons:

- a) if anything supplied or work done by the Contractor is not in accordance with the Contract, the cost of rectification or replacement may be withheld until rectification or replacement has been completed;
- b) if the Contractor was or is failing to perform any work in accordance with the Contract, and had been so notified by the Project Manager, the value of this work may be withheld until the it has been performed and/or
- c) if the Contractor was, or is, failing to perform any ESHS obligations or work

under the Contract, the value of this work or obligation, as determined by the Engineer, may be withheld until the work or obligation has been performed, and/or the cost of rectification or replacement, as determined by the Engineer, may be withheld until rectification or replacement has been completed. Failure to perform includes, but is not limited to the following:

- (i) Failure to comply with any ESHS obligations or work described in the Statements of Requirements which may include: working outside site boundaries, excessive dust, failure to keep public roads in a safe usable condition, damage to offsite vegetation, pollution of water courses fromoils or sedimentation, contamination of land e.g. from oils, human waste, damage to archeology or cultural heritage features, air pollution as a result of unauthorized and/or inefficient combustion;
- (ii) Failure to regularly review Environmental and Social Management Plan and/or update it in a timely manner to address emerging ESHS issues, or anticipated risks or impacts;
- (iii) Failure to implement the Environmental and Social Management Plan e.g. failure to provide required training or sensitization;
- (iv) Failing to have appropriate consents/permits prior to undertaking Works or related activities;
- (v) Failure to submit the relevant reports of the Environmental and Social Management Plan, or failure to submit such reports in a timely manner;
- (vi) Failure to implement remediation as instructed by the Engineer within the specified timeframe (e.g. remediation addressing non-compliance/s).
- 51.2 If an amount certified is increased in a later certificate or as a result of an award by the Adjudicator or an Arbitrator, the Contractor shall be paid interest upon the delayed payment as set out in this clause. Interest shall be calculated from the date upon which the increased amount would have been certified in the absence of dispute.
- 51.3 Unless otherwise stated, all payments and deductions will be paid or charged in the proportions of currencies comprising the Contract Price.
- 51.4 Items of the Works for which no rate or price has been entered in will not be paid for by the PDE and shall be deemed covered by other rates and prices in the Contract.

52. Payments

52.1 Payments shall be adjusted for deductions for advance payments and retention. The Procuring and Disposing Entity shall pay the Contractor the amounts certified by the Project Manager within 60 days of the date of each certificate. If the PDE makes a late payment, the Contractor shall be paid interest on the late payment in the next payment. Interest shall be calculated from the date by which the payment should have been made up to the date when the late payment is made at the prevailing rate of interest for commercial borrowing for each of the currencies in which payments are made.

53. Compensation Events

- 53.1 The following shall be Compensation Events:
 - (a) The PDE does not give access to a part of the Site by the Site Possession Date stated in the SCC.
 - (b) The PDE modifies the Schedule of Other Contractors in a way that affects the work of the Contractor under the Contract.
 - (c) The Project Manager orders a delay or does not issue Drawings, Specifications, or

instructions required for execution of the Works on time.

- (d) The Project Manager instructs the Contractor to uncover or to carry out additional tests upon work, which is then found to have no Defects.
- (e) The Project Manager unreasonably does not approve a subcontract to be let.
- (f) Ground conditions are substantially more adverse than could reasonably have been assumed before signing of the Agreement from the information issued to bidders (including the Site Investigation Reports), from information available publicly and from a visual inspection of the Site.
- (g) The Project Manager gives an instruction for dealing with an unforeseen condition, caused by the PDE, or additional work required for safety or other reasons.
- (h) Other contractors, public authorities, utilities, or the PDE does not work within the dates and other constraints stated in the Contract, and they cause delay or extra cost to the Contractor.
- (i) The advance payment is delayed.
- (j) The effects on the Contractor of any of the PDE's Risks.
- (k) The Project Manager unreasonably delays issuing a Certificate of Completion.
- (1) Other Compensation Events described in the SCC or determined by the Project Manager shall apply.
- 53.2 If a Compensation Event would cause additional cost or would prevent the work being completed before the Intended Completion Date, the Contract Price shall be increased and/or the Intended Completion Date shall be extended. The Project Manager shall decide whether and by how much the Contract Price shall be increased and whether and by how much the Intended Completion Date shall be extended.
- 53.3 As soon as information demonstrating the effect of each Compensation Event upon the Contractor's forecast cost has been provided by the Contractor, it shall be assessed by the Project Manager, and the Contract Price shall be adjusted accordingly. If the Contractor's forecast is deemed unreasonable, the Project Manager shall adjust the Contract Price based on the Project Manager's own forecast. The Project Manager will assume that the Contractor will react competently and promptly to the event.
- 53.4 The Contractor shall not be entitled to compensation to the extent that the Procuring and Disposing Entity's interests are adversely affected by the Contractor's not having given early warning or not having cooperated with the Project Manager.

54. Tax

54.1 The Project Manager shall adjust the Contract Price if taxes, duties, and other levies are changed between the date 28 days before the submission of bids for the Contract and the date of the last Completion certificate. The adjustment shall be the change in the amount of tax payable by the Contractor, provided such changes are not already reflected in the Contract Price or are a result of Clause 56.

55. Currencies

55.1 Where payments are made in currencies other than Uganda Shillings, the exchange rates used for calculating the amounts to be paid shall be the exchange rates stated in the Contractor's Bid.

56. Price Adjustment

56.1 Prices payable to the Provider, as stated in the Contract, shall be subject to adjustment during performance of the Contract to reflect changes in the cost of labour and material components in accordance with the formula:

$$\Delta P = P_0 \left(a + b \frac{L_1}{L_0} + c \frac{M_1}{M_0} \right) - P_0$$

in which:

 ΔP = adjustment amount payable to the Provider.

 P_0 = Contract Price (base price).

a = fixed element representing profits and overheads included in the Contract Price and generally in the range of five (5) to fifteen (15) percent.

b = estimated percentage of labour component in the Contract Price.

c = estimated percentage of material component in the Contract Price.

 L_0 , $L_1 =$ labour indices applicable to the appropriate industry in the country of origin on the base date and date for adjustment, respectively.

 M_0 , M_1 = material indices for the major raw material on the base date and date for adjustment, respectively, in the country of origin.

The coefficients a, b, and c shall be specified by the procuring and disposing entity in the bidding documents. The sum of the three coefficients should be one (1) in every application of the formula.

The Bidder shall indicate the source of the indices and the base date indices in his bid.

Base date = thirty (30) days prior to the deadline for submission of the bids.

Date of adjustment = ______weeks prior to date of shipment (representing the midpoint of the period of manufacture).

The above price adjustment formula shall be invoked by either party subject to the following further conditions:

(a) Price adjustment will be applied only if the resulting increase or decrease is more than_____percent of the Contract Price.

[Two (2) percent would be an acceptable percentage.]

- (b) No price adjustment shall be allowed beyond the original delivery dates unless specifically stated in the extension letter. As a rule, no price adjustment shall be allowed for periods of delay for which the Provider is entirely responsible. The PDE will however be entitled to any decrease in the prices of the supplies and services subject to adjustment.
- (c) The total adjustment under this clause shall be subject to a ceiling of plus or minus percent of the Contract Price.

[Ten (10) percent would be an acceptable percentage.]

(d) If the currency in which the Contract Price P_0 is expressed is different from the currency of origin of the labour and material indices, a correction factor will be applied to avoid incorrect adjustments of the Contract Price. The correction factor Page 125 of 154

shall correspond to the ratio of exchange rates between the two currencies on the base date and the date for adjustment as defined above.

- 56.2 No price adjustment shall be payable on the portion of the Contract Price paid to the Provider as advance payment.
- 56.3 If the value of the index is changed after it has been used in a calculation, the calculation shall be corrected and an adjustment made in the next payment certificate. The index value shall be deemed to take account of all changes in cost due to fluctuations in costs.

57. Retention

- 57.1 If so stated in the SCC, the PDE shall retain from each payment due to the Contractor the proportion stated in the SCC until Completion of the whole of the Works.
- 57.2 On completion of the whole of the Works, half the total amount retained shall be repaid to the Contractor and half when the Defects Liability Period has passed and the Project Manager has certified that all Defects notified by the Project Manager to the Contractor before the end of this period have been corrected.
- 57.3 On completion of the whole Works, the Contractor may substitute retention money with an "on demand" Bank guarantee.

58. Liquidated Damages

- 58.1 If so stated in the SCC, the Contractor shall pay liquidated damages to the PDE at the rate per day stated in the SCC for each day that the Completion Date is later than the Intended Completion Date. The total amount of liquidated damages shall not exceed the amount defined in the SCC. PDE may deduct liquidated damages from payments due to the Contractor. Payment of liquidated damages shall not affect the Contractor's liabilities.
- 58.2 If the Intended Completion Date is extended after liquidated damages have been paid, the Project Manager shall correct any overpayment of liquidated damages by the Contractor by adjusting the next payment certificate. The Contractor shall be paidinterest on the overpayment, calculated from the date of payment to the date of repayment, at the rates specified in Sub-Clause 52.1.

59. Bonus

59.1 If so stated in the SCC, the Contractor shall be paid a Bonus calculated at the rate per working day stated in the SCC for each day (less any days for which the Contractor is paid for acceleration) that the Completion is earlier than the Intended Completion Date. The Completion Date shall be certified in accordance with GCC 64.1.

60. Advance Payment

- 60.1 If so stated in the SCC, the PDE shall make advance payment to the Contractor of the amounts stated in the SCC within the period stated in the SCC, against provision by the Contractor of an on demand Bank Security in a form and by a bank acceptable to the PDE in amounts and currencies equal to the advance payment. The Guarantee shall remain effective until the advance payment has been repaid, but the amount of the Guarantee shall be progressively reduced by the amounts repaid by the Contractor. Interest will not be charged on the advance payment.
- 60.2 The Contractor is to use the advance payment only to pay for Equipment, Plant,

Materials, and mobilisation expenses required specifically for execution of the Contract. The Contractor shall demonstrate that advance payment has been used in this way by supplying copies of invoices or other documents to the Project Manager.

60.3 The advance payment shall be repaid by deducting proportionate amounts from payments otherwise due to the Contractor, as specified in the SCC, following the schedule of completed percentages of the Works on a payment basis. No account shall be taken of the advance payment or its repayment in assessing valuations of work done, Variations, price adjustments, Compensation Events, Bonuses, or Liquidated Damages.

61. Performance Security and ES Performance Security

- 61.1 If so stated in the SCC, the Contractor shall, within twenty-one (21) calendar days of signing the contract, provide a Performance Security and, if applicable, an Environmental and Social, (ES) Performance Security for compliance with the Contractor's ESHS obligations for the due performance of the Contract. The Performance Security and the ES Performance Security shall be in the amount specified in the SCC and shall be denominated in the currency in which the Contract Price is payable.
- 61.2 The proceeds of the Performance Security and, if applicable, the ES Performance Security shall be payable to the PDE as compensation for any loss resulting from the Contractor's failure to complete its obligations under the Contract.
- 61.3 The Performance Security and, if applicable, the ES Performance Security shall be in the form stipulated in Section 9 of the bidding document.
- 61.4 The Performance Security and, if applicable, the ES Performance Security to the PDE shall be valid until a date 28 days from intended completion date stated in the SCC.

62. Day works

- 62.1 If applicable, the Day works rates in the Contractor's Bid shall be used for small additional amounts of work only when the Project Manager has given written instructions in advance for additional work to be paid for in that way.
- 62.2 All work to be paid for as Day works shall be recorded by the Contractor on forms approved by the Project Manager. Each completed form shall be verified and signed by the Project Manager within two days of the work being done.
- 62.3 The Contractor shall be paid for Day works subject to obtaining signed Day works forms.

63. Cost of Repairs

63.1 Loss or damage to the Works or Materials to be incorporated in the Works between the Start Date and the end of the Defects Correction periods shall be remedied by the Contractor at the Contractor's cost if the loss or damage arises from the Contractor's acts or omissions.

E. Finishing the Contract

64. Completion

64.1 The Contractor shall request the Project Manager to issue a certificate of Completion of the Works, and the Project Manager will do so upon deciding that the work is completed.

65. Taking Over

65.1 The PDE shall take over the Site and the Works within seven days of the Project Manager's issuing a certificate of Completion.

66. Final Account

66.1 The Contractor shall supply the Project Manager with a detailed account of the total amount that the Contractor considers payable under the Contract before the end of the Defects Liability Period. The Project Manager shall issue a Defects Liability Certificate and certify any final payment that is due to the Contractor within 56 days of receiving the Contractor's account if it is correct and complete. If it is not, the Project Manager shall issue within 56 days a schedule that states the scope of the corrections or additions that are necessary. If the Final Account is still unsatisfactory after it has been resubmitted, the Project Manager shall decide on the amount payable to the Contractor and issue a payment certificate.

67. Operating and Maintenance Manuals

- 67.1 If "as built" Drawings and/or operating and maintenance manuals are required, the Contractor shall supply them by the dates stated in the SCC.
- 67.2 If the Contractor does not supply the Drawings and/or manuals by the dates stated in the SCC, or they do not receive the Project Manager's approval, the Project Manager shall withhold the amount stated in the SCC from payments due to the Contractor.

68. Termination

- 68.1 The PDE or the Contractor may terminate the Contract if the other party causes a fundamental breach of the Contract.
- 68.2 Fundamental breaches of Contract shall include, but shall not be limited to, the following:
 - (a) the Contractor stops work for 28 days when no stoppage of work is shown on the current Program and the stoppage has not been authorised by the Project Manager;
 - (b) the Project Manager instructs the Contractor to delay the progress of the Works, and the instruction is not withdrawn within 28 days;
 - (c) the PDE or the Contractor is made bankrupt or goes into liquidation other than for a reconstruction or amalgamation;
 - (d) a payment certified by the Project Manager is not paid by the PDE to the Contractor within 84 days of the date of the Project Manager's certificate;
 - (e) the Project Manager gives Notice that failure to correct a particular Defect is a fundamental breach of Contract and the Contractor fails to correct it within a reasonable period of time determined by the Project Manager;
 - (f) the Contractor does not maintain a Security, which is required; and
 - (g) the rate of progress of the Works at any time during the period of the Contract is such that the completion of the Works will, as measured against the current Program, be delayed by the number of days for which the maximum amount of liquidated damages can be imposed.
 - (h) if the Contractor in the judgement of the PDE has engaged in corrupt, fraudulent,

collusive or coercive practices in competing for or in the executing the contract.

For the purposes of this paragraph:

- (a) "corrupt practice" means the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting, directly or indirectly, of anything of value, to influence the action of a public official in the procurement process or in contract execution; and
- (b) "fraudulent practice" is any act or omission, including a misrepresentation, that knowingly or recklessly misleads, or attempts to mislead, a party to obtain a financial or other benefit or to avoid an obligation;
- (c) "collusive practice" is an arrangement between two or more parties designed to achieve an improper purpose, including to influence improperly the actions of another party;
- (d) "coercive practice" is impairing or harming, or threatening to impair or harm, directly or indirectly, any party or the property of the party to influence improperly the actions of a party;
- 68.3 When either party to the Contract gives notice of a breach of Contract to the Project Manager for a cause other than those listed under Sub-Clause 68.2 above, the Project Manager shall decide whether the breach is fundamental or not.
- 68.4 Notwithstanding the above, the PDE may terminate the Contract for convenience.
- 68.5 If the Contract is terminated, the Contractor shall stop work immediately, make the Site safe and secure, and leave the Site as soon as reasonably possible.

69. Payment upon Termination

- 69.1 If the Contract is terminated because of a fundamental breach of Contract by the Contractor, the Project Manager shall issue a certificate for the value of the work done and Materials ordered less advance payments received up to the date of the issue of the certificate and less the percentage to apply to the value of the work not completed, as indicated in the SCC. Additional Liquidated Damages shall not apply. If the totalamount due to the PDE exceeds any payment due to the Contractor, the difference shall be a debt payable to the PDE.
- 69.2 If the Contract is terminated for the PDE's convenience or because of a fundamental breach of Contract by PDE, the Project Manager shall issue a certificate for the value of the work done, Materials ordered, the reasonable cost of removal of Equipment, repatriation of the Contractor's personnel employed solely on the Works, and the Contractor's costs of protecting and securing the Works, and less advance payments received up to the date of the certificate.

70. Release from Performance

70.1 If the Contract is frustrated by the outbreak of war or by any other event entirely outside the control of either the PDE or the Contractor, the Project Manager shall certify that the Contract has been frustrated. The Contractor shall make the Site safe and stop work as quickly as possible after receiving this certificate and shall be paid for all work carried out before receiving it and for any work carried out afterwards to which a commitment was made.

Section 8: Special Conditions of Contract

The following Special Conditions of Contract (SCC) shall supplement the General Conditions of Contract (GCC). Whenever there is a conflict, the provisions herein shall prevail over those in the GCC.

GCC Clause Reference	Special Conditions			
	Procurement Reference No: MWE/SUPLS/23-24/00007/1/2/3/4			
GCC 1.1(cc)	The Site is located at Abim-I, Adilang, Alakas, Ayiilo, Bamunanika Banda, Biiso, Buyende-2, Inde, Iriri, Isingiro TC, Kabura, Kagulu Kakyanga, Kamod, Karenga, Kasambira, Kasanje, Katuna Kayunga, Kikyusa, Kiwenda, Kuru, Kyamukonda, Kyamulibwa Kyanvuma, Kyere, Lefori, Losilang-1, Mayanga, Mkongoro Nakapiripirit, Ntungu, Nabigasa- Lyabugumu, Nyakashaka Rubingo, Olilim, Pallabek- Kal, Rubaya, Ssekanyonyi and Ulepi.			
GCC 1.1(ff)	The Start Date shall be: The Effectiveness of the Contract shall be fourteen (14) Days after;			
	 Acceptance of the Grant Conditions and Signing the Grant Agreement. Signing/Effectiveness of the Contract for The Supervising Consultant. 			
GCC 1.1(z)	The Project Manager is: The Supervising Consultant			
GCC 2.1	ThefollowingdocumentsformpartoftheContract:(a)Agreement,(b)Contractor's Bid,(c)Special Conditions of Contract,(d)General Conditions of Contract,(e)Scope of Works,(f)Drawings,(g)Bill of Quantities or Activity Schedule, as appropriate; and(h)any other document listed in the SCC as forming part of the Contract.			
GCC 3.7	This Contract is an Admeasurement Contract.			
GCC 3.8	Sectional completion Not permitted.			

Page 130 of 154

Part 3: Section 8 Special Conditions of Contract

	-				
GCC 7.1	For notices , the PDE's address shall be:				
	Attention:	Head, Procurement and Disposal Unit			
	Street Address	: Plot 3-7 Kabalega Crescent Road, Luzira			
	Floor:	Procurement and Disposal Unit, Ground Floor			
	City:	Kampala			
	P.O Box No:	20026			
	Country:	Uganda			
	Telephone:	+256 417 889 400			
		il address: john.katerega@mwe.go.ug with copies to gmail.com, allan.mugabi@gmail.com and a@gmail.com			
	For <u>notices</u> , the	Contractor's address shall be:			
	Attention:				
	Street Address:				
	Floor/Room nu	mber:			
	Town/City:				
	P. O. Box:				
	Country:				
	Telephone:				
	Electronic mail	address:			
GCC 9.1		sist of: Supply, Installation and Commissioning of 40 taic (PV) Energy Packages for Water Supply Schemes			
GCC 10.2	The PDE's spec	cific approval is required for: Contract Price Variation			
GCC 12.1	GCC Clause 12	.1 on sub-contracting is modified as follows: N/A			

Part 3: Section 8 Special Conditions of Contract

GCC Clause Reference	Special Conditions	
GCC 12.2	The following conditions shall apply to subcontracting: Evaluation and Approval of proposed subcontractors by the Client	
GCC 13.1	The Schedule of Other Contractors is Not_part of theContract.	
GCC 14.1	The Schedule of Key Personnel_is part of the Contract.	
GCC 18.1	The minimum insurance covers shall be:	
	(a) The minimum cover for insurance of the Works, Plant and Materials is: 50% of Cost of Works, Plant and Materials	
	(b) The maximum deductible for insurance of the Works, Plant and Materials is: 80% of Cost of Works, Plant and Materials	
	(c) The minimum cover for insurance of Equipment is: 50% of Cost of Equipment	
	(d) The maximum deductible for insurance of Equipment is: 80% of Cost of Equipment	
	(e) The minimum cover for insurance of property is: USD 50,000	
	(f) The maximum deductible for insurance of property is: USD 100,000	
	(g) The minimum cover for personal injury or death insurance is: USD 50,000	
	(h) The maximum deductible for personal injury or death insurance is USD 100,000	
GCC 19.1	Site Investigation Report(s) are not_part of the contract.	
GCC 22.1	The Intended Completion Date for the whole of the Works shall	
	The Time for Completion of the whole of the Facilities shall be from the Effective Date.	
	LOT 1, 2, 3 & 4: 15 months (12 months for full completion; 3 months for operational acceptance and O&M training; and Commissioning) from the Effective Date, an additional 24 months defects liability period.	
GCC 26.1	The Site Possession Date shall be: Fourteen (14) Days after Effectiveness of Contract	
GCC 34.1	The procedure for settling disputes shall be N/A	
GCC 34.3	Fees and types of reimbursable expenses to be paid to the Adjudicator: UGX 100,000 per Hour	
GCC 34.4	The arbitration shall be conducted in accordance with the Arbitration and Conciliation Act 2000 of Uganda.	
	Arbitration shall take place at: Kampala, Uganda and the language shall be English	

Page 132 of 154

Part 3: Section 8 Special Conditions of Contract

GCC 35.1	The Appointing Authority for the Adjudicator is: President of the Uganda Institution of Professional Engineers				
GCC 36.1	The Contractor shall submit the Program for the Works within				

Part 3: Section 8 Special Conditions of Contract

GCC Clause Reference	Special Conditions
	Fourteen (14) days after Site Possession.
GCC 36.3	The period between Program updates is 30 _days. The amount to be withheld for late submission of an updated Program is: N/A
GCC 44.1	The Defects Liability Period is 730 days.
GCC 50.1	Statements of estimated value of works executed shall be on a 3-months basis.
GCC 52	
GCC 53.1(l)	The following events shall also be Compensation Events: 1. Extreme Weather (Excessive Rainfall) 2. War 3. Global disease pandemic
GCC 56.1	N/A
GCC 56.1	N/A
GCC 57.1	The proportion of payments retained is 30%
GCC 58.1	The liquidated damages for the whole of the Works are 0.1% per day. The maximum amount of liquidated damages for the whole of the Works is 10% Percent of the final Contract Price.
GCC 59.1	The Bonus for the whole of the Works is 0% per day. The maximum amount of Bonus for the whole of the Works is 0% Percent of the final Contract Price.
GCC 60.1	The Advance Payment will be equivalent to 30% and will be paid in the same currencies and proportions as the Contract Price.

Part 3:	Section 8	Special Conditions of Contract
---------	-----------	---------------------------------------

GCC Clause Reference	Special Conditions		
GCC 60.3	N/A		
GCC 61.1	 A Performance Security shall be required. A Performance Security shall be for 10% of the Contract Price. An ES Performance Security Shall not berequired. 		
GCC 61.3	The standard form of Performance Security acceptable to the PDE shall be an Unconditional Bank Guarantee in the format presented in Section 9 of the Bidding Documents.		
GCC 67.1	The date by which "as built" drawings are required is: Date of Operational Acceptance The date by which operating and maintenance manuals are required is: Date of Operational Acceptance		
GCC 67.2	The amount to be withheld for failing to produce "as built" drawings and/or operating and maintenance manuals by the date required is 50,000,000 Uganda Shillings.		
GCC 69.1	The percentage to apply to the value of the work not completed, representing the PDE's additional cost for completing the Works, is: 10%		

Section 9: Contract Forms

Table of Forms

Contract Agreement	
Grant Agreement	
Performance Security	
Advance Payment Security	
Labour Declaration	

Contract Agreement

Procurement	Refer	ence No:									
THIS CONT	FRAC	Γ AGREEM	IENT	made this		_day of					,
, betv	veen					of					
(hereinafter	"the	Procuring	and	Disposing	Entity	- PDE"),	of	the	one	part,	and
			of					_ (h	erein	after	"the

Contractor"), of the other part.

Whereas the PDE is desirous that the Contractor executes _____

(hereinafter called "the Works") and the PDE has accepted the Bid by the Contractor for the execution and completion of such Works and the remedying of any defects therein for the Contract Price of Uganda Shillings_____.

NOW THIS CONTRACT AGREEMENT WITNESSETH AS FOLLOWS:

- 1. In this Contract Agreement, words and expressions shall have the same meanings as are respectively assigned to them in the Contract referred to.
- 2. The following documents shall be deemed to form and be read and construed as part of this Agreement. This Contract Agreement shall prevail over all other Contract documents.
 - (a) the Contractor's Bid;
 - (b) the Special Conditions of Contract;
 - (c) the General Conditions of Contracts;
 - (e) the Scope of works;
 - (f) the Drawings; and
 - (g) the completed Schedules.
- 3. In consideration of the payments to be made by the PDE to the Contractor as indicated in this Contract, the Contractor hereby covenants with the Procuring and Disposing Entity to execute and complete the Works and remedy any defects therein in conformityin all respects with the provisions of the Contract.
- 4. The PDE hereby covenants to pay the Contractor in consideration of the execution and completion of the Works and the remedying of defects therein the Contract Price of ______ or such other sum as may become payable under the provisions of the Contract, at the times and in the manner prescribed by the Contract.
- 5. The Contract Price or such other sum as may be payable shall be paid______in Uganda Shillings, ______in _____in _____in _____in _____in

IN WITNESS whereof the parties thereto have caused this Contract to be executed in accordance with the law specified in the Special Conditions of Contract on the day, month and year indicated above.

Signed by_____(for the Procuring and Disposing Entity)

Name:

Bidding Document for the Procurement of Works under Open or Restricted Bidding, September 2019

_____Position: _____

Part 3. Section 9. Contract Forms

In the presence of:		
Name:	Position:	
Signed by	(for the Contractor)	
Name:		
In the presence of:		
Name:	Position:	

Grant Agreement

BETWEEN

UGANDA ENERGY CREDIT CAPITALISATION COMPANY, having its principal place of business at Plot 29/32, Kampala Road, P.O. Box 29725, Kampala, Uganda (hereinafter referred to as **UECCC**), which expression shall, wherever the context so admits, include its agents, assignees, legal representatives, and successors in title of the one part.

AND

RECITALS

- A. WHEREAS, the International Development Association ("World Bank") and Republic of Uganda (GOU) have signed the IDA Financing Agreement dated for USD..... for the Electricity Access Scale-UP project (EASP) and GOU has agreed to make available to the UECCC part of the Financing under the Subsidiary Agreement dated ______.
- B. WHEREAS, under the EASP, UECCC is to implement the Electrification of Public Institutions Programme ("the Programme") under which grants are provided for the Off-grid Solar Electrification of selected Public Institutions.
- C. WHEREAS the Programme is aimed at benefiting public institutions operating under Beneficiary Ministries and recommended for benefit from the Programme by the relevant Beneficiary Ministries.

NOW THEREFORE THIS AGREEMENT WITNESSETH AS FOLLOWS:

1. **DEFINITIONS**

Save as otherwise expressly stipulated, the following terms shall bear the meanings indicated below:

Part 3. Section 9. Contract Forms

Acceptable Bank	A Tier I financial institution regulated by Bank of Uganda and forms one of	
Acceptable Dank	the top four financial institutions by asset size	
Agreement		
Agreement	Refers to this Agreement executed between UECCC and the Energy Service Company	
En anon Carrier		
Energy Service	A domestic company or an international company with a registered	
Company	subsidiary in Uganda engaged in solar business	
Beneficiary Ministries	Either of the following as indicated in Schedule 1: (i) Ministry of Education and Sports (MoES), (ii) Ministry of Health (MoH), and (iii) Ministry of Water and Environment (MoWE)	
Financed Activities	The activities to be undertaken by the Energy Service Company under the Service Agreement that are funded under the Programme	
Grant Amount	The amount as indicated under Schedule 1 to be extended by UECCC to the Energy Service Company under this Agreement to cover the capital cost of supply, installation, and commissioning of the system	
Milestone	A deliverable by the Energy Service Company stipulated under Schedule 2 against which payment is to be made by UECCC	
MEMD EASP PCU	The unit designated under the Ministry of Energy and Mineral Development (MEMD) to undertake the role of overall supervision and coordination of the EASP	
The Programme	Public Institutions programme providing access to grants for off-grid solar electrification of Public Institutions operating under Beneficiary Ministries, including in Refugee and Host Community Districts (RHDs).	
Retention Amount	An amount equivalent to 15% of the Grant Amount extended to the Energy Service Company, payment of which shall be released upon receipt of confirmation from the Beneficiary Ministries and MEMD to the effect that defects identified if any in relation to the financed activities, have been satisfactory remedied. The retention payments shall be made in accordance with the period as	
	stipulated in Schedule 2.	
Service Agreement	The contract executed between the Beneficiary Ministries and the Energy Service Company to provide services under the Programme, including the supply, installation, and operation and maintenance of the system	
Service Period	The period for supply, installation, commissioning, operation, and maintenance of the system as stipulated in Schedule 1	
System	The stand-alone solar equipment, materials, appliances, and mechanisms supplied and installed by the Energy Service Company to the Selected Public Institution pursuant to this Agreement	
Selected Public Institution	A public school or health centers (II, III, and IV) or public water supply system selected by the Beneficiary Ministries.	
Supervision Consultant	An independent consultant appointed by Beneficiary Ministries to supervise the supply, installation and commissioning, and operation and maintenance of the system by the Energy Service Company	

Verification Report	A report submitted by the Supervision Consultant to the Beneficiary
	Ministries and MEMD confirming the completion of a milestone under this
	Agreement

2. PURPOSE OF THE AGREEMENT

The purpose of this Agreement is to provide a funding mechanism within the framework of the Programme for the payment to the Energy Service Company for the supply, installation, and commissioning of the system at a selected Public Institution pursuant to the Service Agreement. UECCC's payment obligations shall be subject to the Energy Service Company's fulfillment of clauses 4, 6, and 12 of this Agreement.

3. GRANT AMOUNT

Subject to the terms of this Agreement, UECCC shall disburse the Grant Amount to the Energy Service Company based on achievement of milestones and in installments as stipulated in Schedule 2.

4. CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO SIGNING AND EFFECTIVENESS OF THIS AGREEMENT

This Agreement shall be signed and take effect upon the occurrence of the following:

- (a) Receipt from MEMD of a letter confirming that the Energy Service Company was competitively procured by the Beneficiary Ministries
- (b) Receipt of an executed contract between the Beneficiary Ministries for an Energy Service Company
- (c) Receipt by UECCC of the World Bank's 'no-objection' to
 - (i) The Service Contract between the Beneficiary Ministries and the Energy Service Company
 - (ii) Grant Agreement between UECCC and the Energy Service Company
- (d) UECCC holds sufficient funds to fully finance the Grant Amount.

5. NATURE OF OBLIGATIONS

- 5.1 **Obligation of the Energy Service Company:** The Energy Service Company undertakes to UECCC that it shall
 - (a) Implement the funded activities in accordance with the terms and condition of the Service Agreement;
 - (b) Comply with the applicable national laws and the UECCC E&S requirements stipulated in clause 7 below;
 - (c) Carry out the funded activities with due diligence and efficiency and in accordance with sound technical, economic, financial, managerial, environmental, and social standards and practices satisfactory to the World Bank, including Anti-Corruption Guidelines applicable to recipients of funding;
 - (d) Permit UECCC or persons designated by UECCC to undertake monitoring of the installed system in the company of the Beneficiary Ministries and MEMD; and

- (e) Before seeking any disbursement of the Grant Amount, ensure that
 - (i) There are no outstanding obligations and/or third-party claims arising from the funded activities and
 - (ii) It meets the eligibility criteria provided for under clause 8 on continuous basis.

5.2 **Conditional Nature of Grant**

The Energy Service Company's eligibility for disbursement of the Grant Amount shall be subject to satisfying the requirements of the Service Agreement between the Energy Service Company and the Beneficiary Ministries.

5.3 **Retention Amount**

To preserve the rights of the Beneficiary Ministries and UECCC, UECCC shall retain This retained amount shall be paid in accordance with the provisions in Schedule 2 after it is confirmed that all defects identified, if any, during the defects liability period have been fully remedied to the satisfaction of the Beneficiary Ministries, MEMD, and UECCC.

6. GRANT DISBURSEMENT

- (a) The Energy Service Company shall request disbursement of any proportion of the Grant Amount payable by submission of a grant disbursement request to UECCC through the Beneficiary Ministries and MEMD in the form and content under Schedule 3.
- (b) Disbursement of the Grant Amount shall only be sought against the fulfillment of corresponding milestones as stipulated under Schedule 2.
- (c) Proof of each milestone for the purpose of a disbursement request submitted in accordance with (a) and (b) above shall be confirmed by MEMD and supported by a verification report with respect to such milestone.
- (d) Before its submission to UECCC, each disbursement request shall be reviewed by the Beneficiary Ministries which shall certify the completion of the corresponding milestone, attach the relevant verification report by the Supervision Consultant, and submit the certified disbursement request to the MEMD EASP Project Coordination Unit (PCU) for review.
- (e) Upon receipt of the certified disbursement request, the MEMD PCU shall, in consultation with the Beneficiary Ministries, undertake a technical review of the verification report and confirm to UECCC the eligibility of the Energy Service Company for payment under the certified disbursement request.
- (f) UECCC will review the disbursement request for compliance with the terms of this Agreement and shall make a disbursement if it is satisfied that the disbursement request fully complies with the terms of the Agreement.

7. ENVIRONMENT SOCIAL HEALTH AND SAFETY (ESHS) COMPLIANCE

The Energy Service Company shall comply with the applicable national laws, the World Bank Environmental and Social Standards, and the UECCC E&S requirements stipulated in sections 1.3.3 and 1.3.6 of the UECCC's ESMS.

Part 3. Section 9. Contract Forms

The Energy Service Company will develop and implement an Environment and Social Management Plan (ESMP) in a format provided by UECCC and monitor and report E&S performance to UECCC in a format provided by UECCC throughout the Service Period.

8. ENERGY SERVICE COMPANY ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA

- (a) Must be registered to operate in Uganda.
- (b) Have capability to maintain policies and procedures adequate to enable ministries and agencies UECCC and MEMD to monitor and evaluate Energy Service Company performance and system KPIs.
- (c) Maintain a financial management system and prepare financial statements in accordance with consistently applied acceptable accounting standards.
- (d) Must be capable of meeting ESHS compliance requirements, as defined in clause 7 above.
- (e) Must be capable of meeting required product quality standards certified for use in Uganda by the Uganda National Bureau of Standards (UNBS) or other international standards if applicable.
- (f) Must provide proof of a satisfactory consumer protection plan, including warranties within a stipulated period and after-sales services.
- (g) Not blacklisted by the Public Procurement and Disposal of Public Assets Authority (PPDA), World Bank, and/or other multilateral development partners.

9. DURATION AND VALIDITY OF THE AGREEMENT

The Agreement shall endure until the occurrence of one of the following events:

- (a) Full disbursement of the Grant Amount
- (b) Expiry of the Service Agreement
- (c) Termination of the Agreement in accordance with clause 11.

10. SUSPENSION OF THE AGREEMENT BY UECCC

Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions, UECCC may suspend this Agreement upon occurrence of any of the following:

- (a) When the Energy Service Company is not compliant with the E&S requirements in Section 7 above
- (b) When the Beneficiary Ministry communicates in writing to UECCC regarding suspension of the Service Contract of the Energy Service Company
- (c) Suspension of the IDA Financing Agreement by the World Bank and/or the Subsidiary Financing Agreement by the Government of Uganda.

11. TERMINATION OF THE AGREEMENT BY UECCC

Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions, UECCC shall terminate this Agreement upon occurrence of any of the following:

- (a) Receipt from the Beneficiary Ministries of a notice of termination of the Service Agreement with the Energy Service Company.
- (b) The Energy Service Company is declared insolvent or becomes bankrupt or enters any arrangement with creditors.
- (c) The Energy Service Company is in breach of the E&S covenants in Section 7 of this Agreement and fails to remedy such breach within a period stipulated under a notice by UECCC requiring that remedial action be taken.
- (d) The Energy Service Company has obtained the award of the Service Agreement or any portion of the Grant Amount through fraud or misrepresentation.
- (e) Termination of the IDA Financing Agreements by the World Bank and/or the Subsidiary Financing Agreement by the Government of Uganda.
- (f) Funds cease to be available under the Programme.

12. REFUND OF GRANT

If this Agreement is terminated as a result of clause 11(d) above, the Energy Service Company shall be required to refund to UECCC such amount as shall be assessed by the Supervision Consultant as the loss incurred by UECCC as a result of the fraud or misrepresentation.

13. CONFIDENTIALITY

- (a) Save as indicated in (b) below, neither Party shall directly or indirectly reveal, report, publish, or disclose confidential information to any person, firm, or corporation not expressly authorized by the other Party to receive such information or use such information.
- (b) UECCC may, at any time, provide information relating to the Grant Agreement to the World Bank, the Beneficiary Ministries, or MEMD or any other authorized arm of Government.
- (c) For the purposes of this Agreement, confidential information means
 - (i) Any information relating to the Grant Agreement including, but not limited to, forecasts, accounting records, or any other financial information which, if disclosed, could negatively affect a Party to this Grant Agreement. Confidential information also includes related information that may be disclosed in connection with financial information, including, but not limited to, identification and account numbers, PINs, passwords, the identity or financial status of investors or partners, or other information conveyed in writing or in discussion that is indicated to be confidential.
 - (ii) Any information which is non-public, confidential, technical, or proprietary in nature, including third-party information and, where applicable, technical, or business information, regardless of form, furnished or disclosed by the Disclosing Party to the Receiving Party whether or not the Receiving Party has indicated that such information is confidential but which the Receiving Party should reasonably expect to be confidential.
- (d) Confidential information shall not include information that
 - (i) Is now or becomes generally known or readily available to the public, other than through a breach of this Agreement;

Part 3. Section 9. Contract Forms

- (ii) Is subsequently, lawfully, and in good faith obtained from a third party owing no obligation of confidentiality to the Disclosing Party and without breach of this Agreement; or
- (iii) The Receiving Party can establish was in its possession before the date of disclosure of such confidential information by the Disclosing Party; or
- (iv) Is independently developed by the Receiving Party without use of or reference to any confidential information of the Disclosing Party.

14. MONITORING

In carrying out the activities under this Agreement, the Energy Service Company undertakes to provide access to UECCC and the World Bank or any persons authorized by them, upon issuance of notice to visit and carry out checks as they may deem necessary on the installations at the selected public institutions.

15. INDEMNITY

The Energy Service Company agrees and declares that UECCC is totally and absolutely free of any form of liability or responsibility for any act or omission in relation to this Agreement save where such act results from willful misconduct by UECCC acting in its corporate capacity as an institution under the Programme.

16. APPLICABLE LAW AND GOVERNING LANGUAGE

The law applicable to this Agreement shall be the Ugandan Law. The governing language of this agreement shall be English.

17. DISPUTE RESOLUTION

All disputes arising between the parties shall be resolved amicably by the parties, failing which the matter shall be referred to the courts of law in Uganda.

18. RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The terms of this Agreement shall not in any way be construed as if there is a relationship or employer/employee relationship. The parties are independent of each other.

19. NOTICES

- (a) Notice shall be deemed to have been duly given, made, or sent when it shall be delivered by hand or mail, or fax, to the party to which it is required or permitted to be given or posted at the address of such party hereinafter specified or such other address as such party shall have designated by notice to the party giving such notice or making such request.
- (b) For the avoidance of doubt, the notices shall exclude requests for disbursement requests which are to be issued and served in accordance with Clause 6 of this Agreement.
- (c) The notices under clause (a) above shall be in writing addressed as follows:

For UECCC

The Managing Director,

Uganda Energy Credit Capitalisation Company

Part 3. Section 9. Contract Forms

P.O. Box 29725		-
Kampala		
For the Energy Service Company		
P.O. Box		
IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties here mentioned.	eto put the signatures and seals on the date first above	′e-
For the Energy Service Company	For UECCC	
Name:		
Title:		
Date:		
Witness	Witness	
Sign		
Name:		
Title:		

Beneficiary Ministry	
Selected Public Institution	
Energy Service Company	
Grant Amount	
Service Period	
Defects Liability Period	Twenty-Four Months

Schedule 1 - Energy Service Company and Grant Amount

Schedule 2 - Grant Disbursements and Payment Milestones

The grant will be disbursed according to the following milestones. Grant disbursements requests will be submitted to UECCC by Beneficiary Ministries through MEMD.

Milestone	Percentage of Grant Paid
a) A signed contract between Beneficiary Ministries and Energy Service	To be determined
Company	
b) Receipt by UECCC of an Advanced Payment Guarantee issued by an	
acceptable bank for the proportion of the grant amount to be paid in	
advance in form and substance acceptable to UECCC	
Proof of inspection including	To be determined
a) A Goods Inspection Note of goods cleared at the warehouse by the	
Beneficiary Ministries	
b) A verification report by the Supervision Consultant	
a) A verification report by the Supervision Consultant confirming that	To be determined
the system conforms to the service and quality standards prescribed	
the Beneficiary Ministries	
b) Commissioning and operational acceptance of the system by the	
Beneficiary Ministries	
Proof from the Beneficiary Ministries, including verification report from	To be determined
the Supervision Consultant, that the system is defect free at the end of the	
first year of the service period	
Proof from the Beneficiary Ministries, including verification report from	To be determined
the Supervision Consultant, that the system is defect free at the end of the	
second year of the service period	
Miscellaneous	To be determined
Total Grant Payment	100

Schedule 3 - Grant Disbursement Request

This disbursement request shall be submitted to UECCC through the Beneficiary Ministries and MEMD by the Energy Service Company to request for disbursement of a grant payment based on achievement of a grant payment milestone. All fields of the form must be completed.

NameofEnergyServiceCompany......Address....Name and Address of Beneficiary MinistriesNames and addresses of each Public Institution and each siteDescription of Grant Payment MilestoneAmount of Grant requested to be disbursed

Service Company Account Details

Supporting Documents (Attachments)

Documented Evidence of Achievement of the Grant Payment Milestone

(For example, Goods Inspection Note of goods cleared at the warehouse by the Beneficiary Ministries, independent verification report by the Supervision Consultant certifying completion of a milestone)

Declaration:

We, the undersigned, being the authorized representatives of [*name of Service Company*] do hereby declare that:

- 1. *[name of Service Company*] is not in breach of any of the conditions of the Service Contract executed with (name of Beneficiary Ministries) or this Grant Agreement executed between UECCC and (*name of Service Company*) ('the Agreement').
- 2. [name of Service Company] is not in breach of any of the conditions of this Agreement.
- 3. All previous grant disbursements made to the [*name of Service Company*] have been utilized in accordance with this Agreement.

Name:

Signature:

Position:

Authorised Representative of the Energy Service Company (with powers of attorney)

Performance Security

[The Performance Security should be on the letterhead of the issuing Financial Institution and should be signed by a person with the proper authority to sign documents that are binding on the Financial Institution. The draft is for an unconditional Security. The amount of the guarantee must represent the percentage of the Contract Price specified in the Contract, and should be denominated either in the currency(ies) of the Contract or in a freely convertible currency acceptable to the Procuring and Disposing Entity].

> Date: [insert date (as day, month and year) of Performance Security] Procurement Reference No: [insert Procurement Reference Number]

To: [insert complete name and address of Procuring and Disposing Entity]

WHEREAS [insert name and address of Contractor] (hereinafter called "the Contractor") has undertaken, pursuant to the Contract referenced above, dated [insert date (as day, month and year) of contract] to execute [insert brief description of Works] (hereinafter called "the Contract");

AND WHEREAS it has been stipulated by you in the aforementioned Contract that the Provider shall furnish you with a demand guarantee issued by a financial institution for the sum specified therein as security for compliance with the Provider's performance obligations in accordance with the Contract;

AND WHEREAS the undersigned [insert complete name of Guarantor], legally domiciled in [insert complete address of Guarantor], (hereinafter the "Guarantor"}, have agreed to give the Contractor a security;

THEREFORE WE hereby affirm that we are Guarantors and responsible to you, on behalf of the Contractor, up to a total of *[insert currency and amount of Guarantee in words and figures]*, such sum being payable in the types and proportions of currencies in which the Contract Price is payable, and we undertake to pay you, upon your first written demand declaring the Contractor to be in default under the Contract, without cavil or argument, any sum or sums within the limits of *[insert currency and amount of Guarantee in words and figures]* as aforesaid without your needing to prove or to show grounds or reasons for your demand or the sum specified therein.

We hereby waive the necessity of your demanding the said debt from the Contractor before presenting us with the demand.

We further agree that no change or addition to or other modification of the terms of the Contract or of the Works to be performed thereunder or of any of the Contract documents which may be made between you and the Contractor shall in any way release us from any liability under this Guarantee, and we hereby waive notice of any such change, addition, or modification. This Guarantee shall remain in force up to and including_____* [insert date: day, month, year]

This guarantee is subject to the Uniform Rules for Demand Guarantees, ICC Publication No. 758, except that Sub-article 20(a) is hereby excluded.

Name: [insert complete name of person signing the Performance Security] In the capacity of [insert legal capacity of person signing the Performance Security]

Signed: [signature of person whose name and capacity are shown above]Duly authorised to sign the Performance Security for and on behalf of: [insert complete name of Financial Institution]Dated onday of,[insert date of signing]

^{*} Insert the date twenty eight (28) days after the intended completion date as stated in SCC 22.1. In the event of an extension of the intended completion date, the Entity shall request for an extension of this guarantee from the contractor. The request for extension shall be in writing and must be made prior to the expiration date stated in the guarantee.

Advance Payment Security

[The Advance Payment Security should be on the letterhead of the issuing Financial Institution and should be signed by a person with the proper authority to sign documents that are binding on the Financial Institution. The amount of the security is to be inserted by the Financial Institution and must represent the amount of the Advance Payment and be denominated either in the currency(ies) of the Advance Payment as specified in the Contract, or in a freely convertible currency acceptable to the PDE].

Date: [insert date (as day, month, and year) of Payment Security] Procurement Reference No.: [insert Procurement Reference Number]

To: [insert complete name and address of Procuring and Disposing Entity]

In accordance with the payment provision included in the Contract referenced above, in relation to advance payments, *[insert complete name and address of Contractor]* (hereinafter called "the Contractor") shall deposit with the PDE a Bank Guarantee to guarantee its proper and faithful performance of the obligations imposed by said Clause of the Contract, in the amount of *[insert currency and amount of guarantee in words and figures]*.

We, the undersigned [insert complete name of Guarantor], legally domiciled in [insert full address of Guarantor] (hereinafter "the Guarantor"), as instructed by the Contractor, agree unconditionally and irrevocably to guarantee as primary obligator and not as surety merely, the payment to the PDE on its first demand without whatsoever right of objection on our part and without its first claim to the Contractor, in the amount not exceeding [insert currency and amount of guarantee in words and figures].

We further agree that no change or addition to or other modification of the terms of the Contract or of the Works to be performed there under or of any of the Contract documents which may be made between the PDE and the Contractor, shall in any way release us from any liability under this Guarantee, and we hereby waive notice of any such change, addition, or modification.

This Security shall remain valid and in full effect from the date of the advance payment under the Contract until the PDE receives full repayment of the same amount from the Contractor.

Name: [insert complete name of person signing the Payment Security] In the capacity of [insert legal capacity of person signing the Payment Security]

This guarantee is subject to the Uniform Rules for Demand Guarantees, ICC Publication No. 758, except that Sub-article 20(a) is hereby excluded.

Signed: [signature of person whose name and capacity are shown above] Duly authorized to sign the Payment Security for and on behalf of: [insert complete name of the Financial Institution] Dated on _______, [insert date of signing]

Bidding Document for the Procurement of Works under Open or Restricted Bidding, September 2019 Section 9: Page 153 of 154

Labour Declaration

_____hereby declares to Uganda Energy Credit {COMPANY NAME}

Capitalization Company (UECCC) that it will:

- Ensure the elimination of all forms of forced or compulsory labour;
- Ensuring workman's compensation in an event of accidents, injury, permanent, disability, or even loss of life during the course of work; and
- Not engage in child labour.
- At all times, strive to protect personal health and safety and remind all EASP teams of the • need to adhere to resident worker-related legislation, standards, and best-in-duty practice.
- Respect the privacy of our employees' personal data in line with Uganda's Data protection • and privacy Act 2019 and I other requirements. Every employee undertakes to uphold the confidentiality of all information and protect our intangible assets. To that end, any disclosure of trade secrets or patented or patentable processes is prohibited.
- Ensure fair treatment at work for all employees on EASP-led projects to protect or mitigate the risks of potential discrimination in employment, Gender-Based discrimination and Violence, and Sexual Exploitation and Abuse, racial discrimination at the workplace.

Name of the PFI/Private Energy Company

Name of the person duly authorized to sign the Declaration Form on behalf of the PFI/Private Energy Company_____

Title of the person signing the Declaration Form_____

Signature of the person named above_____

Date signed______ day of______, _____